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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

SEC FORM 20-1S

INFORMATION STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 20
OF THE SECURITIES REGULATION CODE
Check the appropriate box:
[x] Preliminary Information Statement
[ ] Definitive Information Statement
Name of Registrant as specified in its charter: The Palms Country Club, Inc.

Province, country or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization:
Philippines

SEC Identification Number: A20000-5129
BIR Tax Identification Code: 206-361-205-000
Address of principal office:
1410 Laguna Heights Drive, Filinvest Corporate City, Alabang, Muntinlupa City
Registrant’s telephone number, including area code: (02) 8771-7171
Date, time and place of the meeting of security holders:
Date & Time: October 04, 2022, 9:00a.m
Venue: No physical venue

Online web address for registration for remote participation and voting:
https://bit.ly/palms_registration

Approximate date on which the Information Statement is first to be sent or given to
security holders:

September 13, 2022


https://apc01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fbit.ly%2Fpalms_registration&data=05%7C01%7Cryan.bautista%40filinvestland.com%7Cbba9f0874bbd4960883708da8417d75f%7Ccdb710b6704140938e6f80ac01d6c65a%7C0%7C0%7C637967535174184672%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=HmDb7q9U1WrSDD%2FbFAX%2Fjak74UzZIi3sUOA2wu8luCU%3D&reserved=0

10.

11.

Securities registered pursuant to Sections 8 and 12 of the Code or Sections 4 and 8 of
the RSA (information on number of shares and amount of debt is applicable only to
corporate registrants):

Title of Each Class Number of Shares of Common
Stock Outstanding

Class “A” including Founders’ Shares 1,907
Class “B” 250
Class “C” 150
Class “D” 2,293

Are any or all of registrant's securities listed in a Stock Exchange? NO

If yes, disclose the name of such Stock Exchange and the class of securities listed
therein: NA



PART I

INFORMATION REQUIRED IN INFORMATION STATEMENT
A. GENERAL INFORMATION

1. Date, Time and Place Of Meeting

The annual shareholders’ meeting of THE PALMS COUNTRY CLUB, INC. (the “Club”)
is scheduled on October 04, 2022 at 9:00 a.m. through virtual meeting.

The complete mailing address of the Club is 1410 Laguna Heights Drive, Filinvest Corporate
City, Alabang, Muntinlupa City.

The information statement shall be sent or given to shareholders no later than September 13,
2022.

2. Dissenter's Right of Appraisal

A shareholder of the Club has the right to dissent and demand payment of the fair value of his
shares in the following instances: (a) in case any amendment to the articles of incorporation
has the effect of changing or restricting the rights of any shareholder or class of shares, or of
authorizing preferences in any respect superior to those outstanding shares of any shares or
any class, or of extending or shortening the term of corporate existence; (b) in case of sale,
lease, exchange, transfer, mortgage, pledge or other disposition of all or substantially all of
the corporate property and assets as provided in the Revised Corporation Code of the
Philippines (“Revised Corporation Code™); (c) in case of investment of corporate funds in
any other corporation or business or for any purpose other than the Club’s primary purpose;
and (d) in case of merger or consolidation.

The shareholder concerned must have voted against the proposed corporate action in order to
avail himself of the appraisal right. As provided in the Revised Corporation Code, the
procedure in the exercise of the appraisal right is as follows:

a. The dissenting shareholder files a written demand within thirty (30) days after the date on
which the vote was taken. Failure to file the demand within the thirty-day period
constitutes a waiver of the right. Within ten (10) days from demand, the dissenting
shareholder shall submit the stock certificate/s to the Club for notation that such shares
are dissenting shares. From the time of the demand until either the abandonment of the
corporate action in question or the purchase of the shares by the Club, all rights accruing
to the shares shall be suspended, except the shareholder’s right to receive payment of the
fair value thereof.

b. If the corporate action is implemented, the Club shall pay the shareholder the fair value of
his shares upon surrender of the corresponding certificate/s of stock. Fair value is
determined by the value of the shares of the Club on the day prior to the date on which
vote is taken on the corporate action, excluding any appreciation or depreciation in value
in anticipation of the vote on the corporate action.



c. If the fair value is not determined within sixty (60) days from the date of the vote, it will
be determined by three (3) disinterested persons (one chosen by the Club, another chosen
by the shareholder, and the third one chosen jointly by the Club and the shareholder).
The findings of the appraisers will be final, and their award will be paid by the Club
within thirty (30) days following such award, provided the Club has sufficient
unrestricted retained earnings. Upon such payment, the shareholder shall forthwith
transfer his shares to the Club. No payment shall be made to the dissenting shareholder
unless the Club has unrestricted retained earnings.

d. If the shareholder is not paid within thirty (30) days from such award, his voting rights
shall be immediately restored.

There is no matter to be taken up at the annual meeting on October 04, 2022 which entitles a
dissenting shareholder to the exercise of the appraisal right.

3. Interest of Certain Persons in or Opposition to Matters to be Acted Upon

No director or executive officer of the Club or nominee for election as such director or officer
has any substantial interest, direct or indirect, in any matter to be acted upon at the annual
shareholders’ meeting, other than election to office. Likewise, none of the directors has
informed the Club of his opposition to any matter to be taken up at the meeting.

B. CONTROL AND COMPENSATION INFORMATION

4. Voting Securities and Principal Holders Thereof

(a) The total number of shares outstanding is 4,600 common shares. Shareholders are
entitled to cumulative voting in the election of the Board of Directors, as provided
by the Revised Corporation Code. Each common share of stock is entitled to one
vote.

(b) The record date for purposes of determining the stockholders entitled to vote is
August 29, 2022.

(c) Consistent with the provisions of the Revised Corporation Code, a shareholder
may vote such number of shares for as many persons as there are directors to be
elected. He may cumulate said shares and give one candidate as many votes as
the number of directors to be elected multiplied by the number of his shares shall
equal, or he may distribute them on the same principle among as many candidates
as he shall see fit: Provided, That the total number of votes cast by him shall not
exceed the number of shares owned by him as shown in the books of the Club
multiplied by the whole number of directors to be elected. The shareholder must
be a shareholder of record as of August 29, 2022 to be able to exercise cumulative
voting rights.

(d) Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management

Security Ownership of Record and Beneficial Owners of more than five percent (5%) as of
August 03, 2022 is as follows:



Name/ Address of

Title of > | Amount and Nature Citizenshi % of
Classof | Record/Beneficial of Record/Beneficial P| ownership
Securities | Owner/Relationship with Issuer Ownership

Filinvest Alabang, Inc. (“FAI")*
Common | (Majority shareholder of the Club) 2,593 (R) Filipino 56.37%

Vector One Building, Northgate
Cyberzone, Filinvest City,
Alabang, Muntinlupa City

Except as stated above, the Board and Management of the Club have no knowledge of any
person who, as of date of this Information Statement, is directly or indirectly the beneficial
owner of more than 5% of the Club’s outstanding shares of common stock or who has voting
power or investment power with respect to shares comprising more than 5% of the Club’s
outstanding common stock.

Security ownership of directors and executive officers as of August 03, 2022 is as follows:

Title of
Class of
Securities

Name

Citizenship

Amount and
Nature of
Beneficial
Ownership

% of
Ownership

Common

Efren C. Gutierrez

c/o 1410 Laguna Heights Drive,
Filinvest Corporate City, Alabang,
Muntinlupa City

Filipino

1R)

Common

Catherine A. llagan

c/o 1410 Laguna Heights Drive,
Filinvest Corporate City, Alabang,
Muntinlupa City

Filipino

1(R)

Common

Francis Nathaniel C. Gotianun
c/o 1410 Laguna Heights Drive,
Filinvest Corporate City, Alabang,
Muntinlupa City

Filipino

1R)

Common

Andrew Gerard D. Gotianun |11
c/o 1410 Laguna Heights Drive,
Filinvest Corporate City, Alabang,
Muntinlupa City

Filipino

1R)

Common

Manolito F. Gonzales

c/o 1410 Laguna Heights Drive,
Filinvest Corporate City, Alabang,
Muntinlupa City

Filipino

1 (R)

Common

Joaquin P. Roa

c/o 1410 Laguna Heights Drive,
Filinvest Corporate City, Alabang,
Muntinlupa City

Filipino

1(R)

Common

Josephine L. Lagdameo

Filipino

1(R)

L FAl is a domestic corporation majority-owned by Filinvest Development Corporation and Filinvest Land, Inc., both with principal office in Metro
Manila. Ms. Catherine A. llagan, or in her absence, Mr. Francis Nathaniel C. Gotianun or Mr. Andrew Gerard D. Gotianun Il or the Chairman of
the meeting is appointed as the proxy of FAI, authorized to vote all shares of FAl in TPCCI at its 2021 annual shareholders’ meeting.




c/o 1410 Laguna Heights Drive,
Filinvest Corporate City, Alabang,
Muntinlupa City

N/A Ana Venus A. Mejia Filipino N/A -
c/o 1410 Laguna Heights Drive,
Filinvest Corporate City, Alabang,
Muntinlupa City

N/A Hans Rudolf Neukom Swiss N/A -
c/o 1410 Laguna Heights Drive,
Filinvest Corporate City, Alabang,
Muntinlupa City

N/A Katrina O. Clemente-Lua Filipino N/A -
c/o 1410 Laguna Heights Drive,
Filinvest Corporate City, Alabang,
Muntinlupa City

Total ownership of all directors and officers as a group is 0.17%.

No person holds more than 5% of the common stock under a voting trust or similar
agreement.

There has been no change in control of the Club since the beginning of its last fiscal year.

5. Directors and Principal Officers

(a) The Members of the Board shall serve for a term of one (1) year until their successors
shall have been duly elected and qualified. The business experience of the directors and
officers of the Club named below covers at least the past five (5) years. The following are
the qualifications of incumbent directors, and executive officers of the Club:

1. EFREN C. GUTIERREZ — CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD

Atty. Gutierrez, 86, Filipino, is also a member of the Board of Directors of Filinvest
Land, Inc. (“FLI”). He served as the President of FAI from 1999 to 2005. He obtained his
Bachelor of Laws degree from the University of the Philippines. Atty. Gutierrez has been
a director of the Club since its incorporation in 2000 and he was first elected as Chairman
in 2015.

2. FRANCIS NATHANIEL C. GOTIANUN — PRESIDENT

Mr. Gotianun, 38, Filipino, is also the Senior Vice-President of Filinvest Hospitality
Corporation, a subsidiary of Filinvest Development Corporation (“FDC”), the primary
role of which is to evaluate, plan, develop and optimize current and potential hospitality
investments of the Filinvest Group. He is also a member of the Board of Directors of FLI,
FDC and Filinvest REIT Corp. Prior to joining Filinvest, he worked with Teletech as
Head of Country Support Services. He obtained his Bachelor’s Degree in Commerce
from the University of Virginia in 2005 and his Master’s Degree in Business
Administration in IESE Business School — University of Navarra in 2010. Mr. Gotianun
was first elected as a director of the Club in 2015.




3. CATHERINE A. ILAGAN - DIRECTOR

Ms. llagan, 52, Filipino, is the President and Chief Operating Officer of FAI. She is also
the President of Filinvest Corporate City Association, Inc. Prior to joining Filinvest, she
worked with Arthaland Corporation as Senior Vice President. She obtained her Master’s
Degree in Business Administration from the Asian Institute of Management in 1993. Ms.
Ilagan has been a director of the Club since 2014.

4. ANDREW GERARD D. GOTIANUN |1l - DIRECTOR

Mr. Gotianun 111, 46, Filipino, is the Vice President for Supply Chain Management of the
Filinvest Group. Prior to that, he was the Senior Assistant Vice President for Purchasing
of the Filinvest Group, and Special Assistant to the President from May 2008 until
January 2011. Mr. Gotianun III obtained his Bachelor’s Degree in Business
Administration from Concordia University at Irvine California, USA. He has been a
director of the Club since 2017.

5. MANOLITO F. GONZALES — INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

Mr. Gonzales, 75, Filipino, is the President of Rnuable Energy Corporation from 2013 to
present, Board Member of the Shang Grand Tower Condominium Corporation in 2007 to
present and Board Member of the Foundation of Our Lady of Peace Mission since 1989.
He was a member of the Club since 2001 and was first elected as Independent Director of
the Club in 2015.

6. JOAQUIN P. ROA — INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

Mr. Roa, 66, Filipino, is a licensed real estate broker and has held management positions
in various corporations in the Philippines and Vietnam. He served as Senior Vice
President of Grepalife from 1999 to 2002, Vice President/General Manager of Vietnam
Motors from 1992 to 1999, and Vice President - Marketing of Philippine Fuji Xerox
from 1980 to 1992. He obtained his Bachelor of Science in Electrical Engineering degree
from the University of the Philippines. He has been a member of the Club since 2001.
He was first elected as Independent Director of the Club in 2018.

7. JOSEPHINE L. LAGDAMEO - INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

Ms. Lagdameo, 56, Filipino, was among the pioneer team of The Palms Country Club,
Inc. and was Membership Manager from 2000 to 2004. She was with the Rustan Group of
Companies as Corporate Sales Manager of Rustan Commercial Corp. from 1988 to 1995,
and Royal Duty Free Shops as Institutional Sales Manager from 1995 to 2000. She was
Deputy Director for Sales of Discovery Primea Residences from 2008 to 2018. She is a
member of the Assumption Alumnae Association and served on the Board of Trustees
from 2009 to 2016. She obtained her Bachelor of Arts in Philippine Studies degree from
the University of the Philippines. She has been a member of the Club, Inc. since 2001.

8. ANA VENUS A. MEJIA — TREASURER and COMPLIANCE OFFICER

Ms. Mejia, 56, Filipino, has been with the Filinvest Group of Companies (“Group”) for
26 years, joining in 1996 as Assistant Controller of FDC and has served the Group in



various capacities. At present, she is the Executive Vice President, Treasurer and Chief
Finance Officer of FLI. She was appointed as Treasurer of the Club in 2012. Prior to
joining Filinvest, she worked with Shopping Center Management Corp. and Sycip,
Gorres, Velayo & Company. She is a Certified Public Accountant and a Magna Cum
Laude graduate of the Pamantasan ng Lungsod ng Maynila. She obtained her Masters
Degree in Business Administration from Kellogg School of Management at Northwestern
University and School of Business and Management at the Hong Kong University of
Science and Technology.

9. HANS RUDOLF NEUKOM — GENERAL MANAGER

Mr. Neukom, 58, Swiss, was the Executive Chef of the American Club Shanghai in
China. He has been working in the food industry for almost thirty four (34) years now
since the start of his apprenticeship and spent most of his culinary years in Asia. He was
appointed as the Executive Chef of the Club in 2002 and as General Manager in 2010.

101. KATRINA O. CLEMENTE-LUA — ASSISTANT CORPORATE SECRETARY

Ms. Clemente-Lua, 38, Filipino, was appointed as the Assistant Corporate Secretary of the
Club on 27 September 2021. She is concurrently Assistant Corporate Secretary and Corporate
Information Officer of Filinvest Land, Inc.; Filinvest Development Corporation; and Filinvest
REIT Corp. Prior to joining Filinvest, she served as the Legal Counsel of Philippine Stratbase
Consultancy, Inc. and Executive Director of Stratbase ADR Institute. She was previously an
associate of Carag Jamora Somera & Villareal Law Offices as well as Senior Corporate
Affairs Officer of Anchor Land Holdings. She obtained her Bachelor of Arts degree in Legal
Management from De La Salle University and her Juris Doctor degree from Ateneo de
Manila University.

A Certification that none of the above-named directors and officers works in the
government is attached herein as Annex “A”.

Board Committees and Executive Officers

The Club, pursuant to its Revised Manual of Corporate Governance, has established four (4)
Board committees namely, the Executive Committee, Corporate Governance Committee,
Audit & Risk Management Oversight Committee and Compensation Committee. The
members of these committees are as follows:

Executive Committee
Chairman: Francis Nathaniel C. Gotianun
Members: Efren C. Gutierrez
Catherine A. llagan
Andrew Gerard D. Gotianun |1
Hans Rudolf Neukom

Corporate Governance Committee
Chairman: Manolito F. Gonzales*
Members: Efren C. Gutierrez
Francis Nathaniel C. Gotianun
Josephine L. Lagdameo*



Joaquin P. Roa*

Audit & Risk Management Oversight Committee
Chairman: Manolito F. Gonzales*
Members: Efren C. Gutierrez

Joan P. Roa*

Compensation Committe
Chairman: Andrew Gerard D. Gotianun 111
Members: Francis Nathaniel C. Gotianun
Efren C. Gutierrez
Manolito F. Gonzales*

* Independent Director

Executive officers of the Club are appointed or elected annually by the Board of Directors,
typically at its first meeting following the annual meeting of shareholders, each to hold office
until the corresponding meeting of the Board of Directors in the next year or until a successor
shall have been duly appointed or elected, and qualified.

(a) (i) Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

The Club has entered into various transactions with related parties. Parties are considered to
be related if one party has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the other party in
making financial and operating decisions or the parties are subject to common control or
common significant influence (referred to as affiliates). Related parties may be individuals or
corporate entities.

Transactions entered into by the Club with related parties have terms equivalent to the
transactions entered into with third parties.

The significant related-party transactions of the Club are the following:

a) The Club has trade receivables from its affiliates as members of the Club for which it bills
monthly membership dues and use of facilities. These affiliates include entities affiliated
with FAI, the developer.

b) The Club maintains cash in bank account with EastWest Banking Corporation (“EWBC”),
a bank affiliated with FAI. Cash in banks earn interest at the prevailing market rates.

c) The Club has obtained and made various advances for maintenance, utilities, payroll, and
other expenses from and to FAI, its developer. The outstanding balances are presented
under “Due to related parties” in the statements of financial position.

The details of the account balances and transactions with related parties are provided in pages
19 to 21 of the Notes to Financial Statements which is included in the Annual Report attached
hereto as Annex “B”.

There were no other transactions during the last two (2) years, or proposed transactions, to
which the Club was or is to be a party, in which any director or executive officer of the Club,



any nominee for election as such director or executive officer, any security holder or any
member of the immediate family of any of the foregoing persons, had or is to have a direct or
indirect material interest.

(a) (iii) Election of the Members of the Board

There will be an election of the members of the Board during the annual shareholders’
meeting. The shareholders of the Club may nominate individuals to be members of the Board
of Directors. The deadline for submission of nominees is on September 01, 2022. All
nominations for directors, including the independent directors, shall be addressed to the
following:

THE NOMINATION COMMITTEE
c/o THE OFFICE OF THE CORPORATE SECRETARY
The Palms Country Club, Inc.
1410 Laguna Heights Drive
Filinvest City, Alabang, Muntinlupa City

and signed by the nominating shareholder/s together with the acceptance and conformity by
the nominees. All nominations should include (i) the curriculum vitae of the nominee, (ii) a
statement that the nominee has all the qualifications and none of the disqualifications, (iii)
information on the relationship of the nominee to the shareholder submitting the nomination,
and (iv) all relevant information about the nominee’s qualifications.

The Corporate Governance Committee, acting as the Nomination Committee, created under
the Club’s Revised Manual on Corporate Governance endorses the nominees to the Board of

Directors for election at the upcoming annual shareholders’ meeting, in accordance with the
qualifications and disqualifications set forth in the Manual as follows:

Qualifications
(1) Holder of at least one (1) share of stock of the Club;

(2) He shall be at least a college graduate or have sufficient experience in
managing the business to substitute for such formal education;

(3) He shall be at least twenty-one (21) years old;
(4) He shall have proven to possess integrity and probity; and

(5) He shall be assiduous.

Permanent Disqualifications

The following shall be permanently disqualified for election as director:

(1) Any person convicted by final judgment or order by a competent judicial
or administrative body of any crime that (i) involves the purchase or sale
of securities, as defined in the Securities Regulation Code; (ii) arises out of
the person’s conduct as an underwriter, broker, dealer, investment adviser,

10



@)

(3)

(4)

()

principal, distributor, mutual fund dealer, futures commission merchant,
commodity trading advisor, or floor broker; or (iii) arises out of his
fiduciary relationship with a bank, quasi-bank, trust company, investment
house or as an affiliated person of any of them;

Any person who, by reason of misconduct, after hearing, is permanently
enjoined by a final judgment or order of the Securities and Exchange
Commission (“Commission”) or any court or administrative body of
competent jurisdiction from: (i) acting as underwriter, broker, dealer,
investment adviser, principal distributor, mutual fund dealer, futures
commission merchant, commodity trading advisor, or floor broker; (ii)
acting as director or officer of a bank, quasi-bank, trust company,
investment house, or investment company; (iii) engaging in or continuing
any conduct or practice in any of the capacities mentioned in above, or
willfully violating the laws that govern securities and banking activities.

The disqualification shall also apply if such person is currently the subject
of an order of the Commission or any court or administrative body
denying, revoking or suspending any registration, license or permit issued
to him under the Revised Corporation Code, Securities Regulation Code or
any other law administered by the Commission or Bangko Sentral ng
Pilipinas (BSP), or under any rule or regulation issued by the Commission
or BSP, or has otherwise been restrained to engage in any activity
involving securities and banking; or such person is currently the subject of
an effective order of a self-regulatory organization suspending or expelling
him from membership, participation or association with a member or
participant of the organization;

Any person convicted by final judgment or order by a court or competent
administrative body of an offense involving moral turpitude, fraud,
embezzlement, theft, estafa, counterfeiting, misappropriation, forgery,
bribery, false affirmation, perjury or other fraudulent acts;

Any person who has been adjudged by final judgment or order of the
Commission, court, or competent administrative body to have willfully
violated, or willfully aided, abetted, counseled, induced or procured the
violation of any provision of the Revised Corporation Code, Securities
Regulation Code or any other law administered by the Commission or
BSP, or any of its rule, regulation or order;

Any person judicially declared as insolvent;

(6) Any person found guilty by final judgment or order of a foreign court or

(7)

equivalent financial regulatory authority of acts, violations or misconduct
similar to any of the acts, violations or misconduct enumerated in sub-
paragraphs (1) to (5) above;

Any person who has been convicted by final judgment of an offense
punishable by imprisonment for more than six (6) years, or a violation of

11



the Revised Corporation Code committed within five (5) years prior to the
date of his election or appointment; and

(8) All other grounds for disqualification under the Articles of Incorporation
and By-Laws of the Club.

Temporary Disqualifications

The following shall be grounds for the temporary disqualification of a director:

(1) Refusal to fully disclose the extent of his business interest as required
under the Securities Regulation Code and its Implementing Rules and
Regulations. This disqualification shall be in effect as long as his refusal
persists;

(2) Absence or non-participation for whatever reason/s for more than fifty
percent (50%) of all meetings, both regular and special, of the Board of
Directors during his incumbency, or any twelve (12)-month period during
said incumbency. This disqualification applies for purposes of the
succeeding election;

(3) Dismissal/termination from directorship in a listed corporation for cause.
This disqualification shall be in effect until he has cleared himself of any
involvement in the alleged irregularity;

(4) Being under preventive suspension by the Club;

(5) If the beneficial equity of an independent director in the corporation or its
subsidiaries and affiliates exceeds two percent (2%) of its subscribed
capital stock;

(6) If the independent director becomes an officer or employee of the Club, he
shall be automatically disqualified from being an independent director;

(7) Conviction that has not yet become final referred to in the grounds for the
disqualification of directors.

Independent Directors

A shareholder may nominate individuals to be independent directors, taking into account the
following guidelines:

A. “Independent director” means a person who, apart from his fees and shareholdings,
is independent of management and free from any business or other relationship
which could, or could reasonably be perceived to, materially interfere with his
exercise of independent judgment in carrying out his responsibilities as a director in
any corporation that meets the requirements of Section 17.2 of the Securities
Regulation Code and includes, among others, any person who:

I. Isnot, or has not been a senior officer or employee of the covered
Corporation unless there has been a change in the controlling ownership
of the corporation;

12



ii.  Is not, and has not been in the two (2) years immediately preceding the
election, a director of the covered Corporation; a director, officer,
employee of the covered Corporation's subsidiaries, associates, affiliates
or related companies; or a director, officer, employee of the covered
Corporation's substantial shareholders and its related companies;

iii.  Has not been appointed in the covered Corporation, its subsidiaries,
associates, affiliates or related companies as Chairperson "Emeritus,” "Ex-
Officio" Directors/Officers or Members of any Advisory Board, or
otherwise appointed in a capacity to assist the Board in the performance of
its duties and responsibilities within two (2) years immediately preceding
his election;

iv. Is not an owner of more than two percent (2%) of the outstanding shares
of the covered Corporation, its subsidiaries, associates, affiliates or related
companies;

v. Isnot a relative of a director, officer, or substantial shareholder of the
covered Corporation or any of its related companies or of any of its
substantial shareholders. For this purpose, relatives include spouse, parent,
child, brother, sister and the spouse of such child, brother or sister;

vi. Is not acting as a nominee or representative of any director of the covered
Corporation or any of its related companies; g. Is not a securities broker-
dealer of listed companies and registered issuers of securities. "Securities
broker- dealer"” refers to any person holding any office of trust and
responsibility in a broker-dealer firm, which includes, among others, a
director, officer, principal shareholder, nominee of the firm to the
Exchange, an associated person or salesman, and an authorized clerk of
the broker or dealer;

vii.  Is not retained, either in his personal capacity or through a firm, as a
professional adviser, auditor, consultant, agent or counsel of the covered
Corporation, any of its related companies or substantial shareholder, or is
otherwise independent of Management and free from any business or
other relationship within the two (2] years immediately preceding the date
of his election;

viii.  Does not engage or has not engaged, whether by himself or with other
persons or through a firm of which he is a partner, director or substantial
shareholder, in any transaction with the covered Corporation or any of its
related companies or substantial shareholders, other than such transactions
that are conducted at arm’s length and could not materially interfere with
or influence the exercise of his independent judgment within the two (2)
years immediately preceding the date of his election;

iX. Is not affiliated with any non-profit organization that receives significant
funding from the covered Corporation or any of its related companies or
substantial shareholders; and

X. Is not employed as an executive officer of another Corporation where any
of the covered Corporation's executives serve as directors.

B. When used in relation to the Club subject to the requirements above:

13



i. Related company means another company which is: (a) its holding company,
(b) its subsidiary, or (c) a subsidiary of its holding company; and

ii. Substantial shareholder means any person who is directly or indirectly the
beneficial owner of more than ten percent (10%) of any class of its equity
security.

C. An independent director shall have the following qualifications:
i.  He shall have at least one (1) share of stock of the Club;

ii.  He shall be at least a college graduate or he shall have been engaged in or
exposed to the business of the Club for at least five (5) years;

iii.  He shall possess integrity/probity; and
iv.  He shall be assiduous.

D. An independent director shall be disqualified during his tenure under the following
instances or causes:

I. He becomes an officer or employee of the Club, or becomes any of the
persons enumerated under letter (A) hereof;

ii. His beneficial security ownership exceeds 10% of the outstanding capital
stock of the Club;

ii. He fails, without any justifiable cause, to attend at least 50% of the total
number of board meetings during his incumbency unless such absences are
due to grave illness or death of an immediate family;

v. If he becomes disqualified under any of the grounds stated in the Club’s
Revised Manual on Corporate Governance.

E. Pursuant to SEC Memorandum Circular No. 9, Series of 2011, as amended by SEC
Memorandum Circular No. 04, Series of 2017, the following additional guidelines
shall be observed in the qualification of individuals to serve as independent directors:

I There shall be no limit in the number of covered companies that a person
may be elected as independent director, except in business conglomerates
where an independent director can be elected to only five (5) companies of
the conglomerate, i.e., parent company, subsidiary or affiliate;

ii. The independent director shall serve for a maximum cumulative term of
nine (9) years, after which the independent director shall be perpetually
barred from re-election as such in the same company, but may continue to
qualify as non-independent director;

iii. In the instance that a company wants to retain an independent director who
has served for nine (9) years, the Board should provide meritorious
justification/s and seek shareholders’ approval during the annual
shareholders’ meeting; and

iv. The reckoning of the cumulative nine-year term is from 2012.
The Corporate Governance Committee, acting as the Nomination Committee, receives

nominations for independent directors as may be submitted by the shareholders. After the
deadline for the submission thereof, the Corporate Governance Committee shall meet to
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consider the qualifications as well as grounds for disqualification, if any, of the nominees
based on the criteria set forth in the Club’s Revised Manual on Corporate Governance and
Rule 38 of the Securities Regulation Code. All nominations shall be signed by the nominating
shareholders together with the acceptance and conformity by the would-be nominees. The
Corporate Governance Committee shall then prepare a Final List of Candidates enumerating
the nominees who passed the screening. The name of the person or group of persons who
recommends nominees as independent directors shall be disclosed along with his or their
relationship with such nominees.

Only nominees whose names appear on the Final List of Candidates shall be eligible for
election as independent directors. No other nomination shall be entertained after the Final
List of Candidates shall have been prepared. No further nomination shall be entertained or
allowed on the floor during the annual meeting.

The conduct of the election of independent directors shall be made in accordance with the
standard election procedures of the Club and its By-Laws. It shall be the responsibility of the
Chairman of the meeting to inform all shareholders in attendance of the mandatory
requirement of electing independent directors. He shall ensure that independent directors are
elected during the annual meeting. Specific slots for independent directors shall not be filled
up by unqualified nominees. In case of failure of election for independent directors, the
Chairman of the Meeting shall call a separate election during the same meeting to fill up the
vacancy.

(a) (iv) Other Significant Employees

The Club considers all its employees as significant to the growth of the Club.

(a) (v) Family Relationships

The Club is majority-owned by FAI. Mr. Francis Nathaniel C. Gotianun and Mr. Andrew
Gerard D. Gotianun |11, both Directors of the Club, are cousins.

Other than the foregoing, none of the remaining directors or executive officers is related,
whether by consanguinity or affinity, with the others.

(@) (vi) Involvement in Certain Legal Proceedings

The Club is not aware of any legal proceedings where its directors or executive officers have
been impleaded in their capacity as directors or executive officers of the Club.

The Club is not aware of the occurrence of any of the following events within the past five
(5) years up to the date of this information statement: (a) any bankruptcy petition filed by or
against any business in which any of its directors or officers was a general partner or officer
either at the time of the bankruptcy or within two (2) years prior to that time; (b) any
conviction by final judgment in a criminal proceeding, domestic or foreign, of, or any
criminal proceeding, domestic or foreign, pending against, any of its directors or officers in
his capacity as such director or officer; (c) any order, judgment or decree, not subsequently
reversed, suspended or vacated, of any court of competent jurisdiction, domestic or foreign,
permanently or temporarily enjoining, barring, suspending or otherwise limiting the
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involvement of any of its directors or officers in any type of business, securities, commodities
or banking activities, and (d) any finding by a domestic or foreign court of competent
jurisdiction (in a civil action), the Securities and Exchange Commission or comparable
foreign body, or a domestic or foreign exchange or electronic marketplace or self-regulatory
organization that any of its directors or officers has violated a securities or commaodities law,
and the judgment has not been reversed, suspended or vacated, which occurred during the
past five years.

6. Compensation of Directors and Executive Officers

(a)(i) Summary Compensation Table (in Pesos)

(a) (b) (c) (d) (e)
Name and Principal Position Year Salary (P) Bo | Other Annual TOTAL
nus | Compensation
(P)
Efren C. Gutierrez n/a n/a n/a n/a
Chairman
Francis Nathaniel C. Gotianun n/a n/a n/a n/a
President and CEO
Andrew Gerard D. Gotianun |11 n/a n/a n/a n/a
Director
Catherine A. llagan n/a n/a n/a n/a
Director
Manolito F. Gonzales n/a n/a n/a n/a
Independent Director
Joaquin P. Roa n/a n/a n/a n/a
Independent Director
Josephine L. Lagdameo n/a n/a n/a n/a
Independent Director
All other officers and directors | 2022- | 7.1 Million - 7.1 Million
as a group unnamed Est.
2021 | 7.05 Million - 7.05 Million
2020 | 7.02 Million 7.02 Million

(a)(ii) Compensation as Directors

The directors of the Club received no per diem, remuneration or compensation in their
capacity as such for the years 2006 to 2021. There is no employment contract or contracts
relative to the payment of executive compensation to the directors of the Club to date,
whether directly or indirectly.

(a)(iii) No Action to be Taken on Bonus, Profit Sharing, Warrants, Etc.

There is no action to be taken at the annual meeting of the shareholders on October 04, 2022,
with respect to any bonus, profit sharing or other compensation plan, contract or arrangement,
and pension or retirement plan, in which any director, nominee for election as a director, or
executive officer of the Club will participate. Neither is there any proposed grant or extension
to any such person of any option, warrant or right to purchase any securities of the Club.
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7. Independent Public Accountants

Starting calendar year 2005, the auditing firm of Sycip Gorres Velayo & Co. (SGV) is the
appointed independent auditor of the Club. There have been no disagreements with SGV on
any matter of accounting principle or practice, financial statement disclosure, or auditing
scope or procedure. Representatives of SGV are expected to be present at the annual meeting
and they will have the opportunity to make a statement if they desire to do so and are
expected to be available to respond to appropriate questions.

Sycip Gorres Velayo & Co. (SGV) is being recommended for re-appointment as external
auditor for the year 2022.

The 2021 audit of the Club is in compliance with paragraph (3)(b)(ix) of SRC Rule 68, as
amended, which provides that the external auditor should be rotated, or the handling partner
changed, every five (5) years or earlier. Mr. Michael C. Sabado has been designated as its
engagement partner starting CY 2018. Thus, Mr. Sabado is qualified to act as such until the
year 2023. The representatives of SGV shall be present at the annual meeting where they will
have the opportunity to make a statement if they desire to do so. They are expected to be
available to respond to appropriate questions at the meeting.

Audit Fees
a) The following are the audit fees for the last two (2) fiscal years for professional services
rendered by SGV which amounts indicated are inclusive of out-of-pocket expenses plus 12%

VAT:

1. December 31, 2020 - Php291,860.80
2. December 31, 2021 - Php291,860.80

b) Tax fees

The Club has not engaged any external auditor for tax accounting, compliance, advice,
planning and any other form of tax service for the last two (2) fiscal years.

c) All Other Fees

The Club has not engaged any external auditor for the last two (2) fiscal years for products
and services other than the services reported under item (a).

8. Compensation Plans

There will be no actions to be taken during the annual meeting with respect to any plan
pursuant to which cash or non-cash compensation may be paid or distributed.

C. ISSUANCE AND EXCHANGE OF SECURITIES

9. Authorization or Issuance of Securities

There will be no action to be taken during the meeting with respect to authorization or
issuance of securities other than for exchange.
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10. Modification or Exchange of Securities

No action will be taken at the meeting that will result in modification or exchange of
securities.

11. Financial and Other Information

(a) Information Required
(1) Financial Statements
The Club’s Annual Report with attached Statement of Management’s Responsibility and
Audited Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2021 is attached hereto as

Annex “B” to form an integral part hereof.

The Interim/Unaudited Financial Statements of the Club for the first and second quarters of
2022 are attached hereto as Annexes “C-1” and “C-2”, respectively.

(2) Management Report

The Brief Discussion on the Nature and Business of the Club and the Management’s
Discussion and Analysis or Plan of Operations of the Club is attached hereto as Annex “D”.

D. OTHER MATTERS

12. Action With Respect To Reports

The Club’s Audited Financial Statements for the year ended 2021 will be submitted to the
shareholders for ratification.

13. No Action to be Taken on Mergers, Consolidations, Acquisitions and Similar
Matters

No action will be taken at the annual shareholders’ meeting with respect to any merger or
consolidation involving the Club, the acquisition by the Club of any other entity, going
business or of all of the assets thereof, the sale or other transfer of all or any substantial part
of the assets of the Club, or the liquidation or dissolution of the Club.

14. No Action to be Taken on Acquisition or Disposition of Property

No action will be taken at the annual meeting with respect to any acquisition or disposition of
property by the Club requiring approval of the shareholders.

15. No Action to be Taken on Restatement of Accounts

No action will be taken at the annual meeting with respect to any restatement of any asset,
capital or surplus account of the Club.
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16. Matters Not Required To Be Submitted

Only matters which require shareholders’ approval will be taken up during the annual
meeting. No action will be taken with respect to any matter which is not required to be
submitted to a vote of security holders.

17. Amendment of Charter, By-laws or Other Documents

At the meeting of the Board of Directors on July 15, 2016, the Board of Directors
representing at least a majority of all its members approved the amendment of Article Third
of the Club’s Articles of Incorporation to change its principal office address from “Metro
Manila” to “1410 Laguna Heights Drive, Filinvest City, Alabang, Muntinlupa City”.

The above-mentioned amendment was presented at the shareholders’ meeting held on
September 27, 2021. However, the same was not submitted for approval due to insufficiency
of the required quorum which should be the presence of at least 67% of the total outstanding
shares of the Club.

The said amendments shall be submitted for shareholders’ approval during their annual
meeting on October 04, 2022.

18. Other Proposed Action

The following are the other matters to be taken up during the annual shareholders’ meeting:

a. Approval of the minutes of the annual meeting of shareholders held on September
27, 2021. The minutes of the annual meeting of the shareholders held on
September 27, 2021 is attached hereto as ;

b. Presentation of the Management Report;

c. General ratification of the acts, resolutions and proceedings of the Board of
Directors, Board Committees and the Management up to October 04, 2022;

d. Approval of the Amendment of Article Third of the Club’s Articles of
Incorporation to Change its Principal Office Address From “Metro Manila” to
“1410 Laguna Heights Drive, Filinvest City, Alabang, Muntinlupa City”

e. Election of the members of the Board of Directors to serve for 2022-2023; and
f.  Appointment of External Auditor.

The above items are part of the agenda of the annual meeting of the Club to be held on
October 04, 2022.

The audited financial statements refer to financial operations, balance sheet and income
statement of the Club for the year ended December 31, 2021.

The general ratification of the acts of the Board, Board Committees and Management refer to
the approval by the shareholders of the resolutions passed and the matters acted upon, as the
case may be, by the Board, Board Committees and Management relating to the operations of
the Club. Following are the major resolutions approved and adopted by the Board and
Executive Committee from the date of the last annual shareholders’ meeting to date:
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a. Approval of the Audited Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2021;

b. Approval of the financial budget and major capital expenditure projects for the year
2022;

C. Approval of the date of the annual shareholders’ meeting, agenda thereof, and record
date;

d. Approval to conduct the annual shareholders’ meeting virtually and the mechanics for
voting in absentia and participation through remote communication;

e. Appointment of the officers and Board committee members of the Club for the year
2021-2022; and

f.  Appointment of authorized representatives for various Club transactions.

19. Voting Procedures

(a) Votes required for approval

The approval of the minutes of the annual shareholders’ meeting held on September 27, 2021,
ratification of the Audited Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2021,
ratification of corporate acts, and the appointment of external auditors for the year 2022 shall
be decided by a majority vote of the shareholders present in person or by proxy and entitled
to vote thereat, a quorum being present.

The approval of the amendment of Article Third of the Club’s Articles of Incorporation to
Change its Principal Office Address From “Metro Manila” to “1410 Laguna Heights Drive,
Filinvest City, Alabang, Muntinlupa City” shall be decided by 2/3 of the shareholders present
in person or by proxy and entitled to vote thereat.

In the election of the members of the Board of Directors, the candidates garnering the seven
(7) highest number of votes shall be declared elected as directors of the Club to serve as such
for the year 2022-2022.

(b) Method by which votes will be counted.

A shareholder may vote by appointing a proxy or electronically in absentia by registering at
the online web address:

https://bit.ly/palms registration

After validation, the stockholder will receive an email with instructions to access the ballot.
The ballots submitted shall then be counted by the Assistant Corporate Secretary. The results
of the voting shall be announced during the meeting.

20. Participation of Shareholders by Remote Communication

In support of the government’s efforts to contain the spread of COVID-19 and to ensure the
safety and welfare of its shareholders, directors, officers and employees, the Club will
dispense with physical attendance of shareholders at the meeting and will allow attendance
only by remote communication.
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In order for the Club to properly conduct validation procedures, stockholders who wish to
participate in the meeting via remote communication and/or vote in absentia must register at
https://bit.ly/palms_registration on or before September 20, 2022.

Details of the requirements and process are provided in Annex “F”.

21. Market for Issuer’s Commons Equity and Related Shareholder Matters

There is no public trading market for selling the shares of stock of the Club. The shares may
be issued to any person regardless of nationality, provided that at least sixty percent (60%) of
the Club’s outstanding capital stock shall be held by Filipino nationals.

Top 20 Shareholders as of August 03, 2021

NAME % of shareholdings
FILINVEST ALABANG, INC. 56.37%
SHELL PHILLIPINES EXPLORATION B.V. 0.26%
FILINVEST LAND, INC. 0.24%
ADEC DESIGNS CORPORATION 0.17%
LORENA GODOY-HURTADO 0.07%
DINESH JADWANI 0.07%
QUALITY PACKAGING CORPORATION 0.07%
RAYOMAR MANAGEMENT, INC. 0.07%
TDK PHILIPPINES CORPORATION 0.07%
JOHNSON & JOHNSON PHILIPPINES 3 0.04%
ATLANTIC GULF AND PACIFIC COMPANY OF MANILA 0.04%
FG HOLDINGS, INC. 0.04%
FLUOR DANIEL, INC.- PHIL. 0.04%
KEY LOGISTICS, INC. 0.04%
MCSI Trading Corporation 0.04%
NORVIC, INC. 0.04%
ORIENTAL SHIPMANAGEMENT COMPANY, INC. 0.04%
PRESTONSBURG DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 0.04%
FIRST ASIA VENTURE CAPITAL, INC. 0.04%
FAR EASTERN UNIVERSITY, INC. 0.04%

21. Compliance with Leading Practices on Corporate Governance

The Club is in substantial compliance with its Revised Manual for Corporate Governance as
demonstrated by the following: (a) the election of three (3) independent directors to the
Board; (b) the appointment of members of the audit & risk management oversight, corporate
governance and compensation committees; (c) the conduct of regular quarterly board
meetings and special meetings, the faithful attendance of the directors at these meetings and
their proper discharge of duties and responsibilities as such directors; (d) the submission to
the SEC of reports and disclosures required under the Securities Regulation Code; (e) the
Club’s adherence to national and local laws pertaining to its operations; and (f) the
observance of applicable accounting standards by the Club.
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There is no known material deviation from the Club’s Revised Manual on Corporate
Governance.

UNDERTAKING: The Club will provide without charge a copy of the Annual Report
to any interested shareholder upon receipt of a written request addressed to: Office of
the Corporate Secretary, The Palms Country Club, Inc., 1410 Laguna Heights Drive,
Filinest City, Alabang, Muntinlupa City
PART II
INFORMATION REQUIRED IN A PROXY FORM

The Club is not soliciting proxies.
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PART I — BUSINESS AND GENERAL INFORMATION

ITEM 1: BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT AND BUSINESS OF ISSUER

THE PALMS COUNTRY CLUB, INC. (the “Club”) Is a stock, not-for-profit corporation which was
- duly registered with the SEC on May 24, 2000 under SEC Registration No, A-2000-05129, Tts
primary purpose is to foster, conduct and promote social, business and athletic activities among
its members, with the main objective of engaging in the development, construction, maintenance,
management and operation of a recreational sports club that will provide members thereof the
use and enjoyment of facilities for indoor and outdoor sports, recreational and physical fitness
activities, restaurants, dining halls and similar facilities. No part of the income or assets of the
Club shall belong to or Inure to the benefit of any member, officer or any specific person.

As a not-for-profit corporation organized for the purposes stated above, the Club is subject to 25
% Regular Corporate Income Tax. Revenue memorandum Circular No. 35-2012 clarified the
taxability of Clubs organized and operated exclusively for pleasure, recréation and other non-profit
purposes. Accordingly, organizations that were established for recreation and other non-profit
purposes such as country clubs must pay income tax under Naticnal Internal Revenue Code

(NIRC) and VAT. The Club's gross receipts including but not limited to membership fees,

assessment dues, rental income and services fees are subject to income tax and VAT, The
Association of Non-profit Clubs, Inc, (ANPC) submitted to BIR a position paper requesting the
non-application of RMC 35-2012 on the grounds that membership dues collected from members
are used to defray the expenses of the exclusive membership clubs and should not be subject to
income tax and VAT, On September 17, 2014, ANPC filed a petition before the RTC dedaring RMC
35-2012 as invalid, unjust, oppressive, confiscatory, and in violation of due process clause of the
constitution, On August 15, 2019, the Supreme Court has ruled that membership fees, assessment
fees and other fees collected by clubs which are organized and operated exdusively for pleasure,
recreation and non-profit purposes are not subject to income and VAT.

The Club had an initial capital stock of eight (8) no par value share, consisting of seven (7)
Founder's Shares and one (1} common share. As approved by the Securities and Exchange
Commission {SEC) on November 20, 2000, the capital stock was increased 1o four thousand six
- hundred (4,600) common no par value shares divided into one thousand nine hundred seven
(1,907) Class “A” shares (including the seven (7) Founder's Shares}, two hundred fifty (250) Class
“B” shares, one hundred fifty (150) Ciass "C" shares and two thousand two hundred ninety three
(2,293) Class “D” shares (including the original one (1) common share).

The Club’s principal place of business is at 1410 Laguna Heights Drive, Filinvest Corporate City,
Alabang, Muntiniupa City.

The aperations and business of the Club are subject to ordinances; rules and regulations issued
or enacted by the ocal government of Muntiniupa City.

The Club is a private and exclusive propriety membership club. It is a comprehensive “resort-
within-the-city” club that offers a complete range of services and facilities to members. It is part
of the hospitality industry specifically operating as a family-oriented, deluxe country club located
south of Manlla. Membership is limited to those who have purchased membership shares and
have been duly prescreened by the Board of Directors.



FACILITIES:

and acilities:

Ballroom

1 Continental Restaurant / Private Rooms
Nishijin
Café Asiana

| Member's Lounge

Board Room and Functicn Rooms

Strikes Sports Bar and Restaurant
Bleacher's Juice Bar
- Pool Bar and Barbeque Area

Palms Deli

B. Health and Recreatinnal Facilities:
Spa - Sauna, Dip Pools, and Massage
Gym and Aerobics Studio

| Locker Rooms

Salon

KTV Rooms

Kid's Indoor Recreation Area

Pilates Studio
C. Sphorts Facilities:

- Resort Paol

Lap Pool

Slides & Water Feature
Putting Course
Eighi-fane Bowling Alley

» Third level baliroom ideal for
weddings and events. This can be
divided into four smaller rooms to
accommodate smail functions.

» Semi-formal dining restaurant
offering an international cuisine
with two private dining rooms.

= Restaurant offering Japanese
cuisine with a sushi bar,
teppanyaki tables and tatam|
rooms.

" = Coffee shop on the garden level

with terrace dining with a view of
the swimming pool.

= Bar and Lounge area adjacent to
the Continental restaurant.

* Board room and three private
function rooms as suitable venues
for meetings and audiovisual
presentations,

= Bar & restaurant with bowting,
billiards and KTV rooms.

= Bar adjacent the basketball court
offering refreshiments.

» Qutdoor dining area for snacks
and light meais with gazebo
barbecue areas. '

= Cakes and pastries counter at the
lobby area.

» Spa services in eight treatment
rooms, ladies’ and men's dip pools.

« Free weights and cardio-theater
gym with a second-evel stretching
and aerobics studio,

» Wet and dry changing areas,

= Hair and nail services for men and
women,

= Two karaoke television rooms at
the Strikes Sports bar and
restaurant.

* Piay and rest area with
interactive computer center,
playroom and romping area.

= One Squash Court converted
to Piates Studio

= Play pool area with jacuzzi
jets

» 25-meter lap swimming pool

= Mountain water slide

= Six-hole putting course




* Eight-lane championship

Four Tennis Courts bowling lanes
-« Two covered and two outdoor
- One Squash Court courts
* International standard squash
Two Badminton courts court
Basketball Court / Muiti-Purpose Hall = Indoor badminton courts

* Indoor basketball court
cornvertible to three
badminten and volleyball

| Billiards / Pool coutrts
* Billiard pool tabies in the
Reck Climbing bowling area

* Quidoor climbing wall

Q. Others:
Club Shop and Reception
' * Retail shop and registration

Library counter
= Library and work area

The Club has generated {otal revenue of £199.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2021,
Food and beverage, Membership dues, Sports and recreation, Club Shop and other miscellaneous
revenues contributed 44.1%, 42.8%, 3.7 and 9.4% respectively.

Alabang Country Club, Rockwell Club, and Manila Polo Club are generally the Club’s main
competitors. However, aside from these exclusive membership clubs, Palms also competes directly
in the area of banquet business with nearby hotels/condotels such as Believue Manila, Vivere
Suites, Acacia Hotel, Crimson Hotel, The Filinvest Tent, Palazzo Verde {formerly Fernbrook
Gardens) and the Somerset Alabang. Those competing with the Club for restaurant business
include the free-standing restaurants in the Alabang Town Center, Festival Mall, Westgate Center,
River Park Festival Mall, Molito and Commerce Center in Filinvest City.

The Bellevue Manila is considered to be one of the banquet competitors considering it having two
towers for accommadation, Vivere Suites has a competitive Ballroom that can accommodate 150
pax, The edge of Acacia Hotel is having two Ballrooms with 200-300pax capacity, Crimson Hotel
highlights its banquet events in its 300pax-capacity Ballroom. Palazzo Verde, on the other hand,
as a competitor continues to contribute to the decline of the Club’s wedding market due to the
romantic ambiance created by the different settings of the venue plus the Basilica inside which
could include the wedding ceremony. The Fifinvest Tent is now a venue that could accommodate
from 500 to 2,000 guests. Somerset Alabang has two function rooms which can accommodate

100 guests per function room,

The relative strengths of its hotel competitors are the fully furnished and well-stocked guestrooms
and hotel services, i.e. room service, bar lounge with regular entertainers, shuttle service to and
fro the malls. The hotels enjoy continued patronage and acquire corporate market of consecutive-
day seminars due to the additional amenities and services provided.

The Club also expanded its business with outside catering services, enabling it to service loyal
club members in their homes and other venues such as office buildings and special events place.
The tie up with The Filinvest Tent as a bigger venue allows the Clubs to cater up to 4,000 persons.

The Club offers “vaiue for money” pricing, which enables it to get a relatively substantiat share of
the banquet market. The strength of the banquet business in Alabang Country Club, Rockwell
Club and Manila Polo Club s their lower pricing level.

In order for The Club to compete effectively and efficiently with its competitors, it is necessary to
maintain the high-quality of food and beverage offerings, first-class standard of service and well
thought-out events and activities.




The Club has 149 probationary and regular employees as of December 31, 2021 and 155 as of
December 31, 2020. Out of the 149 employees, 29 have administrative functions while 120
discharge duties refated to operations. There is no coliective bargaining agreement that exists
between the management and employees. No tipping is allowed in the Ciub. Employees may not:
receive either tips or gifts from members. Service charge of 10% is being collected from E&B sales
and distributed to all probationary and regular employees every month,

¥TEM 2: PROPERTIES

The Club owns a 30,000-square meters parcel of land {the “Property”} situated at 1410 Laguna
Heights Drive, Filinvest Corporate City in Alabang, Muntinlupa City, and covered by Transfer
Certificate of Title No. 209983 issued by the Registry of Deeds for Muntinjupa City. The country
club building was constructed on the Property. The building is covered by Tax Declaration Number
£-005-08273 duly issued by the City of Muntinlupa. :

Both the Property and building are the subject of separate subscription agreements entered into
between the Club and its developer, Filinvest Alabang, Inc. (*FAI"). '

Under the terms of the Subscription Agreement dated September 14, 2000, as amended on
October 20, 2000, FATL: -

» ceded, transferred, assigned and delivered to the Club the Preperty valued at 214,000
per square meter or a total of #420,000,000, in exchange for 867 Class “A” shares,
115 Class “B” shares and 68 Class “C” shares, or a total of 1,050 shares.

= developed the Property into a world class sports and country club with facilities and
equipment necessary to operate the Club, in exchange for 1,033 Class “A” shares,
135 Class "B” shares and 82 Class “C" shares, or a totaf of 1,250 shares.

In 2004, the corresponding shares of stock were issued to FAT upon final acceptance of the
Property by the Club. And pursuant to a Subscription Agreement entered into in December 2004,
the advances of FAL for the development of the country club buiiding in the amount of R
687,693,521 were further exchanged for equity in the Club.

There is no mortgage, lien or encumbrance over the Property and the building,

There is no property being leased by the Club. Neither does the Club intend to lease any- of its
properties in the next 12 months, ’

The Club has no intention to acquire properties in the nature of capital assets in the next twelve
(12} months, except for major repairs and maintenance of some facilities in order to continue to
live up to the members’ expectations through continuous improvements, facelifts and renovations.

ITEM 3: LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

The land forms part of Lot 392 of the Muntinlupa Estate in the name of the Republic of the
Philippines and developed by FAI (the developer referred to in Note 2) into what is now known as
the Filinvest City. Lot 392 is the subject matter of Civil Case Nos. 99-075 and 99-320 for annulment
of titles and contracts, considered to be nuisance suits. In its resolution dated July 30, 2007, the
Supreme Court affirmed the dismissal of Civil Case No. 99-075 by the trial court and the Court of
Appeals. On the other hand, the trial court has required the plaintiffs in Civil Case No. 99-320 to
pay the docket fees corresponding to the value of the property subject of the case. As of December
31, 2008, the plaintiffs have not done so. Accordingly, counsel for FAJ filed in February 2009 a




“Motion to dismiss” praying that the case be dismissed with prejudice. The Motion to dismiss was
granted on November 19, 2009.

ITEM 4: SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

There were no matters submitted to a vote of security holders during the period covered by this
report. '

PART II — OPERATIONAL AND FINANCIAL INFORMATION

MARKET FOR ISSUER’S COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED STOCKHOLDERS'
MATTERS

JTEM 5:

Market Information _

‘There is no public trading market for selling the shares of stocks of the Club. FAI resells to
interested third parties the Class "A”, “B” and “C" shares of the Club it received in axchange for
the Property and the development of the country ciub structures and facilities thereon.

The Club shalt not issue shares of stock, which will reduce the stock ownership of Philippine citizens
to fess than 60% of the outstanding capital stock. No holder of any dass of shares shali have any
pre-emptive right to acquire, purchase or subscribe to any share of the club of any class.
Holders

Breakdown of the number of shares as of December 31, 2021;

Type of Shareholders ClassA| ClassB| ClassC| ClassD|  Total
Individual 1,594 1,594
Corporate ) 295 61 51 407
Developer (FAI-unsold) 18 189 99 2,293 2,599

' Total No. of Shares 1,907 250 150 2,293 4,600
Top 20 shareholders as of December 31, 2021:
Shareholders No.of % to Total
Shares Outstanding
Shares

Filinvest Alabang, Inc. ' 2,599 56.53%

Shell Philippines Exploration B.V. 12 0.26%
Filinvest Land, Inc, 11 _0.24%

Adec Designs Corporation 8 0.17%
Johnson & Johnson, Philippines 3 0.07%

Lorena Gudey-Hurtado 3 0.07%

Dinesh Jadwani 3 0.07%

Quality Packaging Corporation 3 0.07%
Rayomar Management, Inc. 3 0.07%

"TDK Philippines corporation 3 0.07 %

Atlantic guif and Pacific Company of Manila 2 0.07%




FG Holdings, Inc. 2 0.07%
Fiuor Daniel, Inc. Phil. 2 0.04%
Key Logistics, Inc. 2 0.04%
MCSI Trading Corporation 2 0.04%
Norvic, Inc. 2 0.04%
 Oriental Shipmanagement Company, Inc. 2 0.04%
Prestonburg Development corporation 2 0.04%
First Asia Venture Capital, Inc. 2 0.09%
Far Eastern University, Inc. 2 0.04%

Dividends

The Club being a not-for-profit organization will not declare any dividend.

ITEM 6: MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OR PLAN OF OPERATIONS

Discussion of the Results of Operations far 2021 vs. 2020 and 2019

The impact of the Covid-19 pandemic was very evident in the results of operations for the year
2020 and 2021 comparing to year 2019. Although there was an improvement in year 2021 due fo
easing of restrictions, the Club operations still resulted to a net loss.

The Club generated total revenue of £199.1 million for the year ended December 33, 2021
compared to £192.9 milllon in 2020 and #367.6 million in 2019. Food and Beverage revenues
increased by #3.9 million from £83.9 miifion in 2020 to R87.8 million this year. The Club allowed
the members to order food for delivery and opened some outlets but with very low patronage.
Food and beverage contributed 44.1% to the total revenue. Membership dues collected for the
year was R85.2 milfion or 42.8% of total revenues. Despite closure of the Club, membership dues
were continually charged to members. Sporis and recreations posted revenues of 87.4 million in
2021, £7.7 million in 2020 and R27.9 million in 2019, It contributed to the total club revenues of
3.7%, 4.0% and 7.5% respectively. The decrease in revenues of £.24 million in 2021 is mainly
due to cancellation of major sports events and activities, Club- Shop and other miscellaneous
- revenues was R18.7 million in 2020, R15.6 million in 2020 and £32.6 million in 2019, It

contributed 20.2% in this year's total revenues. Club Shop and other revenues include transfer
fees, assignment and re-nomination fees, revenues from party packages, equipment hires, and
sales from merchandise, among others,

Total direct cost amounting to £124.7 million reprasented 62.7% of the total revenues compared
10 62.4% or #120.3 million in 2020 and 70.2% or R#251.3 million in 2019. Total cost of Sales
percentage was 26.7% of the total revenues in 2021 compared to 25.3% in 2020. Direct payroll
cost was #34.7 million in 2021 and #38.9 in 2020 or 17.4% and 20.2% respectively. Other major
direct costs refate to utiiities, laundry and operating supplies which accounted for R24.7 miliion
or 12.4% of the total revenue for 2021 and £23.2 million or 12.0% in 2020, Banguets and special
events expenses was B5.1 million. Marketing and other expenses was R4.6 million, and other
direct expense of £1.0 million. :

The total other operating expenses excluding depreciation amounited to R57.2 million in December
31, 2021 compared to £63.3 million in 2020 and £73.3 million in 2019. Excluded in the operating
expenses is the £6.6 million lease charges of chilled water supply for the year 2021. The decrease
s attributed to the decrease in general and administrative expenses as effect of the limited
operations of the Club. The management continues to implement measures to control operating

costs.




Total depreciation expense for 2021 was ®28.7 million compared to #28.6 million in 2020 or a
decrease of R.2 million or .5%. This is because some equipment has fully depreciated this year,

There were 6 new members from 2,151 in December 31, 2620 to 2,157 in December 31, 2021.
The slow growth in the sale of shares can be atiributed to the availability of the secondary market
which is competing in the sale of fresh shares. Tota! membership dues coliected for the year was
£85.2 miliion. Management continues to implement a discount scheme where members have the
option to pay in advance twelve-month’s worth of membership dues in exchange for £3,300.00
worth of gift voucher which members can avall in any restaurant outlets in the Club.

Total Current Assets stand at R124.0 million this year compared to £139.3 million in December
31, 2020 and #169.6 million in 2019, Of the total current assets, 62.8% represented cash, 26.1%
contract receivables, .5% due from related parties, 7.7% inventories and 2.8% other current
assets. Contract receivable as of December 31, 2021 increased by 21.3% due to the increase in
members’ usage of facilities. Since the alert level 1 was implemented, members started coming
to the club. Total inventories alse increased 11by 6.7% in December 31, 2021 mainly due to
increased purchases of food and beverages.

Acquisition of property and equipment for the year ending December 31, 2021 was R22.2 million.
Major repairs were done which includes the waterproofing of Multipurpose Hall {MPH) area,
additional computers for offices, the Human Resources Information System (HRIS) project and
some kitchen equipment to name a few. The equipment and repairs are needed to maintain and
improve the quality of facilities and services available to the members.

Total current assets stood at £124.0 million while current fiabilities stood at R67.3 million. The
Club’s current ratio was at 1.83 by December 2021. To improve cash position, penalty charges
of 2% per month or 24% per annum were enforced against members with overdue accounts. In
addition, the use of the Club’s facilities and amenities is suspended with respect to members
whose accounts are overdue for 60 days or more, Quick ratio is favorable at 1.54 while solvency -
ratio is at 10.03 with total assets of R938.2 million over total fiabilities of R93.6 miffion. The Club’s.
debt ratio is strong at 0.11 with total liabilities of £93.2 million over total assets of P938.2 million.

PEFORMANCE INDICATORS:
_ Dec. 31, 2021 Dec, 31, 2020
Current Ratio 1.83 1.20
Current Assets 124.0 139.2
Current Liabilities 67.7 74.0
Quick Ratio - 1.64 _ 1.51
Cash + Accts Receivable 1116 1116
Total Current Liabilities 67.7 74,0
Solvency Ratio _ 10.03 9,52
Total Assets ' 938.2 960.0
Total Liabilities 93.2 101.0
Debt-Equity Ratio g1 12
Total Liabilities 93.2 101.0
Total Stockholders’ Equity - 845.0 859.0
Profit Margin Ratio : (.08) {(.12)
Net Income (Loss) (15.3) (25.6) '
Total Revenue ' 199.1 192.9




Events that wil trigger direct or contingent financia! obligation

There are no known events that will trigger direct or contingent financial obligation that is material
to the Club, including any default or acceleration of an obligation.

Trends or events that will impact on the company’s liquidity position

There are no major demands, commitments or uncertainties which will likely result to any cash
flow or liquidity problem in the next twelve (12) months, -

Trends or events of uncertainties that will impact on net sales or revenues or income

More than a year after the outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic, it continues to dominate the lives of
peopie all over the world, Despite the successful development of vaccines, the end of the
pandemic is not yet in sight. In April 2021, the number of cases increased in the Philippines
prompting the government to impose the necessary restrictions, The Club will continue to adapt
- and adjust its activities to allow members enjoyment of the facilities to the extent allowed under
existing quarantine rules and guidelines. The Club will also abide and fully cooperate with the
national and local government units to help curve the spread of the virus.

Significant elements of income or loss that did not arise from continuing operations

There were no significant elements of income or loss that did not arise from continuing
operations.

Material changes from January 1, 2021 to December 31, 2020 in one or more line
items in the financial statements

There were no material changes in one or more line items in the finandial statements from
January 1, 2021 to December 31, 2021,

Seasonal aspects that had a material effect on the financial condition or resuits of
operations

There were no seasonal aspect that had a material effect on the financiai condition or results of
operations for the year ended December 31, 2021.

Commitment for Capital Expenditure

In Aprit 2016 the Ciub entered into an “Efficiency Performance Contract with Engie Services
{Philippines) for the latter to operate and maintain installations that supply chiled water to the
Club. This Is a comprehensive rehabilitation of the air-conditioning system of the Club. The terms
of the agreement require that the Club make monthly fixaed payments of #246,600 exclusive of
VAT from the date of agreement until the date of completion of testing and commissioning of the
chilled water installations. The agreement further stipulates that Engie will initially shoulder the
cost of the installations for the chilled water supply owned by the Club and Engie to biil the Club
for its share of the cost of installations, Upen completion of testing and commissioning, the Club
is required to make fixed monthly payments of #622,000 exclusive of VAT, for the next ten (10)
years representing the fixed period charges of the Club for the use of the chilled water and after
which, the ownership of the remaining installations will be vested to the Club. As of December 31,
2017, the Club has paid Engie P22.5 million representing Club’s share in the cost of installations,
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On February 28, 2017, Engie has completed the testing and commissioning of the instailation. On
March 18, 2017, full operation commenced and Engle started billing the Club the fixed charges.
~ As of December 31, 2021, the dlub has paid a total of £34.8 milion equivalent to fifty six (56)
- months instaliment.

ITEM 7: FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The management of the Club is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements for the years ended December 31, 2021, and the years ended December 31,
2020 and December 31, 2019, The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
prescribed financial reporting framework indicated therein. This responsibility inciudes designing
and implementing internal controls relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, selecting and
applying appropriate accounting policies, and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in
the circumstances,

- The Board of Directors reviews and approves the financial statements of the Club.

Please refer to attached audited financial statements and the accompanying notes and schedules
to support the financial statements as of December 31, 2021 referrad to as Annex A hereof,

Related Party Transaction

The Club has entered into various transactions with related parties. Parties are considered to be
related if one party has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the other party in making
financial and operating decisions or the parties are subject to common control or common
significant influence (referred to as affiliates). Related parties may be Individual of corporate
entities.

Transactions entered into by the Club with related parties are at arm’s length and have terms
equivalent to the transactions entered into with third parties.

Significant related party transactions follows:

a) The club has trade recelvables from its affiliates as members of the Club for which it bilis
monthly membership dues and use of faclities, These affiliates include entities affiliated
with FAI, the developer.

~ b) The Club maintains cash in bank account with EastWest Banking Corporation (EWBC), a
bank affiliated with FALL Cash in banks earn interest at the prevailing market rates.

¢} -The Club has trade payables for FCC maintenance and utilities to FAL its deveioper,
The Club has no subsidiaries.

Long-term debt

As of December 31, 2021, the Club has an outstanding lease lizbility of R16.74 million payable
untit March 2027 with fixed monthly payments of 2622,000 exclusive of VAT to Engie Services

(Philippines). The contract agreement is for operating and maintenance of installations that _

supplies chilled water supply to the Club.




ITEM 8: CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING
AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURES

There are no changes in and disagreements with accountants as to any matter of accounting
principles or practices, financial statement disclosure, or auditing scope or procedure.

External Audit Fees and Services

As approved by the Board of Directors, the Club engaged the services of auditing firm Sycip Gorres
Velayo & Co., with SEC accreditation no, 0077-A, starting calendar year 2005 to December 2021.

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financlal statements in
accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards. The auditor’s responsibility is to express
an opinion on the financial statements based on the audit conducted in accordance with Philippine
Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that the auditor should comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement. The auditor also evaluates the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

There have been no disagreements with SGV on any matter of accounting principle or practice,
~ financial statement disclosure, or auditing scope or procedure. Representatives of SGV are
expected to be present at the annual meeting and they will have the opportunity to make statement
if they desire to do so and are expected to be available to respond to appropriate questions.

The 2021 audit of the Club is in compliance with paragraph (3)(b)(ix) of SRC Rule 68, as amended,
- which provides that the external auditor should be rotated, or the handling partner changed, every

five (5) years or earlier.

The Audited Financial Statement ended December 31, 2021 was signed by Mr. Michael C. Sabado,
a partner in Sycip Gorres Velayo & Co. He holds a CPA certificate No. 89338, SEC Accreditation No.
0664-AR-4 (Group A) which is valid until November 16, 2022 and BIR Accreditation No. 08-001998-
073-2020 valld untit December 2, 2023

Audit Fees

a} Audit fees for the last two (2) fiscal years for professional services rendered by Sycip
Gorres Velayo & Co. Amount indicated are inclusive of out of pocket expenses plus 12%
Vat.

1. December 31, 2021 PHP 291,860.80
2. December 31, 2020 °~  PHP 291,860.80

b} Tax Fees
The Club has not engaged any external auditor for tax accounting, compliance, advice,

planning and any other form of tax service for the last two (2) fiscal years.
c) Aliother Fees

The Club has not engaged any external auditor for the last two (2) fiscal years for products
and services other than the services reported under item (a).
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PART III - CONTROL AND COMPENSATION INFORMATION

ITEM 9: DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS
1. EFREN C. GUTIERREZ — CHAIRMAN

Atty. Gutierrez, 86, Filipino, is also a member of the Board of Directors of Filinvest Land, Inc.
(FLI). He served as the President of FAI from 1999 to 2005. He obtained his Bachelor of Laws
degree from the University of the Philippines. Atty. Gutierrez has been a director of the Club
sihce its incorporation in 2000 and was first elected as Chairman in 2015,

2. FRANCIS NATHANIEL C, GOTIANUN ~ PRESIDENT & CEOQ

Mr. Gotianun, 38, Filipino, is also the Senior Vice President of Filinvest Hospitality Corporation,
a subsidiary of Filinvest Development Corporation (FDC), the primary purpose of which is to
evaluate, pian, develop and optimize current and potential hospitality Investments of the
Filinvest Group, He is also a member of the Board of Directors of FLI and in other companies
within the Filinvest Group. He concurrently serves as Chairman of Pro-excel Property
Managers, Inc. and Pro-Office Work Services, Inc.  Prior to joining Filinvest, he worked with
Teletech as Head of Country Support Services. He obtained his Bachelor's Degree in
Cornmerce from the University of Virginia in 2005 and his Master's Degree in Business
Administration in IESE Business School — University of Navarra in 2010. Mr. Gotianun was first
elected as a director of the Club in 2015,

3. ANDREW GERARD D, GOTIANUN III - DIRECTOR

Mr. Gotianun III, 45, Filipino, is the Vice President for Purchasing of the Filinvest Group. Prior
to that, he was the Senior Assistant Vice President for Purchasing of the Eflinvest Group, and
Special Assistant to the President starting May 2008. Mr. Gotianun LII obtained his Bachelor's
Degree in Business Administration from Concordia University at Irvine California, USA, He has
been a director of the Club since 2017.

4. CATHERINE A. LAGAN - DIRECTOR

Ms. Tlagan, 52, Filipino, is the President and Chief Operating Officer of FAL, She is also the
Chairperson of Filinvest Corporate City Association, Inc. Prior to joining Filinvest, she worked
with Arthaland Corporation as Senior Vice President. She obtained her Master's Degree in
Business Administration from the Asian Institute of Management in 1993. Ms. llagan has
been a director of the Club since 2014. .

5. MANOLITQ F. GONZALES — INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

Mr. Gonzales, 75, Filipino, is the President of Rnuable Energy Corporation from 2013 to
present, Board Member of the Shang Grand Tower Condominium Corporation in 2007 and
Board Member of the Foundation of our Lady of Peace Mission since 1989, He was a member
of the Club since 2001 and was first elected as Independent director of the Club in 2015.

6. JOAQUIN P. ROA — INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

Mr. Roa, 66, Filipino, is a licensed real estate broker and has held management positions in
various corporations in the Philippines and Vietham. He served as Senior Vice President of
Grepalife from 1999 to 2002, Vice President/General Manager of Vietnam Motors from 1992
to 1999, and Vice President - Marketing of Philippine Fuji Xerox from 1980 to 1992. Me
obtained his Bachelor of Science in Electrical Engineering degree from the University of the
Philippines. He has been a member of the Club since 2001. He was first elected as
independent director of the Club in September 2018.
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7. JOY LAGDAMEQ — INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

Ms. Lagdameo, 56, Filipino, was among the pioneer team of The Palms Country Club, Inc.
and was Membership Manager from 2000 to 2004. Previous to the club, she was with the
Rustan Group of Companies as Corporate Sales Manager of Rustan Commercial Corp. from
1988 to 1995, and Institutional Sales Manager of Royal Duty Free Shops from 1995 to 2000.
She was Deputy Director for Sales of Discovery Primea Residences from 2008 to 2018. She is
& member of the Assumption Alumnae Association and served on the Board of Trustees from
2009 to 2016. She obtained her Bachelor of Arts in Philippine Studies degree from the
University of the Philippines. She has been a member of The Palms Country Club, Inc. since
2001,

8. ANA VENUS A, MEJIA - TREASURER

Ms. Mejia, 56, Filipino, has been with the Filinvest Group of Companies {"Filinvest™) for more
than 25 years, joining in 1996 as Assistant Controller of FDC and has served the Group in
various capacities, At present, she is the First Senior Vice President, Treasurer and Chief
Finance Officer of FLI. She was appointed as Treasurer of the Club in 2012. Prior to Jjoining
Filinvest, she worked with Shoemart and Sycip, Gorres, Velayo & Company. She is a Certified
Public Accountant and a Magna Cum Laude from Pamantasan ng Lungsod ng Maynila. She
‘obtained her Master’s Degree from Kellog School of Management at Northwestern University
and School of Business and Management, The Hongkong University of Science and
Technology. _

9. KATRINA O, CLEMENTE-LUA

Atty. Clemente-Lua, 38, Filipino, was appointed as TPCCI's Assistant Corporate Secretary on
September 27, 2021, She is also the Assistart Corporate Secretary of Fllinvest Development
Corporation, Filinvest Land, Inc. ("FLI") and Filinvest REIT Corp., all publicly-listed companies.
She joined the Corporate and Tax Advisory Division of the Legal Department of FLI in October
2018, Prior to joining FLI, she served as the Legal Counsel of Philippine Stratbase Consuléancy,
Inc, and Executive Director of Stratbase ADR Institute. She was previously an assoclate of
Carag Jamora Somera & Vilfareal Law Offices as well as Senior Corporate Affairs Officer of
Anchor Land Holdings, She obtained her Bachelor of Arts degree in Legal Management from
De La Salle University and her Juris Doctor degree from Ateneo de Manila University.

10. HANS RUDOLF NEUKOM - GENERAL MANAGER

Mr. Neukom, 58, Swiss, was the Executive Chef of the American Club Shanghai in China. He
has been working in the food industry for almost 20 years now since the start of his
apprenticeship and spent most of his culinary years in Asia. He was appointed as the Executive
Chef of the Club in 2002 and as General Manager in 2010,

Executive officers of the Club are appointed or elected annually by the Board of Directors, typicafty
at its first meeting following the annual meeting of the stockholders, each to hold office until the
corresponding meeting of the Board of Directors in the next year or until a successor shali have
been elected or appointed, and duly qualified.

CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS

There is no transaction during the last two (2) years, or any proposed transaction, to which the
Ciub was or is to be a party, in which any director or officer of the Club, any neminee for election
as a director, any security holder or any member of the immediate family of any of the persons
mentioned in the foregoing, had or is to have a direct or indirect material interest.

The Club seeks legal advice from the law firm of Sycip Salazar Hernandez & Gatmaitan from time
to time and pays the said firm professional fees charged by the latter for the services rendered.
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OTHER SIGNIFICANT EMPLOYEES

. The Club considers all its employees as significant to the growth of the Club.

FAMILY RELATIONSHIPS

- The club is majority-owned by FAL Mr. Francis Nathaniel C. Gotianun, President/CEQ and Andrew
Gerard D. Gotianun III, Director, are first cousins. None of the remaining directors or executive
officers is related, whether by consanguinity or affinity, with the others.

INVOLVEMENT IN CERTAIN LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

The Club is not aware of the occutrence of any of the following events within the past five years
up to the date of this annual report: (a) any bankruptcy petition filed by or against any business
in which any of its directors or officers was a general partner or officer either at the time of the
bankruptcy or within two years prior to that time; (b} any conviction by final judgment in a criminal
proceeding, domestic or foreign, of, or any criminal proceading, domestic or foreign, pending
against, any of its directors or officers in his capacity as such director or officer; (¢} any order,
judgment or decree, not subsequently reversed, suspended or vacated, of any court of competent
Jurisdiction, domestic or foreign, permanently or temporarily enjoining, barring, suspending or
otherwise fimiting the involvement of any of its directors or officers in any type of business,
securities, commodities or banking activities, and {(d) any finding by a domestic or foreign court
of competent jurisdiction (in a civil action), the Securities and Exchange Commission or
comparable foreign body, or a domestic or foreign exchange or electronic marketplace or self-
regulatory organization that any of its directors or officers has violated a securities or commodities
law, and the judgment has not been reversed, suspended or vacated, which occurred during the

past five years.

No director has resigned or deciined to stand for re-elections as member of the Board due to any
disagreement with the Club on any matter relating to Club operations, policies or practices.

No person who is not an executive officer of the Club is expected to make significant contribution
- to the business.

ITEM 10: EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Summary of Compensation Table (in Pesos)

' (a) (b) (c) (d) (e)

Name and Principal Position Year Salary Bonus | OtherAnnual | “TOTAL
(p) (P) Compensatio
n

Efren C. Gutierrez n/a
Chairman, President & CEO '
Francis Nathaniel C. Gotianun nfa
Director
Andrew Geraid D, Gotianun IIT n/a
Catherine A. Tlagan n/a
Director

- Manuet Luis C. Gonzales : nfa
Independent Director
Mr. Manolito F. Gonzales n/a
Independent Director ]

-13-




Mr. 3oaquin P. Roa n/a

Indenendent Director _
Al other officers and directors 2022-Est. | 4.9 Million - 2.2 Million | 7.1 Million
"85 @ group unhamed 2021 4.5 Million - 2.1 Million | 7.0 Million

2020 4.9 Million 2.1 Million | 7.0 Million

The directors of the Club received no per diem, remuneration or compensation in their capacity as
such for the years 2019, 2020 and 2021. There is no employment contract or contracts relative to
payment of executive compensation to the directors of the Club to date, whether directly or

indirectly.

There are no agreements between the Club and any of its directors and key officers providing for
benefits upon termination of employment, except for such benefits to which they may be entitled
under the Club’s retirement plan.

._ITEM 11: SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND
MANAGEMENT

 As of December 31, 2021, FAL has a total of 2,599 common no par value shares of stock of the
Club, of which 306 are available for sale to third parties. Breakdown of shares owned by FAI are
as follows:

Share Category No. of shares
Class "A" (Individual/Corporate A) Shares 18
Class "B” (Corporate B) Shares 189
Class “C” (Corporate C) Shares 99

- Sub-total (no. of shares to be sold) 306
Class “D” Shares (including the initial one common share) (not for sale) 2293
Total 2,599

Security Ownership of Certain Record and Beneficial Owners as of December 31, 2021

Fitle of Amount and
Class of : Nature of Record % of
Securities Name/ Address / Beneficial | citizanship | Ownership
Ownership
Filinvest Alabang, Inc.! :
Common Vector 1 Building 2,599 Filipino 56.56%
- Northgate Cyberzone
- Filinvest City, Alabang
Muntinlupa City

Except as stated above, the Beard and management of the Club have no knowledge of any person
who, as of date of this report, is directly or indirectly the beneficial owner of more than 5% of the
Club's outstanding shares of common stock or who has voting power or investment power with
respect to shares comprising more than 5% of its outstanding commnon stock.

! Fiiivvast Atabang, Inc. f¢ a domestic corporalion majority-owned by Fiinvest Daveinpment Gorparation and £linvest Land, Inc.
- 14 -




Security Ownership of Management as of December 31, 2021

Title of Class Name Citizenshi | Amount and %o of
of Securities p Nature Owner
Of Ownership | ship
Common Efren C. Gutierrez Filipino 1 ~

¢/o 1410 Laguna Heights Drive,
Filinvest City, Alabang,
Muntinlupa City

Common Francis Nathaniel C. Gotianun Filipino 1 -
c/o 1410 Laguna Heights Drive, :
Filinvest City, Alabang,
Muntinlupa City
Common Andrew Gerard D, Gotianun I Filipino 1 -
¢/o 1410 Laguna Heights Drive,
[ Filinvest City, Alabang,
Muntinlups City

Commeon Catherine A. Ilagan Filipino 1 -
¢fo 1410 Laguna Heights Drive,
Filinvest City, Alabang,
Muntinlupa City

Common Manolito F. Gonzales Fllipino 1 -
¢/o 1410 Laguna Heights Drive,
Filinvest City, Alabang,

- Muntintupa City

Common Joaquin P. Roa . Filigino 1 -

‘¢/o 1410 Laguna Heights Drive,
Filinvest City, Alabang,
Muntinlupa City

Common | Josephine Lagdameo Filipino 1 S -
¢/o 1410 Laguna Heights Drive,
Filinvest City, Alabang,

| Muntiniupa City

PART 1V — CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Consistent. with the Club’s Revised Manual for Corporate Governance, directors and officers are
- designated to comprise the various committees of the Club, These include the executive, audit,
nomination and compensation committees which were formed to aid in good corporate governance
by providing support to the Board in the performance of specific functions.

The Club is in substantial compliance with its Revised Manual for Corporate Governance as
demonstrated by the following: (a) the election of three (3) independent directors to the Board;
{b) the appointment of directors and offfcers as members of the executive, audit, nomination and
compensation committees of the Club; the conduct of regular quarterly board meetings and spectal
meetings and the faithful attendance of the directors at these meetings and their proper discharge
- of duties and responsibilities as such directors; (c} the submission to the SEC of structured reports
and disclosures required under the Securities Regulation Code; (d) the Club’s adherence to national
and locai laws pertaining to its operations; and (e) the observance of applicable accounting
standards by the Club,

In order to keep itself abreast with the leading practices on corporate governance, the Club
encourages the members of top level management and the Board to attend and participate at
seminars on corporate governance initiated by accredited institutions.

-15-



The Club welcomes proposals, especially from institutions and entities such as the SEC, to improve
corporate governance. . :

There is no known material deviation from the Club‘s Revised Manual on Corporate Governance.

PART V — EXHIBITS

Reports on SEC Form 17-C

Date Filed Contents

1| August9, 2021 The Board of Directors decided to hold the Annual Stockholders’
Meeting on September 27, 2021 at 9:00 AM. In view of the COVID-
19 pandemic and to protect the health and interest of the Club’s
shareholders, directors, officers and personnel, the Board approved
to hold the 2021 annual shareholders’ meeting virtually or through
- remote comimunication.

2 | September 27, 2021 | Matters taken up during the Annual Shareholders’ Meeting held on
September 27, 2021.

e Approval of the Minutes of the Annual Shareholders’
Meeting held on October 16, 2020

« Approvai and Ratification of the Audited Financial
Statements for the year then ended December 31,
2020

» Ratification of the acts, resolutions and proceedings of
the Board of Directors, Board committees and
Management up to September 27, 2021

+ Re-appointment of Sydp Gorres and Velayo & Co. as
external auditor for the year 2021

Also, at the said shareholders” meeting, the following were elected
as members of the Board of Directors of the Club to serve for the
2021-2022 and untii thelr successor shall have been elected and
qualified:

Efren C. Gutierez

Francis Nathaniel C. Gotianun

Catherine A. Tlagan

Andrew Gerard A. Gotianun III

Manolito F. Gonzales (Independent Director)
Joaquin P. Roa (Independent Director)
Josephine L., Lagdameo (Independent Director)

NON AW

The amendment of Article Third of the Clubs Artides of
Incerporation to change the principal address from “Metro Manita”
to 1410 Laguna Height Drive, Filinvest City, Alabang, Muntinlupa
City” was inciuded as part of the agenda of the Annual
Shareholders’ Meeting. The amendment of Article Third of the
Club’s Articles of Incorporation requires the approval of at least
- 67% of the outstanding shares of the Club. However, considering
that only 56.50% attended the shareholders’ meeting, the said
agenda item was not approved and passed for insufficient votes.

-16-



September 27, 2021

At the organizational meeting of the Palms Country Club, Inc. held

on September 27, 2021, the Board of Directors appointed the
foliowing officers of the Club to serve for the year 2021-2022 and
until their successors shall have been elected and qualified:

* & & & 5 0 0

Chairman of the Board Efren C. Gutierez

President Francis Nathaniel C, Gotianun
Treasurer Ana Venus A, Mejia
Corporate Secretary Sharon P. Pagaling-Refuerzo
Asst. Corporate Secretary  Katrina O. Clemente-Lua
Compliance Officer Ana Venus A Meijia

General Manager Hans Rudolf Nettkom
Finandial Controller Mitzt C, Chuidian

The following Committees were organized:

Executive Committee

- Chairman Francis Nathaniel C, Gotianun

Members Efren C. Gutierez

Catherine A, Ilagan -
Andrew Gerard A. Gotlanun 111
Hans Rudolf Neukom

Audit & Risk Management Oversight Committee

Chairman Manolito F. Gonzales
Members Efren C, Gutierez
Joaquin P, Roa

Corporate Governance Committee

Chairman -Manolito F. Gonzales
Members Efren (. Gutierez
Francis Nathaniet C. Gotianun
Josephine L. Lagdameo
Joaquin P, Roa

Compensation Committee
Chalrman Andrew Gerard Gotianun 111
Members Francis Nathaniel C. Gotianun

Efren C. Gutierrez
Manolito F. Gonzales

-17-




SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 17 of the Securities Reguiation Code and Section 141 of
the Corporation Code, this report is signed on behalf of The Palms Country Club, Inc. by the
undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in the City of Muntinlupa o April 29, 2022,

By: -%/ b Gt

FRANCIS NATHANIEL C. GOTIANUN KATRINA O. CLEMENTE-LUA
President and CEC Assistant Corporate Secretary
% RUDOLF NEUKOM { MIRZ1 C. CHUIDIAN
General Manager Figancial Controller
Y
% m2 :
SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this s‘dMéfY Q & , afflants

exhibiting to me their respective identification as follows:

Names Tdentification Number Valid Until

Francis Nathaniel C. Gotianu
Katrina Q. Clemente-Lua
Hans Rudolf Neukom

Mitzi C. Chuidian
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-Annex A"

COVER SHEET

for
AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEC Registration Numbar
Aj2ioio|0(081112]9

COMPANY NAME
H: E PIATLIM|S CIO|U[NIT R|Y CILIU|B}|, I/ NICy. (

Nilo|t|-|Flor|-iPirjoifiilt Clolriplo riajtjijofn])

PRINCIPAL OFFICE ( No. / Street/ Barangay / Cty / Town 7 Provinga |

1141110 Lia|giu|nia Hlefi|lglhlt]s Dir|i|lviel], Fiiil
ilnivie{s]t Clijt|y¢, Ailia/bjalnlg]|, Miuini{tlijnjl!|u
pla Cli|t}y
Form Type Depariment requiring the report Secandary License Type, If Applicable
AlAIF:S CIRIMD N/ A
j COMPANY INFORMATION ]
Company's Emat Address Company's Telsphone Number Mabile Number
thepalmsciub.com 8771-1111 N/A
No. of Stockholders Annusl Meafing fMonth / Day) Fisca! Year (Month / Day)
1,994 Last Monday of April 12/3
[ ' CONTACT PERSON INFORMATION ]
The designated contact person MUST be an Officer of the Corporation
Name of Contact Person_ Emaii Address _ Telaphone Numberis Mcbile Number
Ms. Mitzi C. Chuidian - controlier@thepaimsclub.com 8771-7171 0917-897-6422

| - CONTACT PERSON’s ADDRESS

B10 L38 Orange St., Camella Springville North, Moline 3, Bacoor City, Cavite

NOTE 1: Incase of deafh, resignatfon or cessation of office of the officer designafed as conlact parson, such incident shall e raported to the Commisstang
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

The Members and the Board of Directors

The Palms Country Club, Inc.

1410 Laguna Heights Drive, Filinvest Corporate City
Alabang, Muntinlupa City

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of The Palms Country Club, Inc, (the Club),
which comprise the statements of financial position as at December 31, 2021 and 2020, and the
statements of revenues and expenses, statements of comprehensive income, statements of changes in
equity and statements of cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31 , 2021,
and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinien, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Club as at December 31, 2021 and 2020, and its financial performance and its cash flows
for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2021 in accordance with Philippine
Fimancial Reporting Standards (PFRSs).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing (PSAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Club in accordance with the
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants in the Philippines (Code of Ethics) together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the Philippines, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with PFRSs, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable
the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
SIror.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Club’s ability to

continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concerp-and-usiEg the
- : ) . g oyt TR T s RV ELIN

going concem basis of accounting, unless management ezthﬁ'gg;ﬁd, &fﬂ'%{q?eﬂ& g ‘aéﬁt 'OrEF dease

operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. Hll arsracT
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Aundift of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
zudit conducted in accordance with PSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected 10 influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with PSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Ildentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control,

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Club’s internal control.

¢ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concem basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists refated to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Club’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to
the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Club to cease to continue as a going
CONCern.

*  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.
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Report on the Supplementary Information Required Under Revenue Regulations 15-2016

Our audits were conducted for the putpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements

taken as a whole. The supplementary information required under Revenue Regulations 15-2010 for
purposes of filing with the Bureau of Internal Revenue is presented by the management of The Palms
Country Club, Inc. in a separate schedule. Revenue Regulations 15-2010 requires the information to be
presented in the notes to financial statements. Such information is not a required part of the basic
financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of the management of The Palms Country
Club, Inc. The information has been subjected to the anditing procedures applied in our audit of the basic
financial staterments. Our opinion on the basic financial statements is not affected by the presentation of
the information in a separate schedule.

SYCIP GORRES VELAYO & CO.
Michael C. Sabado
Partner
CPA Certificate No. 89336
TFax Identification No. 160-302-865
BOA/PRC Reg. No. 0001, August 25, 2021, valid until April 15, 2024
SEC Partner Accreditation No. 0664-AR-4 (Group A)
November 11, 2019, valid until November 10, 2022
SEC Firm Accreditation No. 0001-SEC (Group A)
Valid to cover audit of 2021 to 2025 financial statements of SEC covered institutions

BIR Accreditation No. 08-001998-073-2020, December 3, 2020, valid until December 2, 2023
PTR No. 8854360, January 3, 2022, Makati City

April 8, 2022
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THE PALMS COUNTRY CLUB, INC.
(A Not-for-Profit Corporation)

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

December 31

2021 2020
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash (Notes 4, 10 and 18) £78,402,096 BR4.294 288
Contract receivables (Notes 5, 10 and 18) 32,602,423 26,883 454
Due from related parties (Notes 10 and 18) 618,725 454,000
Inventories (Note 6) 9,657,673 5,052,048
Advances to suppliers 1,108,398 16,733,916
Other current assets (Note 7) 1,648,295 1,832 815
Total Current Assets 124,037,610 139,250,521
Noncurrent Assets
Property and equipment {Notes 8 and 19) 811,956,148 819,969,352
Deferred input VAT 2,193,127 764,659
Total Noncwrrent Assets 814,149,275 820,734,011
TOTAL ASSETS £938,186,885 PA56.984,532
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current |iabilities
Accounts and other payables (Notes 9 and 18) 44,210,516 50,768,646
Contract liabilities {(Note 9) 21,978,283 22,096,029
Due to related parties (Notes 10 and 18) 318,175 360,720
Lease liability - current portion (Notes 8, 18 and 19) 1,223,847 838,134
Total Current Liabilities 67,730,821 74,003,529
Noncurrent Liabiities
Lease liability - net of current portion (Notes 8 and 19) 15,523,361 16,747,208
Pension liability (Note 17) 9,922,492 10,226,904
Deferred Tax Liability - -
Total Noncusrent Liabilities 25,445,853 26,974,112
Total Liabilities 93,176,674 100,977,641
Equity
Capital stock (Note 1 l) 1,109,993,521 1,109,993,521
Accumulated deficiency of revenues over costs and expenses (267,651,528)  (252,335,116)
Remeasurement gain on retirement plan - net of tax (Note 17) 2,668,210 1,348,486
Total Equity ) 845,010,211 859,006,891
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY £938 186 885 &959;984:’5@

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.

) o ',.
N A
i e
s e ¥
i !
!l |l

II\I



THE PALMS COUNTRY CLUB, INC.

{A. Not-for-Profit Corporation)

STATEMENTS OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES

Years Ended December 31

2021 2020 2019
REVENUES
Food and beverage £87,724,806 283,855,975 P220,526,819
Membership dues 85,222,500 85,863,000 86,533,200
Sports and recreation 7,424,498 7,667,298 27,944,232
Club shop and other revenues (Note 12) 18,698,565 15,560,764 32,604,941
199,070,369 192,947,037 367,609,192
PIRECT COSTS (Notes 6 and 13) 124,733,043 120,342,335 251,291,367
74,337,326 72,604,702 116,317,825
OPERATING EXPENSES (Note 14)
General and administrative 42,598,248 47,368,851 49284351
Depreciation {Note 8) 28,709,029 28,556,069 28,803 681
Housekeeping 7.919,807 8,635,813 13,856,392
Engineering 6,648,914 7,293,624 10,190,505
- 85,875,998 91,854,357 102,134,929
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER COSTS AND EXPENSES (11,538,672) (19,249 .655) 14,182,8%6
OTHER INCOME (Note 15) 3,132,139 2,551,756 5,618,475
FINANCE COSTS (Note 19) {6,625,866) (6,890,017) (7,070,217)
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER COSTS AND EXPENSES
BEFORE INCOME TAX (15,031,799) (23,587,916) 12,730,454
PROVISION FOR INCOME TAX (Note 16) 284,605 1,987,230 1,772,876
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER COSTS AND EXPENSES AND
INCOME TAX (15,316,404)  (P25,575,146) £10,957,578

See accompanyving Noves to Financiof Statements.
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THE PALMS COUNTRY CLUB, INC.
(A Not-for-Profit Corporation)

STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Years Ended December 31

2021

2020 2019

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER COSTS AND EXPENSES

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Item that will not be reclassified to revenue
Or expenses

Remeasurement gain {loss) on retirement plan -
net of tax (Note 17)

(P15,316,404)

1,319,724

(P25,575,146) £10,957,578

{1,395,846) (1,562,497)

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(LOSS)

(B13,996,680)

{$26,970,592) 29,395,081

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements,
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THE PALMS COUNTRY CLUB, INC.
(A Not-for-Profit Corporation)

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Acenmulated  Remeasurement
Deficiency of Gain on
Reverues Retirement Plan
Capital Stock  over Costs and -~ net of tax
{Note 11) Expenses {Note 17} Total
For the year ended December 31, 2821
Ealances at January 1, 2021 P1,1(9,993,521 (252,335,116} £1,148 486 P859,006,891
Comprehensive income
Deficiency of revenues over costs and
expenses - {15,316,404) - {15,316,464)
Other comprehensive income - - 1,319,724 1,319,724
Totz] comprehensive loss - (15,316,404) 1,319,724 (13,996,680)
Balances at Decemnber 31, 2021 21,109,993,521 {£267,651,520) P2,668,210 P845.010,211
For the year ended December 31, 2020
Balances at January |, 2020 £1,109,993,521 (#226,759.970) P2.744,332 PRRS5 977 883
Comprehensive income
Deficiency of revenues over costs and
expenses - (25,575,146) - (25,575,146)
Other comprehensive loss — - {1,395 846) {1.393,846)
Total comprehensive loss - {25,575,146) {1,305,846) (26,970,992}
Balances at December 31, 2020 £1,109,993,521 ($#252,335,118) 1 348 486 P859,006,891
For the year ended December 31, 2019
Balances at January 1, 2019 P1.109,993,521 (B237.717,548) £4,306,829 P876,582,802
Comprehensive income o o
Excess of revenves over costs and
expenses - 10,957,578 - 10,857,578
Other comprehensive foss - - {1.562,497) (1,562,497}
Total comprehensive income - 10,957,578 (1,562,497 9,385,081
Balances at December 31, 2019 £1,108,963 521 (B226,759,970) 82,744,332 B8RS 977,883

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements,
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THE PALMS COUNTRY CLUB, INC.
(A Not-for-Profit Corporation)

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended December 31
2021 2020 2019
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over costs and
expenses before income tax (B15,031,799) {P23,387 916) P12,730,454
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortization
(Notes 13 and 14 30,220,631 30,052,021 30,315,664
Finance costs (Note 19) 6,625,866 6,890,017 7,070,917
Net change in pension liability (Note 17) 1,455,219 881,020 819,523
Gain on disposals of property, plant and
equipment (Note 8) - (330,000) {117,500)
Interest income (Notes 4, 10 and {5) (110,606} (1.038,070) (307,954)
Operating income before changes in operating
assets and liabilities 23,158,711 12,874,072 50,455,104
Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Decrease (increase) in:
Contract receivables (5,718,969) 0,785,952 {1,094, i46)
Due from related parties (164,725) 1,576,683 658,282
Inventories {695,625) 2,990,093 (501,80%)
Other current assets (2,414,291) {3,595,302) {10,278,407)
Deferred input VAT {1,428,468) 535,759 649,186
Increase {decrease) in:
Accounts and other payables (6,558,130) {33,041211 13,015,862
Due to related parties 17,455 (285,515) {185421)
Contract liabilities (117,746} 343,977 2,605,664
Net cash generated from (used in) operations 6,168,212 {8,821,492) 55,324,319
Interest received (Notes 4, 10 and 15) 116,606 1,038,070 367,954
Income tax paid (Note 16) (724,513) (1,389,010} (3,482,623}
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 5,554,305 (9,172,432 52,209,650
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from disposal of property and equipment
(Note §) - 330,000 117,500
Payment for the acquisition of property
and equipment (Note 8) (3,982,497) (3,284,263} (6,305,215
Net cash used in investing activities (3,982,497) (2.954,263) {6,187,715)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES
Payments of obligation under finance lease
(Note 19} {7,464,000) {7,464,000) {7,464,000)
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH (5,892,192) (19,590,695) 38,557,935
CASH AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 84,294,288 103,884,982 63,327,048
CASH AT END OF YEAR (Note 4) P78,402,096 £84.294. 288 P103,884,983

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
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THE PALMS COUNTRY CLUB, INC.
{A Not-for-Profit Corporation)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Corporate Information

The Palms Country Club, Inc. (the Club) was registered with the Phi lippine Securities and Fxchange
Commission (SEC) on May 24, 2000 with expiration of its corporate life fifty {50) years thereafter to
operate as a not-for-profit corporation. The Club’s main purpose is the maintenance and operation of
indoor and outdoor recreational facilities, restanrants and dining halls for the use and enjoyment of its
members. No part of the income or asset of the Club shall belong or inure to the benefit of any
member, officer or specific person,

The Club’s registered address and principal place of business is at 1410 Laguna Heights Drive,
Filinvest Corporate City, Alabang, Muntinlupa City.

The Club’s accompanying financial statements were approved and authorized for issue by the Board
of Directors (BOD) on April 8, 2022.

2. Summary of Sigrificant Accounting Policies

Basis of Preparation

The accompanying financial statements of the Club have been prepared using historical cost basis.
The financial statements are presented in Philippine Peso (#), which is also the Club’s functional
currency. All amounts are rounded off to the nearest Peso, except when otherwise indicated,

The financial statements provide comparative information in respect of the previous period.

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared under the going concern assumption.
The Club believes that its business would remain relevant despite challenges posed by the
COVID-16 pandemic.

Statement of Compliance

The accompanying financial statements of the Club have been prepared in compliance with
Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS), Philippine Accounting Standards (PAS), and
interpretations issued by the Philippine Interpretations Committee (P1C).

Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year, except for
the adoption of new standards effective as at January 1, 2021. Unless otherwise indicated, adoption
of these new standards did not have an impact on the financial statements of the Club.

* Amendments to PFRS 3, Business Combinations, Definition of a Business

» Amendments to PFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures and PERS 9, Financial Instruments,
Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

» Amendments to PAS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements, and PAS 8, Accounting Policies,
Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors, Definition of Material

* Conceptual Framework for Financiat Reporting issued on March 29, 2018
Amendments 1o PFRS 16, COVID-19-related Rent Concessions
Amendments to PFRS 9, PFRS 7, PFRS 4 and PERS 16, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform —
Phase 2
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Standard Issued but not vet Effective

Pronouncements issued but not yet effective are listed below. Unless otherwise indicated, the Club
does not expect that the future adoption of the said pronouncements will have a si guificant impact on
its financial statements. The Club intends to adopt the following pronouncements when they become
effective.

Effective beginning on or after January 1, 2022

¢ Amendments to PFRS 3, Reference to the Conceptual Framework

* Amendments to PAS 16, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use
*  Amendments to PAS 37, Onerous Contracts — Costs of Fulfilling a Contract

Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2018-2020 Cycle

* Amendments to PFRS 1, First-time Adoption of Philippines Financial Reporting Standards,
Subsidiary as a first-time adopter

* Amendments to PFRS 9, Financial Instruments, Fees in the °10 per cent’ test Jor derecognition of
Sfinancial liabilities

e Amendments to PAS 41, Agriculture, Taxation in fair value measurements

Effective beginning on or afier January 1, 2023

* Amendmenis to PAS 12, Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction

¢ Amendments to PAS 8, Definition of Accounting Estimates

* Amendments to PAS 1 and PFRS Practice Statement 2, Disclosure of Accounting Policies

Effective beginning on or afier January 1, 2024

¢ Amendments to PAS 1, Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current
Effective beginning on or after January 1, 2025

o PFRS 17, Insurance Contracts

Deferred effectivity

*  Amendments to PFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements, and PAS 28, Sale or Contribution
of Assets berween an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

Significant Accounting Policies

Current versus Noncurrent Classification
The Club presents assets and Habilities in its statement of financial position based on a current and
noncurrent classification. An asset is cutrent when it is:

expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;

held primarily for the purpose of trading;

expected to be realized within twelve (12) months after the reporting period; or

cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at
least twelve (12) months after the reporting period.

0o

All other assets are classified as noncurrent.
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A lability is cumrent when:

it is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;

it 1 held primarily for the purpose of trading;

it is due 1o be settled within twelve (12} months after the reporting period, or

there is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve {12)
months after the reporting period.

=

The Club classifies all other Habilitics as noncurrent.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as noncurrent assets and labilities.

Cash
Cash includes cash on hand and in banks. Cash in bank earns interest at the prevailing bank deposit
rate.

Fair Value Measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an ordetly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is
based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either:

# In the principal market for the asset or liability; or
*  In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or Hability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to the Club. The fair value of an
asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing
the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

The Club uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are available to measure fair vafue, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

Fair Value Hierarchv of Financial Instruments Recognized at Fair Value

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

s Level | - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

» Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

¢ Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement ig unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Club
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole) at the end of each reporting period.
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Financial Instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are recognized in the statement of financial position when, and only
when, the Club becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery or assets within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace are recognized on the trade date.

Recopnition and Measurement of Financial Instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
Hability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial Assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as either subsequently measured at amortized
cost, at FYTOC], or at FVTPL.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s contractual
cash flow characteristics and the Club’s business model for managing them. The Club initially
measures a {mancial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at FVPL,
transaction costs,

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortized cost or at FVTOCL, it needs to
give rise to cash flows that are ‘solely payments of principal and interest’ on the principal amount
outstanding. This assessment is referred to as the ‘solely payments of principal and interest test® and
i8 performed at an instrument level.

The Club’s business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its financial assets
in order to generate cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by
regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognized on the trade date,
1.¢., the date that the Club coramits to purchase or sell the asset.

As of December 31, 2021, and 2020, the Club’s financial assets comprise of financial assets at
amortized cost,

Subsequent measurement
Financial assets are measured at amortized cost if both of the following conditions are met:

s the asset is held within the Club’s business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows; and,

» the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding,

Financial assets at amortized costs are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest rate (EIR) method less any impairment in value, with the interest calculated recognized as
interest income in the statement of revenues and expenses.

The Club classified cash, contract receivables and due from related parties as financial assets at
amortized cost (see Note 4, 5, 10 and 18).
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Reclassification of financial assets
The Club can reclassify financial assets if the objective of its business model for managing those
financial assets changes. The Club is required to reclassify the followin g financial assets:

* from amortized cost to FVTPL if the objective of the business model changes so that the
amortized cost criteria are no Jonger met; and,

» from FVTPL to amertized cost if the objective of the business model changes so that the
amortized cost criteria start to be met and the instrument’s contractual cash flows meet the
ameortized cost crteria.

Reclassification of financial assets designated as at FVTPL at initial recognition is not permitted.

A change in the objective of the Club’s business model must be effected before the reclassification
date. The reclassification date is the beginning of the next reporting period folowing the change in
the business model.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at F VTPL, loans and
borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instraments in an effective hedge, as
appropriate.

All financia] liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings
and paysables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

As of December 31, 2021, and 2020, the Club’s financial liabilities comprise financial liabilities at
amortized cost (loans and borrowings),

Subsequent measurement

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortized cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the
liabilities are derecognized as well as through the EIR amortization process. The EIR amortization is
included as finance costs in the statement of revenues and expenses.

Impairment of Financial Assets

The Club recognizes an allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs) for all debt instrurents not held
at fair vaiue through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash
flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Club expects to receive,
discounted at an approximation of the original effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will
include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the
contractual terms.

For cash, the Club applies the low credit risk simplification. The probability of default and loss given
defaults are publicly available and are considered to be low credit risk investments. The Club also
evaluates the credit rating of the bank and other financial institstions to determine whether the debt
nstrument has significantly increased in credit risk and to estimate BCLs. It is the Club’s policy to
measure ECLs on such instruments on a 12-month basis. However, when there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since origination, the allowance will be based on lifetime ECL.

The Club applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs for financial assets at amortized costs.

Therefore, the Club does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognizes a loss allowance
based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Club has established a provision matrix for its
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contract recetvables that is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking
factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

For due from related parties, ECLs are recognized in two stages. For credit exposures for which there
has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit
losses that result from defauit events that are possible within the next 12-months (a 12-month ECL).
For those credit exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, a loss alowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining life of the
exposure, iirespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

The Club considers a financial asset in default when contractual payments are 60 days past due.
However, in certain cases, the Club may also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal
or external information indicates that the Club is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual
amounts in fuil before taking into account any credit enhancements held by the Club. A financial
asset is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

Derecognition of Financial Asseis and Finaneial Liabilities

Financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar
financial assets) is primarily derecognized (i.e., removed from the Club’s statement of financial
position} when:

The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or,

¢ The Club has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a
‘pass through’ amrangement; and either (a) the Club has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, or (b) the Club has neither transferred nor retained substantiaily all the risks
and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Club has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-
through artangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risks and rewards of
ownership, When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of
the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Club continues to recognize the transferred asset to
the extent of its continuing involvement. In that case, the Club also recognized an associated liability.
The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Club has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at
the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that
the Club could be required to repay.

Financial Habilities
A financiai hability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled,
or has expired.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new
hability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of
comprehensive income.
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Offsetting Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are only offset and the net amount reported in the statement of
financial position when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and the
Club intends to either settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and seitle the liability
simultaneously. This is not generally the case with master netting agreements, where the related
assets and liabilities are presented at gross in the statement of financial position.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value (NRV). NRYV is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs necessary to make the sale. Cost
includes purchase price, freight and handling costs and is determined using the first-in, first-out
method,

Other Current Assets

Gther current assets pertain to advances to suppliers, creditable withholding taxes, and other current
assets such as prepayments and deposits which controlled by the Club as a result of past events and
from which future economic benefits are expected to flow to the Club within one (1) year after the
reporting period.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment consist of land, land improvements, building, and sports, kitchen and other
facilities and equipment. Except for land, the Club’s property and equiptment are stated at cost, less
accumulated depreciation and any impainment in value, Land is stated at cost, less any impairment in
value. The initial cost of property and equipment consists of its purchase price, including import
duties, taxes and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and
location for its intended use, including borrowing cost.

Expenditures incurred after the assets have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance,
are normally charged to operations in the period in which the costs are incurred. In situations where
it can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditures have resulted in an increase in the future
economic benefits expected to be obtained from the use of an item of property and equipment beyond
its originally assessed standard of performance, the expenditures are capitalized as an additional cost
of property and equipment,

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives (EUL) of the assets,
as follows:

Years
Land improvements 10
Building 40
Sports, kitchen and other facilities and equipment : 5-20

The useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed periodically to ensure that the period and
method of depreciation are consistent with the expected pattern of economic benefits from items of
property and equipment,

When an 1tem of property and equipment is derecognized, the cost of the related accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment loss, if any, is removed from the account. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of revenues and expenses in the
year the asset is derecognized.
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Other Noncurrent Assets

Other noncurrent assets inchude operating equipment that are carried at cost, less any impairment,
Operating equipment is expensed ratably to the appropriate department expense account over its
period of consumption,

Impairment of Nonfinancial Assets

The Club assesses at each reporting date whether there is indication that its nonfinancial assets

{i.., property and equipment and other noncurrent assets) may be impaired. If any such indication
exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Club makes an estimate of the
asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-
generating umt’s (CGU) fair value less costs to sell and its value in use and iz determined for an
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those
from other assets or groups of assets, in which case the receivable amount is assessed as part of the
CGU to which it belongs. When the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the
asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset, In
determinting fair value less cost to sell, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are
corroborated by valuation multiples and other available fair value indicators. An impairment loss is
charged to operations in the year if arises,

A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates
used to detenmine the recoverable amount of an asset, however, not to an amount higher than the
carrying amount that would have been determined (net of any depreciation) had no impairment loss
been recognized for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is credited to current
operations.

Leases

Club as lessor

Leases where the Club does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income on operating leases is recognized on a
straight-line basis over the lease term. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating an operating lease
are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognized over the lease term on the same
bases as rental income (see Note 19),

Club as lessee

Except for short-term leases and lease of low-value assets, the Club applies a single recognition and
measurement approach for all Jeases. A finance lease is a ‘lease that transfers substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset’, and an operating lease is ‘a lease other than a
finance lease’, i.e. a lease that does not transfer substantially alf the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership.

The Club’s classification of a lease depends on the substance of the transaction rather than the form
of the contract. The following situations individually or in combination would normally lead to a
lease being classified as a finance lease:

the lease transfers ownership of the asset to the lessee by the end of the lease term;
the lessee has the option to purchase the asset at a price which is expected to be sufficiently lower
than the fair value at the date the option becomes exercisable such that, at the inception of the
lease, it is reasonably certain that the option will be exercised (frequently called a ‘bargain
purchase’ option};

*» the lease term is for the major part of the economic life of the asset even if title is not transferred;
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+ at the inception of the lease the present value of the minimum lease payments amounts to at least
substantially all of the fair value of the leased asset; and

» the leased assets are of a specialized nature such that only the lessee can use them without major
modifications being made,

The Club recognized its finance lease as assets and liabilities in its statements of financial position at
the commencement of the lease term at amounts equal to the fair value of the leased item or, if lower,
at the present value of the minimum lease payments, each determined at the inception of the lease. In
calculating the present value of the minimum lease payments, the discount factor is the interest rate
implicit in the lease, if thig is practicable to determine; if not, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate
should be used. Any initial direct costs of the lessee are added to the recognized asset. At
conunencement, both asset and liability are recognized separately, with an appropriate distinction
between cutrent and non-current liabilities being made.

Lease payments made are apportioned between the finance charge and the reduction of the
outstanding liability. The finance charge should be allocated to periods during the lease term so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period.
As of December 31, 2021, and 2020, the Club recognized interest expense in relation to finance lease
amounting to #56.89 million and £6.60 million, respectively {see Note 19).

Retirement Costs

The net defined benefit liability or asset is the aggregate of the present value of the defined benefit
obligation at the end of the reporting period reduced by the fair value of plan assets (if any), adjusted
for any effect of limiting a net defined benefit asset to the asset ceiling. The asset ceiling is the
present value of any economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the plan or reductions in
future contributions to the plan.

The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plans is actuarially determined using the
projected unit credit method.

Defined benefit obligations comprise the following:

+ Service cost
e Net interest on the net defined benefit liability or asset
+ Remeasurement of net defined benefit liability or asset

Service costs which include current service costs, past service costs and gains or losses on non-
routine seftlements are recognized as expense in the statement of revenues and expenses. Past service
costs are recognized when plan amendment or curtailment ocours. These amounts are calculated
periodically by an independent qualified actuary.

Net interest on the net defined benefit liability or asset is the change during the peried in the net
defined benefit liability or asset that arises from the passage of time which is determined by applying
the discount rate based on government bonds to the net defined benefit liability or asset. Net interest
on the net defined benefit liability or asset is recognized as expense or income in the statement of
revenues and expenses.

Remeasurements comprising actuarial gains and losses, return on plan assets and any change in the
effect of the asset ceiling (excluding net interest on defined benefit liability) are recognized
immediately in other comprehensive income (OC1) in the period it which they arise.
Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.
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Equity
Capital stock with no par or stated value is measured at the amount of total contributions received.

Accumulated deficiency of revenues and membership dues over costs and expenses and income tax
represents accurnulated nef losses and earnings and any adjustment arising from application of new
accounting standards, pelicies or corrections of errors applied retroactively by the Chub.

OC1

OCI are items of income and expense that are not recognized in profit or loss for the year in
accordance with PFRS. The Club’s OCI pertains to remeasurement adjustments on its pension
Lability.

Revenue recognition
The Club primarily derives ifs revenues from membership dues, sale of food and beverage, sports and
recreation and Club shop and other operating department revenues.

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognized when control of the goods or services are
transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Club expects to
be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The Club assesses ifs revenue arrangements
against specific criteria in order to determine if it is acting as principal or agent. The Club has
generally concluded that it is acting as principal in all of its revenue arrangements.

The disclosures of significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions relating to revenue
from contracts with customers are provided in Note 3.

Club Revenues

The Club revenues consist of revenue from membership dues, sale of food and beverage, sports and
recreation, and other Club shop and other operating department revenues. These are accounted for as
follows:

Membership dues

Revenue from membership dues is recognized over the time the related services are rendered and/or
facilities and amenities are used. Transaction price is determined to be the approved monthly
membership rate by the BOD. Each is considered as a single performance obligation; therefore, it is
not necessary to allocate the transaction price. The service is capable of being distinct from the other
services and the transaction price for each service is separately identifiable. Revenue is recognized
over the time the related services and/or facilities and amenities are used since the customer
simultaneously receives and consumes services provided by the Club.

Membership dues are billed one month in advance and are recognized in the statement of revenues
and expenses over the period when these are due.

Collections for accounts which are not yet due and therefore do not qualify for revenue recogition
are recorded as “Contract liabilities™ account in the current liabilities section of the statement of
financial position.

Food and beverage

Revenue from sale of food and beverage is recognized at a point in time the goods are served or
delivered. Transaction price is determined to be the invoice amount and, sach transaction is
considered as a single performance obligation, therefore it is not necessary to allocate the transaction
price. The goods are capable of being distinct from the other goods and the transaction price for each
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good 15 separately identifiable. Revenue is recognized at a point in time when the related risks and
rewards are transferred to the customer or actual possession is transferred.

Sports and recreation

Revenue from sports and recreation is recognized over the time the facilities and amenities are used,
Transaction price is determined to be the invoice amount and, each transaction is considered as a
single performance obligation, therefore it is not necessary to allocate the transaction price. The
service is capable of being distinct from the other services and the transaction price for each service is
separately identifiable. Revenue is recognized over the time the custorner uses the facilities and
amenities provided by the Club.

Ctub shop

Revenue from Club shop is recognized at a point in time the goods are served or delivered.
Transaction price is determined to be the invoice amount and, each transaction is considered as a
single performance obligation, therefore it is not necessary to allocate the transaction price. The
goods is capable of being distinct from the other goods and the transaction price for each goods is
separately identifiable. Revenue is recognized at a point in time when the related risks and rewards
are transferred to the customer or actual possession is transferrad.

Contract Balances

Contract Receivables

A recetvable represents the Club’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional
(i.¢., only the passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is due).

Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the
customer. Ifthe Club performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer
pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognized for the earned
consideration that is conditional.

Contract lihilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Club has
received consideration {or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays
consideration before the Club transfers goods or services to the customer, a confract Hability is
recognized when the payment is made, or the payment is due {whichever is earlier). Contract
liabilities are recognized as revenue when the Club performs under the contract.

The contract liabilities also include payments received by the Club from the members for which
revenue recognition has not yet commenced.

Contract fulfillment assets

Contract fulfillment costs are divided into: (i} costs that give rise to an asset; and (i) costs that are
expensed as incurred. When determining the appropriate accounting treatment for such costs, the
Club firstly considers any other applicable standards. If those standards preclude capitalization of a
particular cost, then an asset is not recognized under PFRS 15,

If other standards are not applicable to contract fulfillment costs, the Club applies the following
criteria which, if met, result in capitalization: (i) the costs directly relate to a contract or to a
specifically identifiable anticipated contract; (i) the costs generate or enhance resources of the entity
that will be used in satisfying {or in continuing to satisfy) performance obligations in the future; and
(1ii) the costs are expected to be recovered. The assessment of this criteria requires the application of
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judgement, in particular when considering if costs generate or enhance resources to be used to satisfy
future performance obligations and whether costs are expected to be recoverable.

As of December 31, 2021, and 2020, the Clab has no contract fulfillment assets.

Cost of Club Operations
Cost of Club operations pertains to expenses incurred in relation to sale of goods and rendering of
services. These are recognized when incurred and measured at the amount paid or payable.

Other Revenue and Income Recognition

Interest income

Interest income are recognized as it accrues, using the effective interest rate method that is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial
instrument to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Other income

Other income comprnise mainly of other food and beverage, membership dues and penalties for late
payment. Income 18 recognized when the risks and rewards of the ownership of goods have passed to
the buyer, normally at the time of sale and when the services are rendered,

Dirgct Costs and Operating Expenses

Direct costs and operating expenses are recognized in the statement of revenues and expenses when
decreases in economic benefits during the accounting period in the form of outflows or depletion of
assets or decrease of hiabilities have arisen that can be measured reliably. Direct costs and operating
expenses encompass losses as well as those expenses that arise in the course of ordinary activities of
the Club. Direct costs are charged to statement of revenues and expenses when related revenue is
recognized while operating expenses are recognized as incurred. Direct costs and operating expenses
are generally measured at the amount paid or payable.

Incorne Taxes

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current period are measured at the amount expected to
be recovered from or paid to the tax authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the
amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred income tax

Deferred mcome tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary differences, with certain
exceptions, at the reporting date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred income tax lLiabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, with certain
exceptions. Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carryforward
benefits of unused tax credits from excess of minimum cotporate income tax {MCIT) over the regular
corporate mcome tax {RCIT) and unused net operating loss carryover (NOLCO), to the extent that it
is probable that taxable income will be available against which the deductible temporary differences
and carryforward benefits of MCIT and NOLCO can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of
the deferred tax assets to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each
reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit
will allow the deferred tax assets to be recovered.
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Deferred tax assets and Habilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the year
when the asset is realized, or the liability is settled, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been
cnacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. Income tax relating to ifems recognized
directly in equity are recognized in equity and not in the statement of revenues and expenses.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax Habilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity
and the same tax authority.

Value-added Tax (VAT
Expenses and assets are recognized, net of the amount of VAT, except:

* When the VAT incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation
authority, in which case, the VAT is recognized as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as
part of the expense item, as applicable

*  When recejvables and payables are stated with the amount of VAT included.

The net amount of VAT recoverable from, or payable, to the taxation authority is included as part of
recejvables or payables in the statement of financial position.

Provisions

A provision is recognized only when the Club has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economtic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the
expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessment of the time value
of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. Where discounting is used, the
increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as interest expense. Provisions are
reviewed at each report date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Contingencies
Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the financial statements. They are disclosed in the notes

to financial statements, unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying econamic
benefits is remote. Contingent assets are not recognized in the financial statements but disclosed in
the notes to financial statements when an inflow of economic benefits is probable,

Events after the Reporting Date
Any post year-end event up to the date of the auditor™s report that provide additional information

about the Club’s position at the reporting date (adjusting event) is reflected in the financisl
statements. Any post year-end event that is not an adjusting event is disclosed, when material, in
notes to the financial statements (see Note 21). :

Sigﬁiﬁcant Accounting Judgments, Estimates and Use of Ass wmptions

The preparation of the Club’s financial statements in compliance with PFRS requires management to
make judgments, estimates and assurnptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial
statements and accompanying notes. Future events may occur which can cause the assumptions used
in arriving at those estimates to change. The effects of any changes in judgments and estimates will
be reflected in the financial statements as they become reasonably determinable. Judgments and
estimates are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future evenis that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances,
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Judgoment
In the process of applying the Club’s accounting policies, management has made the following

judgments, apart from those involving estimations, which have the most significant effects on the
amounts recognized in the financial statements:

Identification of contracts with customers under PFRS 15

The Club applies PFRS 15 guidance to a portfolio of contracts with similar characteristics as the Club
reasonably expects that the effects on the financial statements if applying this guidance to the
portfolio would not differ materially from applying this guidance to the individual contracts within
that portfolio. Hence, the Club viewed each transaction receipt as one contract.

Identifying performance obligations

The Club identifies performance obligations by considering whether the promised goods or services
in the contract are distinct goods or services. A good or service is distinct when the customer can
benefit from the good or service on its own or together with other resources that are readily available
to the customer and the Club’s promise to transfer the good or service to the customer is separately
identifiable from the other promises in the contract.

Determining whether the Club is acting as a principal or agent

The Club assesses its revenue arrangements against specific criteria in order to determine if it’s acting
as principal or agent. The following criteria indicate whether the Club is acting as a principal or an
agent:

The Club has the primary responsibility for providing services to the customer;

* The Club has latitude in establishing price, either directly or indirectly, for example by providing
additional services; and,

¢ The Club bears the customer’s credit risk for the amount receivable from the customer.

The Club has conchided that generally, it is acting as a principal in its revenue arrangements.

Finance legse classifications - the Club aos lessee

The Club’s classification of a lease depends on the substance of the transaction rather than the form
of the contract. The following sjtuations individually or in combination would normally lead to a
Iease being classified as a finance lease:

» the lease transfers ownership of the asset to the lessee by the end of the lease term;

» the Jessee has the option to purchase the asset at a price which is expected to be sufficiently lower
than the fair value at the date the option becomes exercisabie such that, at the inception of the
lease, it is reasonably certain that the option will be exercised (frequently called a *bargain
purchase’ option);

the lease term is for the major part of the economic life of the asset even if title is not transferred;
at the inception of the lease the present value of the minimum lease payments amounts to at least
substantially all of the fair value of the leased asset; and

the leased assets are of a specialized nature such that only the lessee can use them without major
modifications being made.

a & & @

The Club has assessed its agreement with Engie Services for the installation, operation and
maintenance of chilled water supply for the Club’s air-conditioning system. The Club has concluded
that it has acquired significantly all the risks and rewards of ownership of the equipment and
accounted the agreement as a {inance lease (see Note 19).
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Evaluation of impairment on nonfinancial assets

The Club assesses asset impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. The Club considers the following factors, which
could trigger an impairment review, as important:

» Significant underperformance relative to expected historical or projected future operating results;

¢ Significant changes in the manner of use of the acquired assets or the strategy for overall
business; and,

» Significant negative industry or economic trends,

In determining the present value of estimated future cash flows expected to be generated from the
continued use of the assets, the Club s required to make estimates and assumptions that can
materially affect the financial statements,

As of December 31, 2021, and 2020, the Club has assessed that no impairment indicators exist on its
nonfinancial assets.

Recognition of deferred tax assets

The Club reviews the carrying amounts of deferred tax assets at each reporting date and reduces it to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient income will be available to allow all or part of
the deferred tax assets to be ufilized. However, there is no assurance that the Club will generate
sufficient future taxable profit to allow all or part of its deferred income tax assets to be utilized.

In 2021 and 2020, the Club recognized deferred tax asset on the carryforward benefits of NOLCO
and contract liabilities but up to the extent only of the deferred tax liability on the temporary
difference arising from the Club’s finance lease transaction amounting #4.60 million and

235,39 million, respectively (see Note 16).

As of December 31, 2021, and 2020, the Club recognized deferred tax assets amounting to

P4.60 million and £35.39 million, respectively. Since management believes that it is likely that the
carryforward benefit of recognizing deferred tax assets may not be realized, the Club did not
recognize deferred tax assets on the tax effect of the temporary differences related to provision for
retirement expense, allowance for doubtful accounts, contract liabilities, NOLCO and MCIT
amounting to R55.89 million and43.97 million as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively
{see Note 16},

Use of Estimates and Assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and Habilities within the next financial year are discussed below:

Provision for expected credit losses of contract receivables

The Club uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for contract recejvables. The provision rates are
based on days past due. The provision matrix is initially based on the Club’s historical observed
default rates. The Club calibrates the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss experienced with
forward-looking information. At every financial reporting date, the historical observed default rates
are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analyzed.
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The assessment of the correlation between historical observed default rates, forecast economic
conditions (¢.g., gross domestic product and inflation rate) and ECLs is a significant estimate.

The amount of ECLs is sensifive to changes in circumstances and of forecast economic conditions.
"The Club’s historical credit loss experience and forecast of economic conditions may also not be
representative of member’s actual defmuls in the future,

In assessing the provision for the year, the Club used interest and unemployment rates to adjust its
higtorical data. The Club has considered the impact of COVID-19 pandemic and revised its
assumptions in determining the macroeconomic variables and loss rates in the computation of
expected credit loss. The changes in the gross carrying amount of receivables during the year and
impact of COVID-19 pandemic did not materially affect the Club’s allowance for expected credit
loss.

As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the allowance for expected credit loss amounted to B2.66 million
(see Note 5).

Estimating useful lives of property and equipment

- The Club estimates the useful lives of its property and equipment based on the period over which
these assets are expected to be available for use. The EUL of property and equipment are reviewed at
least annually and are updated if expectations differ from previous estimates due to physical wear and
tear, and technical or commercial obsolescence on the use of these assets. It is possible that future
results of eperations could be materially affected by changes in estimates brought about by changes in
factors mentioned above. There were no changes on the EUL of the property and equipment.

The carrying value of property and equipment amounted to £391.96 million and £399,97 million as
of December 31, 2021, and 2020, respectively (see Note 8).

Estimating pension liability

The determination of the Club’s obligation and cost of pension and other benefits is dependent on the
selection of certain assumptions used by actuaries in calculating such amounts. Those assumptions
are described in Note 18 and include, among others, discount rates and rates of salary increase. While
the Club believes that the assumptions are reasonable and appropriate, significant differences in the
actual experience or significant changes in the assumptions may materially affect the pension and
other obligations.

Pension Lability as of December 31, 2021, and 2020 amounted to 29.92 million and £10.23 million,
respectively (see Note 17).

Cash _
_ 2021 2020
Cash in banks P77,650,096 Pg3,542 288
Cash on hand _ 782,600 752,000

£78,402,096 B24.264 D8R

Cash in banks earn interest at the prevailing bank deposit rates. Interest income from deposits and
savings accounts amounted to R0.11 million and 1.04 million in 2021 and 2020, respectively
{see Notes 10 and 15).

There is no cash restriction on the Club’s cash balances as at December 31, 2021 and 2020,
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5. Contract Receivables

2021 2020

Receivables from
Members £32,845,427 P25,861,574
Banquet sales 776,512 449,446
Credit cards 314,256 1,048,406
Others 1.329,688 2,187 488
35,265,883 29,546,914
Less expected credit loss 2,663,460 2,663,460

$32,602,423 B26,883.454

These receivables are collectible within a year. Receivables from members are collateralized by a
preferential lien on the Club shares owned by the member.

“Others” consists of advances made to employees for sickness and maternal benefits and other
miscellaneous receivables which are collectible within a year,

No additional allowance for expected credit losses was recognized in 2021 and 2020,

6. Inventories

2021 2020
Food P6,442,166 P5789,523
Beverage 1,282,162 1,464.935
Operating supplies 1,654,540 1,425,615
Others 278,805 371,975

£9.657,673 BG (052 048

“Qthers” represents items and other goods for sale in the Club shop and Palms Deli. As of December
31, 2021 and 2020, the inventories are stated at cost.

Cost of inventory charged to cost of sales amounted to £49.31 million, £45.04 million and
£114.46 million 1 2021, 2020 and 2019, respectively (see Note 13).

7. Other Current Assets

2021 2020
Creditable withholding taxes £1,249,306 P1,271,000
Qthers . 398,989 561,815

1,648,295 B1,832,815

“Others” consists of deposits to health maintenance organization, deposit to suppliers, and advances
to employees which are expected to be realized within one year.
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8. Property and Equipment

202}
Sporis, Kitchen
and Other
Land Facilities and
Land TImprovemenis Butlding Eguipment Total
Cost
Balances at begimting of year P420.060,080 P16,311,740 £585,435,021 P286,376,539  P1,308,126,360
Additions - - - 3,982,497 3,982 497
Transfer from advances to suppifers - - - 18,224,331 18,224,331
Balances at end of year 420,000,000 16,311,740 585,435,621 308,586,367 1,336,333.128
Accumulated depreciation
Balances at beginning of year - 16,311,748 274,280,612 197,564,596 488,156,948
Depreciation (Notes 13 and id} - - 14,898,467 15,321,565 36,220,032
Balances at end of year - 16,311,740 289,179,079 212 886,161 518,176,980
Net book value ag of December 3t £424,000,600 P- 296,255,942 #95,700,206 P311,956,148
2020
Sposts, Kitchen
and Other
Land Facilities and
Land Improvements Building Equipment Total
Cost
Batances at beginning of year £420 000,600 PI6,311,740 R385.435.021 P283.472.623  P1,305219,384
Additions - - - 3,284,263 3,284 263
Disposals - — — (377,347} (377,347
Balances at end of year 420,080,000 16,311,740 385,435,021 286,379,539 1,308,126,300
Accumulated depreciation
Balances at beginning of year - 10,311,740 259,192,050 152,971,484 458 475,274
Depreciation (Notes 13 and 14} - - 15,088,562 §4,970,459 30059 621
Disposals - - = (377.347} (377.347)
Balances at end of year - 16,311,740 274,280,612 197,564,586 488,156,048
Net book value as of Decerber 31 B420,000. 000 P 311,154,409 PRR B14,943  PRI.969,352

The land 15 the property that was ceded, transferred, assigned and delivered by Filinvest Alabang, Inc.
(FAL the developer) under the subscription agreement dated October 20, 2000, with the Club in
exchange for 867 Class A shares, 115 Class B and 68 Class C shares, or a total of 1,050 shares valued
at 400,000 per share.

The land with the area of 30,000 square meters valued at 14,000 per square meter was also
developed by FAI in exchange for 1,033 Class A shares, 135 Class B shares and 82 Class C shares, or
a total of 1,250 shares valued at 2400,000 per share or 8500.00 million

The Club’s property and equipment includes the leased equipment from Engie Services (Philippines)
amounting to $31.57 million and P33.64 million in 2021 and 2020, respectively. The agreement was
entered into in 2016 which was comprised of two (2) installations that will supply chilled water to the
Club. Ownership of the instatlations will transfer to the Club upon the date of completion of testing
and commissioning and upon termination or expiration of the agreement, which shall have a term of
ten (10} years from the commencement date, respectively. This is included under “Sports, kitchen
and other facilities and equipment” (see Notes 8 and 19),

In November 2019, the Club entered into an agreement with Europool, Inc. for roof renovation and

waterproofing works. For the current year, the Club capitalized the cost of waterproofing which was
initially Jodged in advances to suppliers amounting to P18.22 million.
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The Club recognized gain on disposal of property and equipment amounting to nil and
B0.33 million in 2021 and 2020, respectively.

9. Accounts and Other Payables and Contract Liabilities
Accounts and other payables consist of:
2021 2020
Accounts payable (Note 18) B15,070.613 B16,127,775
Accrued expenses
Utilities and others 9,966,135 17,307,769
Payroll 10,343,451 7,999 588
QOuiside services 2,570,974 2,553,944
Others 532,969 1,762,377
Members’ cash bond 3,971,304 3,896,930
Denosits 1,755,070 1,120,263
£44,210,516 850,768,646
“Accounts payable” mainly consists of payables to suppliers for various acquisitions of food and
beverages used in the normal operations of the Club, acquisitions of services and other assets and are
normally patd within one year.
“Others” under “Accrued expenses”™ includes accruals for the following operating expenses, but are
not limited to, unapplied service charges and consigned merchandises, and are normally paid within
one (1) vear.
“Members” cash bond” pertains to cash receipts from assignees for a specific period of time. This is
renewable at the end of the assignment contract which is usually on an annual basis.
“Deposits™ mainly pertains to various deposits from suppliers and bank credits.
Contract liabilities
This account consists of:
2021 2020
Membership dues received in advance $20,726,500 £19,438,980
Banquet deposits _ 1,251,783 2,657,049
P21,978,283 B2 096,029
Membership dues received in advance are recoghized as income over the period when these are due.
Banquet deposits are recognized as revenue when the related services are rendered.
10. Related Pa"rtj'r' Transactions

The Club has entered into various transactions with related parties. Parties are considered 1o be
related if one party has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the other party in making financial
and operating decisions or the parties are subject to common control or common significant influence
{referred to as affiliates). Related parties may be individuals or corporate entities,
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Terms and Conditions of transactions with related parties

The Club, in its regular conduct of business, has entered into transactions with related parties
consisting recelvables and payables in relation to the operating needs of the parties. These are based
on terms agreed by the parties.

Outstanding balances at year-end are unsecured, noninterest-bearing, and unless otherwise indicated,
settlement occurs in cash.. There have been no guarantees provided or received for any related party
receivables or payables. The Club does not provide any allowance relating to receivable from related
parties in prior years. There are also no ECL recognized in current year for related party receivables
since there are no history of default paymenis. This assessment is undertaken each financial year
through examining the financial position of the related parties and the markets in which the related
parties operate.

Significant related party transactions are as follows:

a) The Club has trade receivables from its affiliates as members of the Club for which it bills
monthly membership dues and use of facilities. These affiliates include entities affiliated with
FAlL the developer.

b} The Club maintains cash in bank account with Bast West Banking Corporation {EWBC), a bank
affitiated with FAL Cash in banks earn interest at the prevailing market rates (see Note 4).

¢} The Club has obtained and made various advances for maintenance, utilities, payroll, and other
expenses from and to FAI its developer. The outstanding balances are presented under
“Due to related parties” in the statements of financial position,

The details of the account balances and transactions with related parties are as follows:

2021
Amount/ Asset/
Volume {Liability) Term Condition
Affiliates
Due every month,; inferest Unsecured;
a) Membership dues 3,500 B245.008 bearing tmimpaired
Due and demandable;
interest bearing at Unsecored;
by Cash in banks (Note 4) (8,613,057) 72,087,623 prevailing market rate usnrestricted
b)) Interest income from banks 110,606 -
Due and demandable;
¢} Bme from related parties (1,576,683} 618,725 noninterest bearing Unsecured
Developer
¢} Membership dues and use of Due every month; Unsecured;
facilities {Note 5) (P45,275) P196,225 noninterest-bearing ugimpaired
¢} Lhilities, payroll, maintenance Pue every monih;
expense and others {#7,545) {#318,175} noninterest-bearing Unsecured
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2020
Amount/ Asset/
Voiume {Liability} Term Condition
Affiliates
Bue every month; Unsecured;
a} Membership dues {R1,115,611) R212,500 interest bearing unimpaired
Due and demandable;
interest bearing at Unsecured;
b} Cash in banks (Note 4) {68,551,063) 27,619,376  prevailing market rate nprestricted
by Interest income from banks 1.038,070 -

Drue and demandable; Unsecured:
¢} Due from related parties {1,576.683) 454,000 noninterest bearing unimpaired
Developer
¢) Membership dues and use of Due every month; Unsecured;

facilities (Note 5} #461,072) P241,500 noninterest-bearing unimpaired
¢) Ukilities, payroll, maintenance Due every month;
expense and others 273,196 (300,720) noninterest-bearing Unsecured

Compensation of key management personne! in the form of short-term employee benefits amounted
to £7.10 million, £7.02 million and £7.25 million in 2021, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

1.

Capital Stock

As of December 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019, the Club’s anthorized and fully paid capital stock consists
of five classes of common, no par value shares, as follows:

Shares Amount
Class A shares 1,900 P915,109,926
Class B shares 250 120,270,900
Class C shares 150 72,312,695
Class D shares 2,293 2,293,000
Founders’ shares _ 7 7,000

4,600 P1,109,993,521

All classes of shares entitle the holders to one vote for each share in any and all regular and special
meetings of shareholders.

Class A shares are available to natural persons and entitle the holder to membership in the Club and
to the use and enjoyment of the Club’s facilities. Class A shares are likewise available to juridical
persons and entitle the holders to name one nominee for membership in the Club and to use and enjoy
the facilities of the Club.

Class B shares are available only to juridical persons and entitle the holder to rame two nominees for
membership in the Club and to use and enjoy the facilities of the Club.

Class C shares are only available to juridical persons and entitle the holder to name three nominees
for membership in the Clhub and to use and enjoy the facilities of the Club.

Holders of Class D shares are not entitled to the use and enjoyment of the Club’s facilities,

Correspondingly, Class D shares are to be excluded in the computation and assessment of
membership fees, dues and other payments relative to the operation and maintenance of the Club,
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Upon liquidation of Class D shares, the holders will be reimbursed only fo the extent of the original
acquisition of the shares amounting to £2.30 million.
Founders’ shares shall have the exclusive right to vote and be voted for in the election of directors for
five years from and after the date of registration of the Articles of Incorporation. Thereafter, holders

of Founders’ shares shall have the same voting rights and privileges as holders of Class A shares.

The Club shall not issue shares of stock, which will reduce the stock ownership of Philippine citizens
to less than 60% of the outstanding capital stock. No holder of any class of shares shall have any

The shares held by FAI and its respective nominees for the founders’ shares or held by the Club are
non-obligatory or participating.

On May 24, 2000, the SEC approved the registration of the 4,600 no par value shares.

Below is the summary of outstanding number of shares and holders of security as of
December 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019;

Number of Number of Holders of
Year Shares Registered  Securities as of Year End
December 31, 2021 4,600 1,994
December 31, 2020 4,600 1,989
December 31, 2019 4,600 1,981

Capital Management

As a non-profit organization, the Club primarily relies on the issuance of club shares, fixed monthly
membership dues from members and charges arising from usage of facilities such as the sports and
dining facilities. These are the only sources of cash flows which the Club has to manage properly.

As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Club’s primary source of capital is its total equity amounting
to £845.29 million and P859.01 million, respectively.

. CiubHShop and Other Revenues

2021 2020 2016
Transfer fees P9,785,000 R7.243.000 $12,543,000
Assignment fees 3,388,000 3,326,929 5,185,714
Deli merchandise 2,585,013 2,303,094 3,417,416
Club events 991,832 80,658 557,195
Revenues from party packages 467,226 769,176 4,577,569
Corkage, room and equipment hire 452,560 446,556 2,568,090
Merchandise sales 395,847 418,193 018,151
Consignment sales 333,757 341,702 1,515,649
Renomination fees 285,000 360,000 540,000
Visitors® pass 6,500 149,500 598,000
Others 6,830 111,956 184,157

P18,698,565 P15,560,764 P32.604,941
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“Transfer fees” pertain to fees charged by the Club to process the transfer of shares to new members.

“Assignment fees” pertain to the fees by the Club to a member when it assigns its rights to another
person or entity.

“Revenue from party packages” pertain fo revenues generated by the Club from outside catering, food
and beverage for outside events, discount on promotions and party packages of the Club.

“Consignment sales” pertain to revenues by the Club which are generated through a consignee.
g g £n

“Renomination fees” pertain to fees charged by the Club to corporations for nominations of new
members for corporate shares.

“Others” represent revenues from other operating departments of the Club.

13. Direct Costs
2021 2020 2019
Food and beverage (Note 6) £46,722,833 P42.332,184 P108,280,222
Payroll (Note 17} 34,659,112 38,930,322 66,679,996
Utilities, laundry and supplies 24 659,641 23,197,747 42,586,073
Banquets and special events 5,075,760 2,613,186 4,759,385
Marketing and others 4,619,510 4,474,370 8,024,723
Sports and recreation 3,894,510 3,676,838 11,973,927
Club shop and others (Note 6) 2,586,627 2,712,072 6,182,712
Depreciation (Note 8) 1,511,002 1,502,952 1,515,983
(Others 1,004,048 902,664 1,288,346
- P124,733,043 P120,342,335 B25]1,291,367
“Others” consist of expenses incurred by the Club such as postage, freight, telecormnmunications and
contract services.
14. Operating Expenses
2021 2020 2019
General and administrative
Payroll (Note 17) 215,478,485 P15,884,515 B17,799,907
Outside services : 8,207,173 8,961,626 10,366,992
Taxes and licenses 5,434,412 6,975,528 7,075,772
Credit card service fees 3,010,020 3,184,479 3,770,177
Utilities and supplies 1,433,112 1,278,503 1,936,509
Communications 1,335,157 1,699,749 2,257,512
Insurance 624,198 705,383 740,225
Others 7,075,691 8,679,066 3,336,657
42,598,248 47,368,851 49284 351
Depreciation (Note 8) 28,709,029 28,556,069 28,803,681

(Forward)
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2021 2020 2019

Housekeeping
Payroll (Note 17) P5,008.471 B6,038,218 $£9,578,934
Utilities, laundry and supplies 1,719,288 1,428 475 2,907,489
Qutside services 919,563 897,019 969,359
Others 272,485 272,101 400,610
7,919,807 8,635,813 13,856,392

Engineering

Qutside services 2,738,978 2,516,347 3,413,761
Supplies 1,905,781 2,511,280 4,156,103
Payrofl (Note 17) 1,790,913 1,888,080 2,409,508
Others’ 213,242 377,917 211,136
6,648,914 7,293,624 10,190,505
P85,875,998 P91,854357 RI102,134,926

“Others” pertains to expenses incumred for travel and transportation, uniforms, trainings and seminars,
representation and entertainment and licenses and permits. “Others” under General and
Administrative expenses include Covid-19 related expenses amounting £3.80 million, 24.30 million
and nil for the period ended December 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019, respectively. These expenses

pertain to antigen testing, medical equipment, meals of stay-in staff, vitamins and supplies such as
face masks, face shields and disinfectants.

. Other Income

2021 2020 2019

Penalties for late payments £844,753 P318,436 P1,738,981
Interest income (Notes 4 and 10) 110,606 1,038,070 367,954
Others 2,177,380 1,195,250 3,511,540
£3,132,739 P2,551,756 B5 618,475

“Others” include income from food and beverages outside the originally availed package by members
or guests, car stickers and membership cards, among others.

. Income Taxes

Pursuant to the enactment of R.A. 11534 (CREATE Law) and reiterated on Revenue Regulation

Nao. 5-2621 the Club is subject to 25% RCIT or 1% MCIT. Moreover, Revenue Memorandum
Circular No. 35-2012 clarified the taxability of clubs organized and operated exclusively for pleasure,
recreation and other non-profit purposes. Accordingly, organizations that were established for

recreation and other non-profit purposes such as country clubs must pay income tax under National
Internal Revenue Code and VAT,

The gross receipts of recreational clubs including but not limited to membership fees, assessment
dues, rental income and services fees are subject to income tax and VAT.
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Provision for income tax consists of*

2021 2020 2019
Current »724,513 1,389,010 $3,482,623
Deferred (439,908) 598,220 (1,709,747)

P284,605 1,987,230 21,772,876

The current provision for income tax in 2021 and 2020 represents MCIT, while the current provision

in 2019 represents RCIT,

The Club did not recognize deferred tax assets on the following deductible temporary differences and
MCIT because management believes that it is likely that the carry forward benefit of recognizing

deferred tax assets on these differences will not be realized:

2021 2020 2019
Contract liabilities from advance membership
dues P3,571,074 24,119,170 £8316,125
Provision for retirement expense 13,480,105 12,153,313 11,272,293
Allowance for expected
credit loss 2,663,460 2,663,460 2,663,460
MCIT 2,113,523 3,526,970 3,713,042
NOLCO 34,061,450 21,503,457 -
B55,880,612 R43966 370 817,964,920
The components of the Club’s net deferred tax liabilities as of December 31 are as follows:
2021 2020
Deferred tax liabilities on:
Finance lease differential £3,706,650 P4.815,135
Remeasurement gain on defined benefit
obligation 889,403 577,923
4,596,053 5,393,058
Deferred tax asset on:
Coniract liabilities (4,596,053) (5,393,058}
(4,596,053) (5,393,058)
The following are the movements in NOLCO as of December 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019:
2021 2020 2019
Balance at beginning of year P21,503,457 B B5,963,582
Addition 12,557,993 21,503,457 -
Application/Expired — - {5,963,582)
Balance at end of year 134,061,450 B21,503,457 P
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On September 30, 2020, the BIR issued Revenue Regulations No. 25-2020 implementing

Section 4(bbbb) of “Bayanihan to Recover As One Act” which states that the NOLCO incurred for
taxable years 2020 and 2021 can be carried over and claimed as a deduction from gross income for
the next five (5) consecutive taxable years immediately following the year of such loss.

As of December 31, 2021, the Club has incurred NOLCQ in taxable year 2021 which can be claimed
as deduction from the regular taxable income for the next five (5) consecutive taxable years pursnant
to the Bayanihan to Recover As One Act, as follows:

Year Incurred Amount Availment Peniod
2021 B12,557,993 2022.2026
2020 21,503,457 2021-2025

The following are the movements in MCIT as of December 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019:

2021 2020 2019
Balance at beginning of vear P3,526,970 83,713,042 B3,713,042
Addition 724,513 1,389,016 -
Expiration (2,137,960 {1,575,082) -
Balance at end of year 2,113,523 B3.526,970 23,713,042

MCIT are claimable within three (3) years following the year it was incurred. Below are the
gvailment period of MCIT,

Year Incurred % Amoumnt Availment Period
2021 1.00% $724,513 2022.2024
2020 1.50% 1,389,010 2021-2023
2018 2.00% 2,137,960 2019-2021

The reconciliation of provision for income tax at the statutory tax rate to provision for income tax
shown in the statemenis of revenues and expenses follow:

2021 2020 2019
Provision for income tax at statatory
rate (B4,509,540) (£7,076,375) P3,819,136
Adjustments for:
Nendeductible interest expense 13,826 129,759 45,994
Change in unrecognized deferred
tax assets 1,920,725 7,670,185 (1,981,868}
Expired MCIT 2,137,960 1,575,082 -
Interest income subjected
to final tax {33,182) (311,420 (119,386)
Changes due to impact of CREATE 754,816 - -
Provision for income tax B284,605 P1 987,230 £1,772.876
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On February 1, 2021, the Bicameral Conference Committee, under the 18th Congress of the
Philippines, approved the reconciled version of the House Bill No. 4157 and Senate Bill No.1357
(the CREATE bill). The CREATE bill seeks to reform corporate income taxes and incentives in the
country by implementing certain changes to the current tax regulations. These changes include:

* Reduction in the RCIT from 30% to 20% for domestic corporations with net taxable income not

exceeding 5.0 million and with total assets not exceeding 100.0 million excluding the value of

land on which the particular business entity’s office, plant and equipment are situated;

Reduction in the RCIT from 30% to 25% for all other corporations;

Lowering of MCIT from 2% to 1% of gross income for 3 years;

Instead of 10% of taxable income, application of RCIT on regional operating headquarters;

Standardization of {inal taxes on foreign corporations to 15%;

Exemption of foreign sourced dividends received by domestic corporations subject to certain

conditions;

» Additional deduction of one-half (1/2) of the value of labor training expenses subject to certain
conditions;

* Repeal of the 10% improperly accumulated eamings tax (IAET);

* VAT exemption for medicines for certain critical illnesses; and

¢ VAT-free importation and sale for 3 years of COVID-19 medicines, personal protective
equipment and materials used for their production.

* 0 ¥

Under the bill, the above changes will be implemented for periods beginning July 1, 2020.

On February 24, 2021, the final version of the CREATE bill as passed by the Bicameral Conference
Committee was transmitted to the Office of the President for signing or approval into law. On
March 26, 2021, the Office of the President approved the CREATE bill and will subsequently be
called Republic Act No. 11534 or CREATE Act. The CREATE Act will become effective 15 days
after complete publication in the Official Gazette or any newspaper of general circulation in the
Philippines,

In March 2021, the “Corporate Recovery and Tax Incentives for Enterprises (CREATE) Act” which
seeks to reduce the corporate income tax rate and rationalize the current fiscal incentives by making
them time-bound, targeted and performance-based has been enacted as a law and is set to take effect
15 days after its complete publication on April 11, 2021.

7.

Pension Liability

The Club has a noncontributory, unfunded defined benefit pension plan covering substantially all of
its regular employees. The benefits are based on years of service and compensation on the last year
of employment.

The Club updates the actuarial valuation every year by hiring the services of a third party
professionally qualified actuary.,

The pension costs included in the “Payroll” account follow (see Notes 13 and 14):

2021 2020 2019

Current service cost £1,070,490 B708,556 £529,746
Interest cost 384,720 340,339 289,777
P1,455,219 P1,138,895 £R19,523
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The rollforward analysis of the present value of defined benefit obligation recognized in the
statements of financial position follows:

2021 2020 2019
Present value of obligation at
beginning of year £10,226,904 £7,351,818 £4,300,156
Current service costs 1,070,499 798,356 529,746
Interest cost 384,720 340,339 289,777
Benefits paid - {257,875) -
Actuarial loss (gain) due to:
Experience adfustments (175,910) (184,569 377,817
Change in assumptions (1,583,721) 2,188,635 1,854,322

$9,922,492 10,226,904 £7,351,818

The assumptions used to determine pension benefits of the Club are as follows:

2021 2020 2019
Discount rate 5.16% 4.03% 5.05%
Salary increase rate 4.00% 4.00% 4.00%

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of each
significant assumption on the defined benefit obligation as of the end of the reporting period,
assuming all other assumptions were held constant.

Increase
(Decrease) 2021 2020
Salary increase rate +1.00% $11,358,6240 £891,890
-1.00% (8,712,678}  (11,858,716)
Discount rate +1.00% (8,772,302) (11,894,789

-1.00% 11,306,157 8,839,433

Shown below is the maturity analysis of the benefit payments:

2021 2020
Less than one year ' P1,783,227 £1,361,008
More than one year to five years 165,863 451,951
More than five years to 10 years 4,240,634 3,228,070
More than 10 years to 15 years 7,634,533 7,166,114
More than 15 years to 20 years 13,063,663 11,910,371
More than 2§ vears 33,067,174 36,863,579

£59,955 (96 £60,981,093

18.

Financial Instruments

The carrying values of the Club’s recognized financial assets and financial labilities, approximate
their estimated fair values as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 because these are short-term in nature.

The Club’s principal financial instruments are cash, contract receivables, due from related parties,

trade and other payables and due to related parties. The main purpose of these financial instruments
is to finance the Club’s operations.
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The main objectives of the Club’s financial risk management are as follows:

« To identify and monitor such risks on an ongoing basis;
* To minimize and mitigate such risks; and
+ To provide a degree of certainty about costs,

The main risks arising from the Club’s financial assets are credit risk and liquidity risk. The Club’s
risk management policies are summanzed below:

a. Credit Risk

The Chub trades only with recognized members and creditworthy third parties. It is the Club’s
practice that all members and third parties who wish 1o trade on credit terms are subject to credit
verification procedures. Receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis. Receivables
from members are collateralized by a preferential lien on the Club shares owned by them.

The table below shows the carrying value (net of ECL) to credit risk for the components of the
statement of financial position.

2021 2020
Cash in banks 277,650,006 883,542,288
Contract recervables 32,602,423 26,883,454
Due from related parties 618,725 454 600

$110,871,244 #110,879,742

The aging analyses of loans and contract receivables are as foilows:

December 31, 2021
Nelther
Past Due nor Past Due but not lmpaired

Impaired  31-60 days  61-90 days 91-120 days >124 days Iimpaired Total
Cash in Banks B77,650,096 E P- . P B- P77.650.09
Members 23,518,126 - 6,663,843 = - 2,663,460 32,845,427

Due from related - - - -
partics 618,725 - 618,725
Banquet sales 741,594 495 - - - - 776,512
Credit cards 314,256 - - - - - 314256
Others 1,329 688 - - = - =~ 1,329,688
F104,172.485 #£34,918 B6,663,84]1 2 B B2.663,460 #113,534,704

December 31, 2020
Neither
past due nor Past due but not impaired

Impaired  31-60days  6]-90days  91-120days 120 days Fmpaired Total
Cash in Banks R83.542 288 B- B - P £ PR3,542.288
Members 18,680,721 3,673,603 843,788 - - 2663460 258613574

Due from retated - - - -
parties 454,000 - 454,000
Banguet sales 429,137 20,309 - - - - 449,445
Credil cards 1,048,406 - - - - - 1.04& 406
Others 2,187,488 - — - - - 2,187,488
o P106,342,040  P2,693,014 P43 788 P B #1663460 113,543,202

The Club’s loans and contract receivables classified as “neither past due nor impaired” are high
grade receivables that pertain to receivables from members, related parties and third parties
which, based on experience, are highly coliectibie or collectibie on demand and of which
exposure to bad debt is not significant.
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b.  Liquidity Risk
The Club monitors its cash flow position and overall liquidity position in assessing its exposure to

liquidity risk. The Club maintains a level of cash deemed sufficient to finance operations and to
mitigate the effects of fluctuation in cash Hows.

The following table summarizes the maturity profile of the Club’s financial assets held to manage
liquidity as of December 31 based on contractual undiscounted payments:

Deeember 31, 2021

Less than 3te 12 Over
Cn demand 3 months months 12 months Total
Cash P77,650,096 L . P B P77.650,096
Contract receivables 25,938,582 6,663,841 - - 32,602,423
Due from related parties 618,725 - - - 618,725
2104,207,403  P6,661,541 P— PI10,871,244

December 31, 2020

Less than 3to12 Over
On demand 3 months months 12 months Total
Cash $83,542,288 B P B B81542728%
Contract receivables 8,202,733 18,680,721 ~  26,883454
BDue from related parties 454,000 = - — 454,000
PG2,195021 P1B,680,721 P— £ P110,879,742

The maturity profile of the Club’s financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted

payments follows:
December 31, 2021
Lessthan = 3to12 Over
On demand 3 months months 12 months Taotal
Accounts and other payables
Accounts Payable £15,070,613 E E B-  P15,01,613
Accrued expenses 16,975,208 5,703,905 734,416 -~ 23,413,529
Depaosits 1,736,070 - - - 1,736,070
Member cash bond - — 3,971,304 - 3,971,304
BPue to related parties 318,175 - - — 318,175
$£34,100,066  P5,703,905 4,705,720 P-  B44.509,691
December 31, 2020
Less than 3t 12 Over
On demand 3 months Months 12 months Total
Accounts and other payables
Accounts Payable 216,127,775 P P B B16,127,775
Accrued expenses 22,945,780 4,861,990 1,751,807 - 29,623,677
Deposits $17,770 90,000 89,493 - 1,097,263
Member cash bond - - 3,856,930 - 3,896,930
Due to related parties 300,720 - - - 300,720
£40,316,045 24,951,990 P5,778,330 R R5] 046,365
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Changes in Hability arising from financing activities (obligation under finance lease) for the year
ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

2021 2020
Balance at beginning of year P17,585,342 P18,159,325
Interest 6,625,866 6,890,017
Actual Payment (7.464,800) {7,464,000)

P£16,747,208 217,585.342

19.

Lease Commitments

On April 21, 2016, the Club entered into an agreement with Engie Services (Philippines) (Engie,
formerly known as Cofely Philippines) wherein Engie will operate and maintain installations that will
supply chilled water to the Club for a period of ten (10) years. The terms of the agreement require the
Club to make monthly fixed payments of 246,000, exclusive of VAT from the date of the agreement
until the date of completion of testing and commissioning of the chilled water installations.

Upon completion of testing and commissioning, the Chub is required to make fixed monthly payments
of #622,000, exclusive of VAT, for ten {10) years, representing the fixed period charges of the Club
for the vse of the chilled water.

The agreement further stipulates that Engie will initially shoulder the cost of the installations for the
chilled water supply owned by the Club and Engie will bill the Club for its share of the cost of the
instailations. Engie shall transfer the possession of the Club’s share of the installations upon
completion of testing and commissioning.

The installations were completed in February 2017.

Among other stipulations on the contract, the Club has determined that the arrangement is effectively
a finance lease arrangement because eventual ownership will transfer to the Club,

Engie billed the Club effective March 18, 2017, which also served as the commencement date for the
full operation of the installations. The total minimum lease payments over the term of the agreement
which is 10 years amounted to £97.13 million. The present value of the minimum lease payments
amounted to $41.46 million. In addition, the Club made down paymenis amounting £22.49 million.
The related {inance cost on the agreement that is accreted over the 10-year term which is the
difference between the £97.13 million and £41.46 million amounted to £55.67 million. The
unamortized finance cost as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 amounted to £31.57 million and

£33.64 million, respectively. Total interest expense recognized on this obligation under finance lease
in 2021 and 2020 amounted to $6.62 million and £6.89 million, respectively. These were included
under “Finance costs” in the Club’s statements of revenues and expenses.

The present value of the obligation under finance lease amounted to £16.75 million and
£17.59 million as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

The catrying value of the Club’s finance lease asset (under sports, kitchen and other facilities and

equipment) amounted to £31.57 million and £33.64 million as of December 31, 2021 and 2020,
respectively (see Note 8).
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The future minimum rental payments pertaining to the finance lease as of December 31, 2021 and
December 31, 2020 are as follows:

2021 2020
Within one year P7.,464.600 P7,464,000
After one year buf not more than five years 37,942,000 45 406,000

45,406,000 B52 870,000

20.

Contingencies

The Club is involved in a certain administrative proceeding. The Club, in collaboration with outside
legal counsel handling defense, as the case may be, does not believe that this proceeding will have a

material adverse effect on its financial position and performance. 1t is possible, however, that future

financial performance could be materially affected by changes in the estimates or in the effectiveness
of strategies relating to this. No accruals were made in relation to this proceeding,

21.

Events after Reporting Period

COVID-19 Pandemic

The Club continues to abide by and comply with all rules and regulations issued by the

government in relation to the COVID-19 pandemic. In line with applicable rules and regulations, the
said risks are mitigated by business continuity strategies set in place by the Club. Measures

currently undertaken by the Club to mitigate the risks of COVID-{9 pandemic on its operations
include work-from-home arrangements, proper and frequent sanitation of office premises,
cancellation of large group meetings in person, an internal ban on foreign business travel, and the
practice of social distancing through remote coramunication, among others.

Effective February 16, 2022, Inter-Agency Task Force (JATF) placed the National Capital Region
(NCR) and some parts of the Country including Calabarzon under Alert Level 2. Further easing up
the alert level for NCR and other areas in the Philippines to Alert Level 1 effective March 1, 2022,
Except for face to face classes for basic education subject to prior approval by the Office of the
Presidents, all establishments, persons, or activities, are allowed to operate, work, or be undertaken at
full on-site or venue/seating capacity provided it is consistent with minimum public health standards.

As a result of the COVID-19 pandemic, the Club incurred related expenses amounting

#3.80 million pertaining to antigen testing, medical equipment, meals of stay-in staff, vitarins and
supplies such as face masks, face shields and disinfectants. These expenses were incurred are
included in “Others” under General and Administrative expenses account in the statement of revenues
and expenses {Note 14). These expenses are necessary for the protection of Club members and staff,
It is also aligned to the objective of the national government to prevent further spread of the
COVID-19 infection.

LT



By Goraes Velayo & Co. Vel (852) 858 8507

B A Avanie Eax (32} 8819 GB7F?
waks Oy ey LIRTH T

.

Bradicing @ batier i
WOTHG ol

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

The Members and the Board of Directors

The Palms Couniry Club, Ing,

1410 Laguna Heights Drive, Filinvest Corporate City
Alabang, Muntinlupa City

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of The Palms Country Club, Inc., as at
December 31, 2021 and for the year then ended, on which we have rendered the attached report dated
April 8, 2022,

In compliance with the Revised Securities Regulation Code Rule No. 68, we are stating that the Club has
one (1) stockholder owning one hundred {100) or more shares,

SYCIP GORRES VELAYO & CO. -

ke 4 Sty

Michael C. Sabado
Partner
CPA Certificate No, 89336
Tax Identification No. 160-302-865
BOA/PRC Reg, No. 0001, August 25, 2021, valid until April 15, 2024
SEC Partner Accreditation No. 0664-AR-4 {Group A)
November 11, 2019, valid until November 10, 2022
SEC Firm Accreditation No. 8001-SEC (Group A)
Valid to cover audit of 2021 to 2025 financial statements of SEC cavered institutions
BIR Accreditation No. 08-001998-073-2020, December 3, 2020, valid until December 2, 2023
PTR No. 8854360, January 3, 2022, Makati City

April 8, 2022

VAR TACAIREA A

Amermber frm of Emal & Yaung Gisbal Limited
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
ON SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES

The Members and the Board of Directors

The Palms Country Club, Inc.

1410 Laguna Heights Drive, Filinvest Corporate City
Alabang, Muntinlupa City

We have audited in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing, the financial statements of
The Palms Couniry Chub, Inc. (the Club) as at December 31, 2021 and 2020 and for each of the three
years in the period ended December 31, 2021 included in this Form 17-A and have issued our report
thereon dated April 8, 2022. Our audits were made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic
financial statements taken as a whole. The schedules listed in the Index to Financial Statements and
Supplementary Schedules are the responsibility of the Club’s management. These schedules are
presented for purposes of complying with the Revised Securities Regulation Code Rule 68 and are not
part of the basic financial statements. These schedules have been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied 1n the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, fairly state in all material
respects, the financial information required to be set forth therein in relation to the basic financial
staternents taken as a whole,

SYCIP GORRES VELAYO & CO,
Thitbel )V,
Michael C, Sabado
Partner
CPA Certificate No. 89336
Tax Identification No. 160-302-365
BOA/PRC Reg. No. 0001, August 25, 2021, valid until Aprif 15, 2024
SEC Partner Accreditation No. 0664-AR-4 (Group A)
November 11, 2019, valid until November 10, 2022
SEC Firm Accreditation No. 0001-SEC (Group A)
Valid to cover audit of 2021 to 2023 financial statements of SEC covered institutions

BIR Accreditation No. 08-001998-073-2020, December 3, 2020, valid until December 2, 2023
PTR No. 8854360, January 3, 2022, Makati City

April 8, 2022
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THE PALMS COUNTRY CLUB, INC.
{A Net-for-Prefit Corporation)

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION AND DISCLLOSURES REQUIRED ON

REVISED SRC RULE 68 AND 68.1
DECEMBER 31, 2021

Philippine Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) issued the amended Securities Regulation Code
Rule SRC Rule 68 and 68.1 which consolidates the two separate rules and labeled in the amendment as
“Part I and “Part ]1”, respectively. It also prescribed the additional information and schedule
requirements for issuers of securities to the public.

Below are the additional information and schedules required by SRC Rule 68 and 68,1 as amended that
are relevant to the Club, This information is presented for purposes of filing with the SEC and is not
required part of the basic financial statements.

Schedule A. Financial Assets in Equity Securities - Not Applicable

Schedule B. Amounts Receivable from Directors, Officers, Employees, Related Parties
and Principal Stockholders {other than related parties)

There is no receivable from employees with aggregate indebtedness of more than £100,000 or 1% of the
total assets as of December 31, 2021.

Schedule C. Amounts receivable from related parties which are eliminated during the Consclidation of
Financial Statements - Not Applicable as the Club does not prepare consolidated financial statements,

Schedule D. Intangible Assets - Not Applicable. The Club does not have intangible assets.

Schedule E. Long-term Debt - Not applicable
The Club has no outstanding long-term debt as of December 31, 2021,

Schedule F. Indebtedness to Related parties
As of December 31, 2021, there are no noncurrent liabilities due to related parties. Current liabilities due
to related parties amounted to 20.3¢ million.

Schedule G. Guarantees of Securities of Other Securities - Not Applicable



Schedule H. Capita] Stock

Numberof  Number of

shares issued shares
and  reserved for
outstanding options,
as shown warrants, Numberof  Directors,
Number  under related conversion  shares held Officers
of shares  balance sheet and other by related and
Title of issue authorized caption rights parties  Employees Others
Club A Shares 1,900 1.900
Club B Shares 250 250
Club C Shares 150 150
Club I Shares 2.293 2.293

Founder Shares 7 7



THE PALMS COUNTRY CLUB, INC.
{A. Not-for-Profit Corporation)

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE ON FINANCIAL SOUNDNESS INDICATOR

REQUIRED ON REVISED SRC RULE 68 AND 68.1
DECEMBER 31, 2021

Below are the financial ratios that are relevant to the Club for the years ended December 31, 2021 and
2020:

Financial ratios 2021 2020
Current ratio Current assets
Current liabilitics 1.83 190
Quick ratio Cash and. rci;n?xyabie 1.64 1.51
Current habilities
Solvency ratio Tatal assets
Total liabilities 10.93 952
Debt-equity ratio Total liabilities
- A1 12
Total equity
Profit margin ratio Net income (foss)
Total revenue (08 ¢12)

In computing the current ratio, the Club considered the following accounts as current (based on the
maturity profile of each accounts):

Current assets

» Cash

s  Contract receivables
* Inventortes

s (Other current assets

Current liabilities

» Trade and other payables

» Duge to related parties

e Contract liabilities

e Loans payable - current portion



THE PALMS COUNTRY CLUB, INC.
{A Not-for-Profit Corporation)

INDEX TO THE CLUB’S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY
SCHEDULES

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES
Independent Auditor’s Report on Supplementary Schedules
Reconciliation of Retained Earnings Available for Dividend Declaration

Club Supplementary Information and Disclosures Required on Revised SRC Rule 68 and 68.1.



THE PALMS COUNTRY CLUB, INC.
(A Not-fer-Profit Corporation)

RECONCILIATION OF RETAINED EARNINGS AVAILABLE FOR
DIVIDEND DECLARATION

This schedule is not applicable since the Club has an accumulated deficiency of revenues over costs and
expenses amounting to 250.35 million and £250.35 million as at December 31, 2021 and 2020,
tespectively. In addition, in accordance with the Club’s by-laws, no part of the income or asset of the
Club shall belong to or inure to the benefit of any member, officer or any specific person. The objective
of the Chub 15 to provide facilities for the use and enjoyment of members.



COUNTEY " ¢CLUUEB

STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The management of THE PALMS COUNTRY CLUB, INC. is responsible for the preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements including the schedules attached therein, for the years ended
December 31, 2021 and 2020, in accordance with the prescribed financial reporting framework
indicated therein, and for such internal control as management determines in necessary to enable the
predation of financial statements that are free from material misstatemant, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concem, disclosing, as applicable matters related to going concern and using
the going concem basis of accounfing unless management either intends fo liquidate the Company or
o cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but {o do so.

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process,

The Board of Directors reviewed and approved the financial statements including the schedules
attached therein, and submits the same to the stockholder or members.

SyCip, Gorres, Velayo & Co., the independent auditor appointed by the stockholders, has audited the
financial statements of the company in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing, and in its
report to the stockhoiders or members, has expressed its opinion on the fairness of presentation upon
completion of such audit.
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President and CEC
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PART I - FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Tiem 1. Financial Statements

Please refer to the attached Interitn Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Revenue and Expense,
Statement of Changes in Stockholder’s Equity, Statement of Cash Flow and Notes to Financial Statements
. referred to as Annex A,

The attached Interim Financial Statements have been prepared in compliance with Philippine Financiat
Reporting Standards {PFRS) and, we disclose the following information:

a) The same accounting policies and methods of computation are followed i the interim financial
statements as compared with the December 31, 2021 Audited financial statements.

b) There have been no unusual items affecting assets, liabilities, equity or cash flow.
¢} There have been no changes in estimates of amounts reported in prior financial year.
d) There have been no issuances, repurchases and repayments of debt and equity security.

g} The Club, being a non-profit organization will not be declaring any dividend. Reference is made
to the Articles of Incorporation and By-Laws as amended.

f) There have been no material event subsequent to the end of the interim period that have not
been reflected in the financial statements for the interim period.

g) There has been no change in the composition of the issuer during the period.
h) There have been no contingent liabilities or contingent assets provided ever since.

i) There have been no material contingencies and other events or transactions that are material to
an understanding of the current interim period.

Ftem 2.  Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition.

Revenue generated for the first quarter ending March 31, 2022 was 256.6 million compared to £
51.0 million of the same period in 2021 and £78.9 million in 2020. Compared to year 2021, Food
‘and Beverage increased by 30.6%, Membership dues increased by .2%, Sports and Reereation
increased by 35.5% while Club Shop and others decreased by 31.1%. Overall increase in tevenues
compared to year 2021 was 11.1%. The increase in the performance of Club for the first quarter is
due to the easing of restrictions of the pandemic. The Club was closed on March 17, 2020 when
the government declared a total lockdown in Metro Manila. Since then, the country has undergone
various quarantine classifications depending on the number of positive cases reported. On
November 11, 2021, the government approved the nationwide rollout of the Alert Level System
and adopted guidelines to be implemented and enforced in all areas. The government declared
Metro Manila under Alert Level 1, where cases are low and decreasing. Facilities of the Club
gradually were opened but still subject to safety protocols. The Deli remained available for food
delivery. Food and Beverage contributed 50.2% to total revenue, Membership dues 37.6%, Sports
and recreation 5.1% and Club shop and other revenues 7.1%.
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Total direct cost was P36.9 million in the first quatter compared to £50.6 million in the same period of year
2021 and £53.5 million in 2020. In terms of percentage, total direct cost by the end of the first quarter was
65.1% compared to last yeat’s 60.1% and 67.8% in 2020. Food and Beverage cost contributed 27.2%,
payroll cost at 17.4%, utilities and supplics at 12.4% and the rest at 8.1%. Compared to year 2021, total
direct cost increased by B20.4 million mainly due to increased business and resulting to increase in operating
expenses. Payroll cost increased 17.4%.

Non-revenue departments such as administrative, depreciation, eagineering and housekeeping showed an
increase of 3.1% for the first quarter ending March 31, 2022. From B21.7 million in 2021, it posied an
increase of B, 7 million in 2022 mainly due to an increase in various operating costs such as contract services,
operating supplies and credit card fees compared to year 2020. Included in the operating supplies are the
- various supplies for pandemic like face shields, face masks and disinfectants. '

As of March 31, 2022, revenues over cost and expenses before other income and finance lease was a loss
of 22.6 million compared to loss of B 1.4 million last year. Finance lease decreased by 4.9% while other
income decreased by 3.0%. Total net loss the end of the first quarter of 2022 was £3.4 miflion compared to
loss of B2.4 million in 2021, and loss of £1.2 million in 2020.

Total collection of membership dues for the first quarter remained at #21.3 million compared to the same
period of last year. Total number of members as of March 31, 2022 was 2,1 60 or an increase of 3 members
from 2157 as of December 31, 2021. The availability of shares from the secondary market and the
uncertainty brought about by the pandemic is resulting to the slow sales of fresh shares.

Total asset as of March 31, 2022 was £925.4 million compared to 938.2 million as of December 31, 2021
or a decrease of 12.8 million. This is mainly due to the decrease in cash, receivables and inventories. Net
book value of property and equipment also decreased by R7.1 million. Cash decreased by P6.4 miltion,
accounts receivable decreased by P4.2 million and inventories decreased by P1.5 millicn. Advances to
suppliers decreased by 20.7%. Other current assets increased by 429.5% ot $7.1 million due to the
prepayments of property taxes, licenses and permits and association dues. Deferred input Vat decreased by
11.1%. Total current assets stands at B118.6 million compared to 2124.0 million in December 31, 2021 or
a decrease of 7.0% or P5.5 million.

Total current labilities amounted to B58.3 million on March 31, 2022 and B67.7 million on December 31,
2021 or a decrease of 13.9%, Accounts and other payables decreased to B38.1 million from last year’s B
44.2 million or 2 13.8% decrease, This is due to payments made to suppliers and manning agencies. Due to
related party increased by 15.5% from .3 miilion in December 2021 fo .4 million by March 31, 2022. -
Contract liabilities decreased by 14.1% or B3.1 million. Included in the Contract liabilities are events
deposits and advance membership dues of members. Advance monthly dues are applied as they mature.

Total current assets stood at P118.6 million while current liabilities stood at B58.3 million. The Club’s
cutrent ratio was at 2.3 as of March 31, 2022. To improve cash position, penalty charges of 2% per month
or 24% per annum were continually enforced against members with overdue accounts. In addition, the use
of the Club’s facilities is suspended with respect to members whose accounts are overdue for 60 days or
more, Quick ratio is favorable at 1.7 while solvency ratio is at 11 with total assets of P925.4 million over
‘total liabilities of £83.9 million. The Club’s debt equity ratio is strong at .10 with the total liabilities of P
~ 83.9 million over total equity of #841.4 million.



PERFORMANCE INDICATORS:

March 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Current Ratio 2.03 1.83
Current Assets , 118.6 124.0
Current Liabilities 583 67.7
Quick Ratio 1.72 1,64 |
Cash + Accts Receivable 100.4 1110
Current Liabilities 583 67.7
Solvency Ratio 11 10
Total Assets 9254 938.2
Total Liabilities ' 83.9 9312
Debt-Equity Ratio ' a0 A2
Total Liabilities - 83.9 932
. Total Stockholders Equity 841.4 845.0
- Profit Margin Ratio (.06) (.08)
Net Income {Loss) (3.6) (15.3)
Total Revenue 56.6 195.5

There are no events known fo the Club that will frigger any material financial obligation including any
default or acceleration of obligation.

There are no known trends, demands, commiiments, evenis or uncertainties that will have a material impact
on its liquidity.

The Club is undergoing a major waterproofing project and some minor repairs of the facilities but funds for
these will be derived solely from operations.

The global pandemic has affected the world economy. It has created an uncertainties that had material
~ unfavorable impact on revenues from continuing operations. The Club will continually adapt and adjust its
- activities to allow members full enjoyment of the facilities to the extent allowed under existing Alert Level

Svatem rules and guidelines.

There are no seasonal aspects that had material effects on the financial condition or results of operations of
the Club,

Part I1 - OTHER INFORMATION

Except as disclosed in the Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operation, there are no unusual items affecting assets, liabilities, equity, net income or cash flows for the
period. There are also no material events subsequent to the period under review up to the date of this report.
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THE PALMS COUNTRY CLUB
Statement of Financlal Position

Annex A

March 31, 2022 December 31, 2021 Pecomber 31, 2020
(Audited) {Audited}
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash {Note 2} 71,569,986 78,402,096 103,884,983
Contract receivables (Mote 3} - 28,415,047 32,602,423 36,669,406
Due from related parties 359,338 618,725 2,030,683
Inventories (Note 4) 8,193,579 9,657,673 12,042,141
 Advances to Suppliers (Note 5} 878,706 1,108,398 12,787,347
Qther Current Assets {Note 5} 8,727,928 1,648,295 2,184,082 .
‘Tataf Current Assets 118,558,635 124,037,610 169,598,642
Noncurrent Assets : .
Property and equipment - net (Note 6} 804,858,325 811,956,148 245,744,110
Deferred Input VAT (Note 7} 1,948,841 2,193,127 3,304,418
Total Noncurrent Assets 806,807,166 814,149,275 843,048,528
Total Assets 925,365 201 938,186,885 1,017,647,170
LIABILITIES AND SHAREMOLDERS' EQUITY
Current Liabillties
Accounts and other payables {Note 8) 38,099,641 44,210,516 83,786,857
Contract liabilities (Note 9} 18,882,346 21,978,283 21,775,052
Due to related partles {Note 10) 367,337 318,175 596,235
Finance Lease - current portion 959,859 1,223,847 573,983
Total Current Liahiiities 58,309,183 67,730,821 106,732,127
Noncurrent Lability
ease liability - net of current portion 15,523,361 15,523,361 17,585,342
Pension liability 10,118,050 9,922,452 7,351,818
Deferred tax Habilities - -
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 25,641,411 25,445,853 24,937,160
Total Liabilities 83,950,594 93,176,674 131,669,287
Equity
Capital Stock {Note 11} 1,109,993,521 1,109,993,521 1,109,953,522
Accumulated deficiency of revenues over cost & expanses {267,651,511) {252,335,116} (237,717,548}
Net Income {Loss} for the period {3,585,013) - {15,316,404) 10,957,578
Remeasurement gain on retirement plan -net of tax 2,668,210 2,668,210 2,744,332
Total Equity £41,415,207 845,019,211 885,877,883
Total Liabilities and Equity 925,365,201 938,186,885 1,017,642,170




THE PALMS COUNTRY CLUB
Statement of Revenue and Expense

FIRSY QUARTER

]

Jan. 1, 2022 to

Jan. 1, 2021 to

Jan. 1, 2020 to

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
REVENUES
Food & Beverage 28,415,783 21,752,364 45,147,616
mMembearship dues 21,321,300 21,281,700 21,743,700
Sports and recreation 2,885,334 2,132,223 5,038,845 -
Club Shop and Others 4,007,783 5,817 883 6,981,811
Total Revenues 56,634,199 50,994,171 78,911,973
LESS: DIRECT COSTS
Cost of Sales
Food & Beverage 15,401,880 11,167,757 22,073,257
Sports and recreation 1,427,580 1,076,940 2,115,426
Club $hop and others 532,236 913,965 1,512,008
Total Cost of Sales 17,381,686 13,158,662 25,704,691
Payrolf 9,847,768 B,640,721 14,995,051
Utilities, laundry & supplies 7,037 880 6,289,521 10,214,269
Communications 136,098 186,339 183,157
Contract services 112,963 135,734 129,293
Banquets and spacial events 1,083,054 1,180,688 631,531
Marketing and others 1,296,898 1,047,919 1,675,022
Total Direct Costs 36,875,391 30,640,583 53,533,015
GROSS INCOME 14,757,808 20,353,588 25 378 958
LESS: OPERATING EXPENSES
General and administrative
Utilities and supplies 206,206 169,376 192,707
Payroll 3,855,925 3,807,189 4,430,477
Qutside services 2,129,102 2,032,123 2,677,520
Credit card commission 1,601,569 859,447 1,288,088
ipsurance 155,136 155,207 284,460
Communications 313,852 323,385 474,156
Licenses and permits 1,385,297 1,390,150 1,758,245
{Others 1,663,011 1,644,519 1,495,760
Total Gen and admin 10,714,132 10,481,356 12,601,414
Depreciation 7,487,665 7,397,667 7,563,109
Housekeeping _
Payrolt 1,452,022 1,243 452 2,109,478
Qutside services 350,875 234,118 234,418
Utifities, laundry and supplies 589,689 458,452 577,198
Others 68,903 79,107 67,991
Total Housekeeping 2,503,288 2,015,129 2,889,085
Engineering
Payroll A41 735 354,059 573,540
Outside services B0R, 452 874,622 857,719
Supplies 394,543 466,495 704,795
Others 50,045 93,117 117,474
Total Engineering 1,604,774 1,824,294 2,253,528
Total Qperating Expenses 22,397,860 21,718,486 25,407,136
DEFICIENCY OF REVENUES OVER COST AND
EXPENSES BEFORE OTHER INCOME {2,640,053) {1,364,898) (28,178}
& EXPENSES
Finanee Lease Cast 1,602,012 1,685,212 1,742,190
Qther Income 647,052 667,219 554,527
TOTAL OTHER INCOME AND EXPENSES {954,960) {1,017,993} (1,187,263}
NET INCOME (LOSS) {3,595,013) {2,382,891} {1,215,441}




THE PALMS COUNTRY CLUB
Statements of Changes in Stockholders' Equity

Three Months Three Months Three Months
Ending Ending Ending :
Mar, 33, 2022 Mar, 31, 2021 Mar. 31,2020 .
" CAPITAL STOCK .
Class A shares 915,109,826 915,109,926 915,109,926
Authorized 1,900 shares
Fully paid 1,900 shares
Class B shares 124,276,500 124,270,300 120,273,900
Authorized 250 shares
Fubly paid 250 shares
Class C shares 72,312,695 72,312,695 72,312,695
Authorized 150 shares
) FuHy paid 150 shares
Class D shares 2,293,000 2,293,000 2,253,000
Authorlzed 2,293 shares
Fully paid 2,293 shares
Founders' shares 7,000 7,000 7,000
Authorized 7 shares
Fully paid 7 shares
1,109,993,521 1,109,993,521 1,109,993,521
Retained Earings {267,651,511) {252,335,114)} {226,759,981)
Net income [Loss} for the period {3,595,013) (2,382,851} {1,215,441)
DEFICIT {271,246,524) (254,718,005} {227,975,422)
Remeasurement gain on retirement benefit 2,668,210 1,348,486 2,744,322
STOCKHOLDER'S EQUITY - NET 841,415,207 856,624,003 884,762,421




THE PALMS COUNTRY CLUR
Statement of Cash Flows

Three Months Three Months Thrae Months
Ended Ended Ended
Mar. 31, 2022 Mar. 31, 2021 Mar. 31,2020 -~
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Pefictency of revenues over costs and expenses {3,595,013} 12,382,821) {1,215,441)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation 7,487,666 7,387,667 7,563,109
Finance Lease Cost 1,602,012 1,685,212 1,742,190
Net change in Pension Liahility 195,558 133,093 - 189,639 -
Gain on disposal of property, plant & Equipment - {21,500) - .
" Interest incorne {2,158) {13,822} {28,414}
Operating Loss before working capital changes 5,688,068 6,797,758 8,261,082
'Dacrease {Increase) in:
Contract Receivables 4,183,376 7,899,425 7,176,187
Due from related parties 245,337 413,300
Inventories 1,464,094 694,708 1541646
Other Current Assets {6,849,942) {9,149,218) {9,251,821)}
Deferred Input VAT 244,286 134,540 134,940
Increase {Decrease} in:
Accounts Payable and accrued expenses (6,11C,875) (8,378,865) {17,518,243)
Contract Liabilitles (3,095,937} (2,765,335) (1,909,380)
Due to a related party 49,162 117,517 658,330
Cash used in operations (4,178,432} (4,235,770} {10,467,2590)
Interest received 2,156 13,822 28,414
Net cash used in operating activities (4,176,276} (4,221,947} {10,438,845)
~ CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Decrease {increase} in: T
Property and equipment (389,836) {1,166,856} (746,582}
Proceeds from disposal of property and equipment - 21,500 - T
Net cash provided by Investing activities (389,8_36) {1,145,396} {745,582)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Finance lease {1,866,000) {1,866,000) (1,596,131}
_Net cash provided by financing activities (1,866,000} {1,866,000} {1,595,131)
" NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH (6,432,112} (7,233,343) (12,781,558} - = -
) .CASH AT BEGINNING OF PERIOD 78,402,006 $4,204,288 103,884,983
CASH AT END OF PERIOD 71,965,986 77,060,946 91,103,426




THE PALMS COUNTRY CLUB, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Preparation
The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost basis and are

‘presented in Philippine Peso (B) which is the Club’s functional currency. All values are
rounded to the nearest Peso, except when otherwise indicated,

Statement of Compliance
The accompanying financial statements of the Club have been prepared in compliance with
Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS).

Accounting Policies

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash includes cash on hand and in banks, Cash in banks earn interest at the prevailing bank
deposit rates.

Financial Assets and Liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value, Transaction
costs are inchuded in the initial measurement of all financial assets and liabilities, except
for financial instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL)

The club recognizes a financial asset or financial liability in the balance sheets when it
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument

Loans and Recejvable
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assefs with fixed or determinable

payments that are not quoted in an active market, Such assets are carried at cost using the
effective interest method. Gains and losses are recognized in the statements of revenue and
expenses when loans and receivables are derecognized or impaired, as well as through the
amortization process.

Ioans and receivables are classified as current when these are expected to be realized within
twelve months from the reporting date. Otherwise, these are classified as noncurrent assets.

This category includes the Club’s cash and receivables.

Other Financial Liabilities

Other financial liabilities are non-derivative financial liabilities with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. These hiabilities are
carried at cost or amortized cost in the balance sheet. Amortization is determined
using the effective interest method.

Included in this category are the Club’s trade and other payables and due to a
related party.
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Impairment of Financial Assets
An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is objective

evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets may be impaired. If such
evidence exists, any impairment loss is recognized in the statement of revenues and
expenses.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or net realizable value (NRV). NRV is the
estimated seiling price in the ordinary course of business less estimated costs necessary to
make the sale. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out method.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment consists of land and land improvements, buildings and facilities
and equipment. Except for land, the Club’s property and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and amortization and impairment in value, if any. Land is stated
at cost less any impairment in value.

The initial cost of property and equipment consists of its purchase price, including import
duties, taxes and any directly atiributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition
and location for its intended use. Expenditures incurred after the assets have been put into
operation, such as repairs and maintenance, are normally charged to operations in the period
in which the costs are incurred. In situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that the
expenditures have resulted in an increase in the future economic benefits expected to be
obtained from the use of an item of property and equipment beyond its originally assessed
standard of performance, the expenditures are capitalized as an additional cost of property
and equipment. When assets are sold or retired, their cost and accumulated depreciation
- and amortization are eliminated from the accounts and any gain or loss resulting from their
disposal is included in the statement of revenues and expenses.

Depreciation and amortization is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated
useful life of the related assets as follows:

Land improvements 10 years
Building 40 years
Sports, kitchen and other facilities and equipment 5 to 10 years

The Club estimates the useful lives of its property and equipment based on the period over
which these assets are expected to be available for use. The useful lives and depreciation
and amortization methods are reviewed periodically based on factors that include asset
utilization, internal technical evaluation, technological changes, environmental and
anticipated use of the assets tempered by related industry benchmark information. It is
possible that future results of operations could be materially affected by the changes i the
factors mentioned. A reduction in the estimated useful lives of property and equipment
would increase depreciation and amortization expenses and decrease property and
equipment. .

Retirement Benefit Costs

Pension costs are actuarially computed using the projected unit credit valuation method,
Under this method, the current service cost is the present value of retirement benefits
payable in the future with respect to the services rendered in the current period. Actuarial
valuations are conducted with sufficient regularity, with option to accelerate when
significant changes to underlying assumptions occur,
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Revenue Recognition
Revenue is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the

transaction wiil flow to the Club and the amount of revenue can be reliably measured. The
following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized.

Membeyship dues
Membership dues to support the operation and maintenance of the Club are billed one

month in advance and are credited to operations in the period to which the dues apply.

Collections for accounts which are not yet due and therefore do not qualify for revenue
recognition are recorded as “Membership dues paid in advance” in the liabilities section
of the financial position,

Food & Beverage
Revenue from sale of food and beverages are recognized when served.

Sports & Recreation
Revenue from sports and recreation are recognized when services have been rendered. -

Club Shop & others

Revenue is recognized when the risk and rewards of ownership of the goods have
passed to the buyer. '

Interest Income
Interest income is recognized as it accrues taking into account the effective yield on the

asset.

Equity
Capital Stock is measured at stated price for all shares issued.

‘Accumulated deficiency of revenues and membership dues over cost and expenses’
represents accumulated losses and earning and any adjustment arising from application o
new accounting standard, policies or corrections of errors applied retroactively by the Club,

Cost and Expenses
“Direct costs” and “operating expenses” are expenses that arise in the course of the ordmary

operations of the Club. Direct costs and operating expenses are expensed as incurred.

Provisions _

A provision is recognized only when the Company has a present obligation (legel or
constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amouni of the obligation. Provisions are reviewed at each
balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Contingencies
Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the financial statements. They are disclosed

unless the possibility of an cutflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote.

A contingent asset is not recognized in the financial statements but disclosed when an
outflow of economic benefit is probable.
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2. Cash

Cash consists of:

_ Mar. 31,2022 Dec. 31,2021
Current and savings accounts with P71,217,986  R77,650,096
banks :
Revolving fund 752,000 752,000

$71,969,986  P78,402,096

Cash in bank earns interest at the prevailing bank deposit rates.

There is so cash restriction on the Club’s cash balances as at March 31, 2022 and
December 31, 2021, :

3. Receivables

This account consists of:

Mar. 31,2022  Dec. 31, 2021

Members £27,613,105 $£32,845 427
Banguet Sales 1,644,570 776,512
Credit Cards 310,535 314,256
Others 1,514,297 1,329,688
31,082,507 35,265,883

Less: aillowance for doubtful accounts 2,663,460 2,663,460

2 28,415,047 232,602,423

Receivables from members are collateralized by a preferential lien on the Club shares
owned by them. These receivables are coliectible within a year.

“Other receivables” consist of advances made to employee for sickness and maternal
benefits, creditable withholding taxes for current year transactions with pending certificates
and receivables from agency hired employees

4, Inventories

This account consists oft

At Cost: Mar, 31,2022  Dec. 31,2021
Food P4,840,719 6,442,166
Beverage 1,302,791 1,282,162
‘Operating Supplies 1,772,557 1,654,540
Others 277,512 278,805

P8,193,579 £9,657,673
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5. Other Current Assets

This account consists of;

Mar, 31,2022 Dec. 31, 2021
Advances to Suppliers P878,706 21,108,398
Others _
Creditable Witholding Taxes 1,497,207 1,249,306
Others 7,230,721 108,989
Total 8,727,928 1,648,295
6. Property and Equipment
Property and
equipment are Sports, kitchen
quIp Land . and ofher Mar. 31,2022 | pec 31 2026
classified under the Land . Building facilities and Total
. Improvenents, : Total
foE]owmg equipment
accounts:
Beginning balances R420,000,0000 B16311,7400 5854350210  B308,586365 B1,330,333,126  B1,308,126,300
dditions 389,844 389,344 4,982,497
e o Advanoss o I
suppliors 18224231
Fnding batances 420,000,000 16311L.740] 585,435,021 308976209  1,330,722,970 B 1,330,333,128
Accum i ) :
ficginning balaroes 16,311,740, 289,179,079 212,886,160 318,376,979 388,156,048
Additions ' 3,675,954 3,811,719 TABT66H 30,230,032
Reversal
Ending batances 16.311,740] 292,855,033 216,697,872 575,864,645 518,576,984
Net Book Value B 420,000,000 o B292,579,988 B 92,273,33!1 nam,ass,azsl B A1 1,956,I4E1 -

The land forms part of Lot 392 of the Muntiniupa Estate in the name of the Republic of the Philippines

and developed by Filinvest Alabang, Inc. {the developer referred to in Note 10) into what is now known
as the Filinvest Corporate City (FCC). Lot 392 was the subject matter of Civil Case Nos. 99-075 and
99-320 for annulment of titles and contracts, considered to be nuisance suits. In its Resolution dated
July 30, 2007, the Supreme Court affirmed the dismissal of Civil Case No. 99-075 by the tfrial court
and Court of Appeals. On the other hand, the trial court has required the plaintiffs in Civii Case No. 99~
320 to pay the docket fees correspond ding to the value of the property subject of this case. As of
December 31, 2009, the plaintiffs have not done so. Accordingly, counsel of FAI filed in February 2009
a “Motion to Dismiss” praying that the case be dismissed with prejudice. The motion to dismiss was

granted on November 19, 2009,
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7. Other Noncurrent Assefs

Mar, 31, 2022 Dec, 31, 2021
Deferred Tax assets 1,948,841 2,193,127
P 1,948,841 R2,193,127
8. Trade and Other Payables
This account consists of:
Mar. 31,2022 Dec, 31, 2021
Trade Payables £140,720,533 215,070,613
Accrued Expenses

Payroll 7,794,589 10,343,451
Outside services 2,698,197 2,570,974
Utilities and taxes 9,940,644 9,966,135
Others 801,276 532,969

Other Payables \
Member cash bond 4,271,304 3,971,304
Others 1,873,099 1,755,070
& £ 38,099,641 B 44,210,516

9, Contract Liabilities
This account consist of:

Mar. 31, 2022 Deg, 31, 2021
Banquet Events Deposits £1,453,000 81,251,782
Advance membership Dues 17,429,346 20,726,500
' £ 18,882,346 £21,978,283

10. Related Party Transactions

The Club has entered into various transactions with related parties. Parties are considered
to be related if one party has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the other party in
making financial and operating decisions or the parties are subject to common control or
common significant influence (referred to as affiliates).

Transactions entered into by the Club with related parties are at arm’s length and have terms
equivalent to the transactions entered into with third parties.

Significant related party transactions follow:



a) The Club has trade receivables from its affiliates as members of the Club for which it
bills monthly membership dues and use of facilities. These affiliates include entities
with FAI, the developer.

b} The Club maintains cash in bank account with Eastwest Banking Corporation (EWB),
a bank affiliated with FAL Cash in bank earns interest at the prevailing market rates,

¢) The Club bas trade payables for Filinvest City maintenance and utilities from FAL its.
developer.
Balances from the above mentioned related party transactions are shown below:

Mar. 31,2022 Dec. 31, 2021

Receivables — Affiliates -

FAI/FLIVEWB P 369,388 618,725
Due to Related Parties - Affiliates
FAVFLI
{Ttilities and Taxes 364,331 315,169
Others _ 3,006 3,006

P 367,337 P 318,175

11, Capital Stocks
The club’s Capital Stocks consist of five classes of commen, no par value shares as follows:

Mar. 31,2022  Dec. 31, 2021

Class A Shares £915,109,926  B915,109,926
Authorized and paid - 1,900 shares

Class B shares 120,276,900 120,270,900
Authorized and paid — 250 shares

Class C shares 72,312,695 72,312,695
Authorized and paid — 150 shares

Class D shares 2,293,000 2,293,000
Authorized and paid — 2,293 shares

Founder shatres 7,000 . 7,000

Authorized and paid — 7 shares

£1,109,993,521 P1,109,993,521

All classes of shares entitle the holders to one vote for each share in any and ail regular and
special meetings of shareholders,

Class A shares are available to natural persons and entitle the holder to membership in the
Club and to the use and enjoyment of the Club’s facilities. Class A shares are likewise
available to juridical persons and entitle the holders to name one nominee for membership
in the Club to use and enjoy the facilities of the Club.

Class B shares are available only to juridical persons and entitle the holder to name two
nominees for membership in the Club and enjoy the facilities of the Club.

16



Class C shares are available only to juridical persons and entitle the holder to name three
nominees for membership in the Club and enjoy the facilities of the Club.

Holders of Class D shares are not entitle to the use and enjoyment of the Club’s facilities.
Correspondingly, Class D shares are to be excluded in the computation and assessment of
membership fees, dues and other payments relative to the operation and maintenance of the
Club.

Founder’s shares shali have the exclusive right {o vote and be voted for in the election of
directors for five years from and after the date of the registration of the Articles of
Incorporation. Thereafter, the holders of the Founder’s shares shall have the same voting
rights and privileges as holders of Class A shares,

The Club shall not issue shares of stock, which will reduce the stock ownership of
Philippine citizens to less than 60% of the outstanding capital stock. No holder of any class
of shares shall have any pre-emptive right to acquire, purchase or subscribe to any share of
the club of any class.

The shares held by FAI and its respective nominees for the founder’s shares or held by the
Club are non-obligatory or participating.

Subscription Agreement with a Developer

Under the terms of the subscription agreement between FAI (Developer) and the Club,
dated September 14, 2000, as amended on October 20, 2000, the Developer undertook the

following;

»  Ceded, transferred, assigned and delivered to the Club a parcel of land at Filinvest
Corporate City with an area of 30,000 square meters valued at 814,000 per square
meter or a total of P420.0 million in exchange for 867 Class “A” shares, 115 Class
“B” shares and 68 Class “C” shares, or a total of 1,050 shares valued at P400,000

per share.

» Developed the above property into a world class sports and country club including
facilities and equipments necessary to operate the Club in exchange for 1,033 Class
“A” shares, 135 Class “B” shares and 82 Class “C” shares, or a total of 1,250 shares
valied at B400,000 per share or P500.0 million. Property development cost
amounting to P687.7 million was initially credited to advances from developer
pending final turnover and acceptance of the developed property.

In 2004, the corresponding shares of stock were issued to the Developer upon final
acceptance of the property by the Club. Accordingly, the amousnt of advances from
developer of B687.7 million was credited as Capital Stock.

»  Paid in cash the amount of B2.3 million in exchange for 2,292 Class “D” shares at
P1,000 per share.

* The documentary stamp and other taxes arising from capital stock transactions
under the subscription agreement are for the account of the Developer.

~end -~
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CERTIFICATION

, _MITZ1 C. CHUIDIAN |, Financial Controller of THE PALMS COUNTRY CLUB, INC, with SEC
repistration Number _A200005129  with principal office at 1410 Laguna Heights Drive,
Filinvest Corporate City, Alabang, Muntinlupa City, on oath state:

1. That on behalf of The Palms Country Club, Inc. | have caused this SEC Form 17-Q1 to
he prepared.

2. Thatlread and understood its contents which are true and correct of my own personal

knowledge and/or based on true records.
3. Thatthe company, The Palms Country Club, nc. will comply with the requirements set

forth in SEC Notice dated 24 _Jupne 2020 for a complete and official submission of

reparts and/or documents through electronic mail, and
4, That | am fully aware that documents filed online which requires pre-evaluation
and/for processing fee shall be considered complete and officially received only upon
payment of a filing fee.
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PART I-FINANCIAL }NFORI\EA'I'ION

" Hem1. Financial Statements

Please refer to the attached Interih Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Revenue and Expense,
~ Statement of Changes in Stockholder’s Equity, Statement of Cash Flow and Notes to Financial Statements
referred to as Annex A,

The attached Interim Financial Statements have been prepared in compliance with Philippine Financial .
Reporting Standards (PFRS) and, we disclose the following information: o

a) The same accounting policies and methods of computation are followed in the interim financial
statements as compared with the December 31, 2021 Audited financial statements.

b) There have been no ynusval items affecting assets, liabilities, equity or cash flow,
c)- There have been no changes in estimates of amounts reported in prior financial year.
~ d) There have been no issuances, repurchases and repayments of debt and equity security,

e} The Club, being a non-profit organization will not be declaring any dividend. Reference is made °
to the Articles of Incorporation and By-Laws as amended.

f) ‘There have heen no material event subsequent to the end of the interim period that have not
been reflected in the financial statements for the interim period.

g) There has been no change in the composition of the issuer during the period.
"h) There have been no contingent liabilities or contingent assets provided ever since.

i} There have been no material contingencies and other evenis or transactions that are material to
an understanding of the current interim period, :

Tiem 2. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition,

Revenue generated for the second quarter ending June 30, 2022 was £89.1 million compared to B
41.0 million of the same period in 2021 and $26.6 million in 2020. Compared to year 2021, Food
and Beverage increased by 129.1%, Membership dues increased by .3%, Sports and Recreation
increased by 168,7% while Club Shop and others increased by 5.5%. Overall increase in revenues
for the second quarter compared to year 2021 was 58.4%. For the six months revenue as of June
30, 2022, revenue was 2145.7 million compared to P92 million in year 2021 and P105 millionin - -
year 2020. The increase in the performance of Club for the second quarter is due to the easing of |
restrictions of the pandemic, The Club was closed on March 17, 2020 when the govemnment
declared a total lockdown in Metro Manila, Since then, the country has wndergone various
guarantine classifications depending on the number of positive cases reported. On November 11,
2021, the govemment approved the nationwide rollout of the Alert Level System and adopted
guidelines to be implemented and enforced in all areas. The government declared Metro Manila
 under Alert Level 1, where cases are low and decreasing. Facilities of the Club gradually were
opened but still subject to safety protocols. The Deli remained available for food delivery. Food

2




" and Beverage contributed 52.5% to total revenue, Membership dues 24.0%, Spotts and recieation

6.9% and Club shop and other revenues 6.6%.

* Total direct cost was 2613 willion:in  the second quarter cornpared to B24.8 inillion in the same period of R
year 2021 and B14.4 million in’ 2020..1n terms of percentags, total direct cost by the end of the secotid

“quarter was 68.8% compared to last yeat’s 60.4% and 54.4% in 2020. Food and Beverage cost contributed

© 33.8%, payroll cost at 17.1%, utilities and supplies at 11.4% and the rest at 6.5%. Compared to year 2021,
- fotal direct cost inereased by £36.5 million mainly due {0 ‘inereased business and resulting to increase in . .
operating expenses; Payroil cost increased by 98:6% smce miost of the restaurant. outléts became operational. - . -

Non-revenue departments such as admmisu'at:ve deprec;ation, engmeenng and housekeepmg showed an -~

"increase of 21,2% for the second quatter ending June 30,2022, From B25.4. milfioni in 2021, it posted an -
 increase of B4.4 million in 2022 thiainly dué to an‘incredse it various operating costs suchas paymll contract
services, operanng supphes and credit card fees compared to year 2021, Included in the operating supplies
. are the various supplies for patidemic like face shields; face niasks and disinfectants, =

Asof June 30, 2022, revenues over cost’ and expenses before other incoms and finance lease was a loss of
2.2 million compared t logs of # 6.1 million 1ast year. Finarice lease decreased by 5.1% while other income
. increased by 8.8%. Total net incomic by the end of the second quarter of 2022 was B1.7 miltion compared

to {oss of #7.8 million in 2021, did foss 6f B13.0 million in 2020.

. Total members}up revenues for the secorid quarter | rerained at £21.3 million compared to the same period
of last year. Total number of mémbers as‘of June 30, 2022 wwas 2,166 or &ni intrease of 9 members from

2157 as.of December 31, 2021, The availability of shaz‘es from the secondary market and the inmcertainty ) -

brought about by the: pandemzc ig msultmg 1o the slow sales of fresh shares,

Total asset as of June 30,2022 ‘Was ¥926 0 mslhon compared to $938.2 rillion a5 of December 31 2021
or a decrease of #12.2 milli :
“value of property and equipment also decreased by B13.8 mitlion: Accounts receivable detreased by £3. 8-
-~ millioti and inventories decreased by B.9 million. Advanees to suppliers decreased by 9.6%: Other current
assets increased by 304:2% or B5.1 million due tor'the prepaymments for property- taxas, licenses and permits

«This is mamly dite't6 the décieass i receivables and inventories. Net book ~ - .

- and association dues. Deferred input Vat decreased by 20.2%. Total current assefs stands at B126.0 million . .
E compared to $124.0 million i December 31, 3021 or an increase of 1.6% or B2.0 Thillion, L

© Total curmnt tiabilities mmouiited o BS7 .2 million on June 30, 2022 and- ?6’! 7.million on December 31,
2021 or & decrease of 15.6%. Accounts and other payables decreased to F42.7 million from P44.2 million

" in Décember 31 2021 or a3.5% decrease. This is due to payments made to suppliers and manning agencies.

Due to related party inicreased by 27.1% from £.3 million in December 2021 to #.4 million by June 30,
12022, Contract liabilities decreased by 38.9% or 2 8. 5 raillioh: Included in the Contract liabilities are events
'deposlts and- advance membership dues of members Advance rosithly dues are applied as they mature,

.current 1ano was at 2 2as of Iune 30 2022 To :mprove cash position, penalty chargas of 2% per month or
24% per annum wete continually enforeed against members with overdie accounts. In-zddition, the use of
the Club’s facilities is suspended with réspect to members whose accounts are overdie for' 60 days or more.
Quick ratio is favorable at 1.9 while solveniey ratio is at 11 with total assets of £626.0 million over total

' liabilities of 282.7 million, -The Club’s debt equity ratic is sttong at .10 with the total liabilities of £82.7

 miltion over total equity of £84323 million.




PERFORMANCE INDICATORS:

June 30, 2022 December 31, 2021
Current Ratio - 2,20 1,83
Current Asseis 1260 > 124.0
_ Current Liabiliiies 572 B 1 67,7
Quick Ratio _ 1.91 1.64 |
Cash + Accts Receivable - | 1093 111.0
Current Liabilities 37.2 _ - 617
Solvency Ratio 11 - - 10
Total Assets 926.0 9382
Total Liabilities 82.7 932
Debt-Equity Ratio _ 10 12
Total Liabilities 82.7 93.2
_ Total Stockholders® Equity 8433 845.0
Profit Margin Ratio ' o _ (.08)
Net Income {Loss) (1.7 (15.3) .
Total Revenue _ 145.7 195.5

There are no evenis known to the Club that will trigger any material financial obligation including any o

‘default or acceleration of obligation.
There are no known trends, demands, commitments, events or yncertaintics that will have a material impact
on its liquidity, .
The Club is undergoing minor repairs of the facilities to maintain the upkeep of the Chb but funds for these
will be derived solely from operations. \

The global pandemic has affected the world economy. It has created an uncertainties that had material
unfavorable impact on revenues from continuing operations. The Club will continually adapt and adjust its
activities to allow members full enjoyment of the facilities to the extent allowed under existing Alert Level

System’s rules and guidelines.

There are no seasonal aspects that had niaterial effects on the financial condition or results of operations of
the Club, '

Part Il - OTHER INFORMATION

Except as disclosed in the Management’s Discussion and_Ana!ysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operation, there ere no unusual items affecting assets, liabilities, equity, net income or cash flows for the

period. There are also no material evenis subsequent to the period under review up to the date of thisreport. - e




. SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requiremenfs of the Revised Securities Act, the issuer has duly caused this reporf to be . . -
signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized,

Issuer: THE PALMS COUNTRY CLUB, INC.
Signature and Title: FRANCIS NATHANIEL C. GOTIANUN

President and CEO

Finangial Controller
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THE PALMS COUNTRY CLUB
Statement of Einancial Position

Annexa

December 81,2020 -

RS
i S

e

June 30,3022 December 31, 2021
- : - _(Audited) . _{Audited}
_ASSETS o K
. Cwrrent Assets . L S
: Cash {Note2) 80,202,206 78,402,096 . 103,884983 ..
Contract raceivabies{Note 3} 29,125,938 32,602,423 26,665,406 © T 7
Dute from related parties 304,005 618,725 2,030,683 ..
Inventories {Ndte 4) 8,734,046 9,657,673 12,042,141
. Advantes to Suppllers {Note 5) . 989,784 1,108,308 12,787,347
Other Current Assets (Nete5) - - 5,662,429 1,648,295 . .. 2,184,082
Total Current Assets 126,015,415 124,037,610 169,598,642
'\_'Nnhcurreﬂ'tnss'ets o ) o
Propeity and aguipment - net (Note'6) 798,190,647 811,056,148 B46,744,110
beferred Input VAT {Note 7} 1,749,536 2,193,127 1,304,418
" Total Noncustent Assets " 799,540,183 814,149,275 848,048,528
© ' Total Assets . GI5858594 932,186,985  1,017,647,470 -
~LIABITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY -
" Cursent Lisblites g : S
: Accounts and other payables {Note &} - 42,662,461 44,210,515 83,786,857
Contract iabilities (Mote 9) 43,434,225 ' 21,578,283 21,775,052 .
- Due torefated parties {Nota-10} 404,272 318,175 595,235
finance Leasg ~ surrent portion . £6%,B66 1,223 BAT 573983
Total Gurrent Liabilities 57,170,623 67,730,821 106,722,127
churrent'mﬁﬂlw
 Lesse liabllity - net of current purtion : 15,523,361 15,523,361 17585342
_Pension Hability : ... 8975373 9,922,492 7,351,818 -
“Totat Nonguirént Liapiities 25,498,734 25,445,853 . FA9%7160 -
... Total L‘iabilzuas 92,669,357 93,176,674 131,669,287
Equty i . L
CapstalS{ock {Note 1) D d,i09,%93521 1,109,693,521 1,108,993,523 -
Accumulated deficienty of revenues wercost&expenses - {267,651,511) {252,335,116) {237,717,548}
" Net Income {Loss) for the period e {1,720,882) . {15,315,404) 10,957,578
Remeasureiment galn on retireman‘tplan -net of tax ... 2,668,210 .. 2,668,210 2,744,332
Total Equity . 843,289,237 ‘B4S,010;01% 885,977,883
. “Yotal Uabillties and quity ___ . 935958508 935166885 1017647470
B




- THE PALMS COUNTRY CLUB
Statement of Revenue and Expense

SECOND GUARTER i} YEAR TO DATE T
Aprit 3, 2022 to April 1, 2021 to April 1, 2020 to Jan. 1, 20220 Jam, 1, 2021t0 Jan, 1, 2020 ta v
June, 30, 2022 junz, 30, 2021 fune. 30, 2020 June 30, 2022 Jurie 30, 2023 June 30,2020 -
REVENUES -

-~ . food 8 Beverage . £5,651,233 14,337,424 4,022,378 $4,097,015 96,659,788 48,155,994 -
Membersiip dues 21,347,700 21,258,600 21,714,000 42,669,000 42,540,300 43 457,700
£paorts and recreation £,167,19% 1,237,746 115,243 5,056,534 4,369,969 5,154,088
£lub Shop and Others 5.897,529 3574650 _ TieB02 4,805,312 9,392 £33 7,698,618

“Total Revanues : 85,083,663 A1.008420 26 568,423 145,727 853 2,002,590 105,480,395 -
LESS: DIRECT COSYS ) o
Cost of Sales . -
Food & Beverage 30,135,822 8,046,511 1,992,157 45,537,682 49,214,268 24,065,434
Sports and recreation 2,674,387 701,504 140,545 4,101,378 1,778,444 2,259,971
Club Shop and others 782,500 HHZU99 62,473 1,314,738 1,576,064 1579482
Tota! Cost of Sales 33,503,709 9,416,113 2,200,176 50,554,395 23,568,776 27,904,867
. Payroll . 15,227,350 7,667,685 8,141,529 25,075,118 16,308,406 23,086,579
" Utifities, laundry & supplies 10,178,369 5,502,654 3,263,804 17,216,249 11,792,175 13,478,073
Communications 159,547 180,790 92,743 295,644 367,138 215,900
 Contract services 96,079 77,738 69,243 209,048 ST ) 198,587
* - -Banguats and special pvents 304,319 1,105,252 49,821 1,387,512 1,265,940 681,352
Markating and.others 1,707,382 226,588 665,159 3,004,280 1,874,505 2,300,482
Yotal Direct Costs 61,265 853 24,770,585 14,4482525 98,142,247 55 411,418 67,875,539
GROSS INCOME 27,827,808 16,237,588 12,135 868 47,585,614 38,591,176 37,504,856
LES5: OPERAYING EXPEMSES i T
Ganeral and sdministeative R
Utllities and supphies 258,150 131,382 §7,360 294,357 300,768 200,067 .
Payrodt 4,396,495 3,742,150 3,907,115 8,252,421 7,649,378 8,337,503
Dutside services 1,520,580 2,139,814 2,059,638 4,658,682 4,174,937 4,737,158 . .
Credit card commission 1,520,991 515,836 * 585,851 1,522,560 1,376,283 1,854,038 .
Insurance 140,507 155,207 210,008 295,638 310,415 484,460 -
Communlicatians 317,167 391,282 554,575 631,060 714,667 1,028,731,
Licanses and permits 1,375,487 1,228,166 1,731,236 2764784 2,715,316 3480081
Others 1,995,914 1,626,509 3,142,938 3082935 3,271,028 3,638,598
Tatal Gert and admin 11,958,293 10,081,397 13,268,813 27 582 425 20,512,793 23,870,227
Depreciation j TATS,003 7,333,899 7,502 000 14,888 675 34,782,566 15,066,309
Housekeeplng .
Payroll © 2,048,992 1,104,219 1,215,212 3,542,018 2,347,671 3,324,590
Qutside services 79,058 30,868 234,118 728,742 464,985 85I
yilities, laundry and supplies $23,532 329,320 252,500 L5412 787,772 . 829,697
Others - 73612 _ 62,062 BO,956 142,518 141,169 148947
Yotal Hpusekeeping 3,526,203 1,726,463 1,782 788 5,077,491 3,741,597 A TILEN .
Engineering ’ ) =
Payrali 572,035 489,415 431,458 1,013,760 879,475 1,004,998
Qutside services 821,186 948,051 871,322 1,639,637 1,823,573, 1,725,081
Supplies 986,023 395,343 522,870 1,480,566 861,837 1,227,665
Others _ 38,637 12,008 ____ 85,004 88,641 105,216 205488
Total Engineerin 2,417,870 1,845 RO7 1,914,664 4,112,644 3,570,108 4,188,102
Total Operating Expenses £5,383,37% 20,937,572 22,469,262 47,783,735 42,656,058 7,876,398 .
. DEFICIENCY OF REVENUIES OVER COST AND ) O
EXPENSES BEFORE OTHERINCOME 2,443,431 {4,699,984) {10,343 364} [195,622} {6,064,882) {10871,5421 .
- B EXPENSES ' I
© 7. Finance Lease Cost 1,575,807 1,665,144 1,728,900 3,177,819 3,350,356 - 349,090
s (thes Income 1,005,405 §52,082 318788 1,652,458 1,518,251 873,715 _.
. TOTALOTHER INCOME AND EXPENSES (370,401) (813113 {1,411,11% {1,525,361) _ _  {%,831,305) (2,558,375}
* NET {NCOME {LO55) 1,874,830 {5,513,095) (11754475} " (1,720,982} {7,895 087} {12,963,916} -
7
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THE PALMS COUNTRY CLUB
Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity

1

Six Months
Ending

Six Months

Ending

Six Months

Ending

w

?1’.\\{5“. N\sngé?:«:}* i@ﬁ%&t{'g e
BHBLIPRICINSD

CAPITAL STOCK
Class A shares 915,109,926 915,109,526 915,109,926
Authorized 1,900 shares
Fully paid 1,800 shares
Class B shares 120,270,500 120,270,800 126,270,900
Autharized 250 shares
Fully paid 250 shares
- Class C shares 72,312,685 72,312,685 72,312,695 |
Authorized 150 shares
Fulfy paid 15¢ shares .
Class D shares 2,293,000 2,293,000 2,293,000
Authorized 2,293 shares .
Fully paid 2,293 shares
Founders' shares ' _ 7,000 7,008 7,000
Authorized 7 shares
Fully paid 7 shares : : :
- 1,109,993,521 1,109,993,521 1,109,993,521
Retained Earnings {267,651,511}) {252,335,114) (226,759,965}
Net income [Loss) for the period {1,720,982 {7,895,987) {12,968,916)
DEFICIT _ (269,372,493 {260,231,102) (239,729,886}
Remeasurement gain on retirement benefit 2,668,210 1,348,386
C oo STOCKHOLDER'S EQASTY - NET 843,289,227 851,110,906 - 873,007,568
8 .




EPALMS COUNTRY CLUB
atement of Cash Flows *

SwMenthe Sk Months
R Eﬂding Engling .
o June 30; 2021 dure 30,2020

 (aeseEn . (12969916

| 1hgseETs | _' "14'73"1' 566 .. 15066109
CoaLIse ' 3,472,050
; . 399,278

. Depreciation- .
: __.ﬁFinance I.ease_Cost L

. {257.025)
5,710,536

Decrease {Increase} in:
Com:ract Reaeivabies

_ Duefrom related parties
Inventories . e
" -Othér CuFrent Assets

. Defefrad Input VAT _
icrease (D__crease} TR
Actounts: Payable and-actrug expenses
Contract Liabihties -

< 11,400,843

993,627 3378536
((4,895520) . S (9,059,083)
44350 _zsa 379_-'. LT agegme

C-(28,743,612)
- {6,914;691)
L. [201,763)
(25,159,355 - =
Lo 357,028
-_:_-.(24,902,331}

: Decrease [im:rease} iy B
Properzy and equrpmant

(2,066536)
(2,066536) - -

[4,733,000).
(3,732,000} - .

Nmmcsmé{oecnmse} m casit 1,800,410 . (20,993,600)

msn ATBEGINN%NG:_ FPERIOD C g4,0a388 . .. 103834083

73801380,

X H AT ENID OF PERIOD

ABATAS1Y




THE PALMS COUNTRY CLUB,INC. .~
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEIWE'N_TS

1 Snmn_mry of Significant Acouuﬁting Policies

- Basisof Preparatmnr '
. The financial statements have béen’ prepared under the historical -cost basis and are

presented in Philippine Peso () which is the Club’s functional cum:ncy All values are
rounded o the nedrest Peso, except when otherwise indicated,

: &tmgﬁ_cm.ﬁm
The accompanying financial’ statements of thie Club have been prepared in compliance with

Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS}.

. Agcounting Policies

" Cash and Cash Egurvalent _
- Cash inciudes cash on hand zind in banks; Cash in bank earn interest at the prevallmg bank
- depositrates.
Financial Assets: ami Llabllm_a . _
- Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognzzed initiafly at fair valis. Transdction ol
costs are inefuded in the initial measurement of 41l firancial assets and labilities, except- s
- for financial mstmments measm'ed at fair vakue through profit or logs (FVPL)

The clab recngmzes a fingncial asset or financial liability in'the balance sheets when it
. '_becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument

. Loans gl_ld Reo ceivables

. Loatis afid receivables are non»—derlvatwe findncial dssets with fi xed or determinable
.. payments that are niot quoted in‘aty active market. Such assets are carried at cost using thie
- effective interest method: (Gain dnd losses are recognized in the statements of revenue and
expenses when loans and receivables are derecognized ¢ mpamad as well asthrough the
amortization process. -

- Loans and receivables are classified 'as"c'urreptwhen these are expected to be realized within
twelve months from the reporting dafe, Otherwise, these are classified as noncurrent assets.

. ‘This category includes the Club’s ¢ash and receivables.

_ Other Financial Liabilities _ ' _
Other financial liabilities are non-derivative financial liabilities with fixed or

- determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market, These fiabilities are
' carried at cost or amortized cost in the balance sheet. Amortization is determined
 using the cffect:vs interest method..

. Included inthis categcry are the Chub’s trade- and othér paysbles and due to a
. related party,

16




Impairment of Financial Assets -

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is objective
evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets may be impaired. If such
evidence exists, any impairment loss is recognized in the statement of revenues and

EXPERSES.

Inventories ' -

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or net realizable value (NRV). NRV is the
‘estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less estimated costs necessary to
make the sale. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out method.

Praperty and Equipment

Property and equipment consists of land and land improvements, buildings and facilities
and equipment. Except for land, the Club’s property and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depireciation and amortization and impairment in value, if any. Land is stated
at cost less any impairment in value.

The initial cost of propetty and equipment censists of its purchase price, including import
* duties, taxés and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset o its working condition
“and location for its intended vse. Expenditures incurred after the assets have been put into
operation, such as repairs and mainfenance, are normally charged to operations in the period
in which the costs are incurred; In situations where it cau be clearly derionstrated that the
" expenditures have resitlted in an iucrease in the future economic benefits expected o be
obtained from the use of an item of property and equipment beyond its originally assessed
standard of perfotmiance, the expenditures are capitalized as an additional cost of property
and equipment. When assets are sold or retired, their cost and'accurulated depreciation
and amortization are éliminated from the accounts and any gain or loss resulting froin their
. disposal is included in the statement of revenues and expenses.

" Depreciation and amortization is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated
- useful life of the related assets as follows:

Land improvements 10 years
Building 40 years -
Sports, kitchen and other facilities and equipment 5to 19 years

- The Club estimates the useful lives of its property and equipment based on the period over

" which these assets are expected to be available for use. The usefil fives and depreciation

" and amortization methods are reyiewed petiodically based on factors that include asset

. utilization, interhal technical evaluation, technological changes, environmental and

 anticipated use of the assets tempered by related industry benchmark information. It is

. possible that futire results of operations could be materially affected by the changes in the
factors mentioned. A reduction in the estimated vseful lives of property and equipment
would increase depreciation and amortization expenses and decrgase properiy and :

© equipment,

- Retirement Eggeﬁi--g- osts

" Pension costs are actuarially compirted using the projected unit credit valuation method.
- Under this method, the current service cost is the present value of retirement benefiis
- payable in the firture with respect to the services rendered in the current petiod. Actuarial
valuations are conducted with sufficient regularity, with option to accelerate when

. significant changes to underlying assumptions occut, :

11
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2. Cash

Cash consist_s of
Juge 30,2022 Dec, 31,2021
Current and savings szccounts with | ®79,450,206  B77,650,006
banks :
Revolving fund 752,080 752,000

PR0,202,206  R78,402.096

Cash in bank earns interest at the prevailing bank deposit rates.

There is so cash restriction on the Club’s cash balances as at June 30, 2022 and December
31,202%

3. Receivables
This account consists of:

June 30,2022 Dec. 31,2021

Members ¥27,574,915 R32,845,427
Banguet Sales 1,648,546 776,512
- Credit Cards : 837,188 314,256
Others 1.628,749 1,329,688
T 31,789,398 35,265,883

Less: allowance for doubtful accounts o 2,663,460 2,663,460

:_ L 29,125,938 P32,602,423

_Receivables from members are collateralized by a preferential lien on the Club shares
_ owned by thein, These recefvables are collectible within a year.

“Qther receivables” consist of advances made to employee for sickness and maternal
benefits, creditable withholding taxes for current year transactions with pending certificates
* and receivables from agency hired employees

4. Inventories

This account consists of:

At Cost: June 30,2022  Dec. 31, 2021
Food P5,465,878 $6,442,166
Beverage 1,477,871 1,282,162
Operating Supplies 1,519,341 1,654,540
Others _ 270,955 278,805

¥8,734,045 19,657,673
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o 5. :Gther Current Assets _.

T}us account conmsts of

“June 30,2022 | Dec. 31,5021 |

_Adw?a'hcés-tosuﬁﬁlie‘fs T jomogsa| . PLISSO8|

B v Others

.. Crechtable Wlthoidmg Taxes*-.-' ._ o ' 1,758,133 . ._ 1,24_9,3_.{_.}3-

Others . e o .. 4912296 .. 308089

A Total o o 6662429 00 . 1648295

: GPropertyaijqmpmmt . S el

Property and
i eqmpment are”
| classified und' "_'-the
foilcrwmg
) --accounls

B N .Sports, kltchaﬂ e .
. '_ K. ipﬁﬁi‘ﬂ L

egiiing b,,mu:_ | »awooeo0d] erssinzao msssazsisi . Ba0ssse3ey 84330,433,020 w08 i2e30d

Y N T e 3,982,497
B Trm&rﬁ'mnAdvm___ 1 R E b T 182AB

g6 48615694

5_'_'i5,311,%4'm zse wgmg'.,f-'- 312886160
TTARET. . 30230.02

TALNE T 7R0676)

" Peinming balances
i aions

' Rc\fcrsa!

. Endmg balanocs

I LT B L) SN V-0 X 7% IR e R T18,376,980

R811956,140

' ':Net-Bnuk_.anua.__ T - 389,286.614

 The fand forms: part of Lot 392 of thé Muntm!upa Estata in‘the narme of the Repubitc of the Philippines
-~ and déveloped by Filinvest Alabang; Inc. (the developer seferred’1o in Note 10).into what is now known
" as the Filinvest’ Corporate City (FCC). Lot 392 was the subject matter of Civil Case Nos. 99-075 and
99-3 20 for, annulmenf of tlﬂes and contracts, considered 1o be nitisance suits. In-its Resolution dated

: . fﬁrmed thedismissal of Civil Case No. 99:075 by the trial court
- and Caurt of A pesls On'the o ' s fequired the plaintiffy it Civil Case No. 99-
320 to. pay the doiket fees: corréspond: dmg o-the valie of the property subject of this case. As of

' . 2009; the plainfiffs have fiot done $6. Accordmgiy, counget of FAT filéd in February 2009 .
aying that the case be d:s:mssed wnh pIEJIJdIC& The mot:on to distniss was: s

s




7. Other Noncurrernt Assets

June 30, 2022 Dec. 31, 2021
- Deferred Tax assets 1,749,537 2,193,127
' B 1,749,536 ®2,193,127
“8. Trade and Other Payables
- 'This account consists of: -
- \ ' June 30,2022 Des. 31, 2021
. Trade Payables £11,841,197 R15,070,613
. Accrued Expenses ' _
Payroll _ 10,444,965 10,343,451
Qutside services 1,882,199 2,570,974
Utilities and faxes 10,909,301 9,966,135
N Others- _ . 1,232,188 532,969
* Other Payables -
' Member cash bond 4,396,304 3,971,304
Others ' 1,956,307 1,755,070
. __P 42,662,461 B44210,516
5. Contract Liabilities
" This account consist of* _
L _June 30, 2022 Dec, 31, 2021
. Bangquet Events Deposits £2.130,179 B1,251,782
. Advance membership Dues . 11,304,046 20,726,500
: : : P 13,434,225 £21,978,283

_ 10, Related Party Transactions

The Club has entered into various transactions with related parties. Parties are considered

to be refated if one party has the ability, directly or indirectly, to-control the other party in
* making financial and operating decisions o the pasties are subject to commaon control or
" common significant influence (referred to as affilistes).

Transactiors entered into by the Club with related parties are at arm’s length and have terms
_ equivalent to the transactions entered into with third parties.

Significant related party transactions follow:

15




a) The Club has trade receivables from its affiliates as menbers of the Club for which it
bills monthly membership dues and use of facilities, These affiliates include entities
with FAI, the developer.

b) The Club maintains cash in bank account with Eastwest Banking Corporation (EWB),
a bank affiliated with FAIL Cash in bank earns interest at the prevailing market rates.

'¢) The Club has trade payables for Filinvest City maintenance and utilities from FAL, its
© developer.

* Balances from the above mentioned related party fransactions are shown below:

“June 30,2022 Dee. 31, 2021

Rocervables — Affiliates -

FAVFLVEWB £ 304,009 R 618,725 -
Trus to Related Parties - Affiliates
TALFLT |
Utilities and Taxes 403,946 315,169
(thers 326 1,006

£404,272 R1318,175

11. Capital Stocks
The club’s Capital Stocks consist of five classes of comion, no par value shares as follows:

Jane 30,2022  Dec. 31,2021

Class A Shares 915,109,926  £215,109,926
Authorized and paid ~ 1,900 shares
Class B shares 126,270,900 120,270,900
Authorized and paid — 250 shares
Class C shares 72,312,695 72,312,695
- Authorized and paid — 150 shares
Class D shares ' 2,203.000 2,293,000
Authorized and paid — 2,293 shares
Founder shares ' 7,000 7,000

Authorized and paié -7 shares E _ .
. £1,109,993,521 P1,106,993,521

* All classes of shares entitle the holders to one vote for each share in any and-all regular and
special meetings of shareholders.

" (Yass A shares are availablé to natural persons and entitle the holder to membership in the
. Club and 1o the use and énjoyment cf the Club’s facilities. Class A shares are likewise
* available to juridical persons and entitle the holders to name one nominee for membership
' in the Club to use and enjoy the facilities of the Club.

Class B shares are available only to juridical persons and entitle the holder to name two
_ nominees for membership in the Club and enjoy the facilities of the Club.

i6




“ Class ol shares are: avadab!e orﬂy o jundxca! persons and cntltle the” holder to “hainie three
- nominees for membershlp ify: the Club atid enjcy the facthtles of the Club.

o ol dors of Class D shar : are it entt_ﬂe to the__l_lse and n_]oyr_i_rl_ent of the Cl_ub_’s facilities.

- of shares shall have any: pre-erhptlva raght o’ acqmre, purchase oOr S senbe L F: any shareof . '

- the ciub of auy class.

" dated: September 14 2000 : 'amended ot October 20 2000 the Developer ndertook the

' -followmg

C accept f“ the property by the Club. A ily, the’ amount ofadvances from
- developer of ?687 7 million was credited a5 Caprtal Stock. .

“P1,000 per share,
T e The documentary stamp atid- other faxes ar:smg from capital §toék téansactions
S under the subsmp‘uon agrecment are for the-aceount of the Developer

 end-

- .» " Paid in‘tashy the ammmt oF 2.3 m11110n n exchange for 2, 292 Class “D” sharesat-

* ".'}Cected transf asmgﬂed_all_d ‘F'e_lwered'to the Club a parcel "f -l_and at thnvast o

":edtotheDeveIOpcwponf pal?
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CERTIFICATION

MITZI C. CHUIDIAN , Financial Controller of THE PALMS COUNTRY CLUB, INC, with SEC

registration Number _A200005129  with principal office at 1410 Laguna Heights Drive,

Filinvest Corporate City, Alabang, Muntinlupa City, on oath state:

1. That on behalf of The Palms Country Club, Inc. | have caused this SEC Form 17-Q2 to

be prepared.
2. Thatlread and understood its contents which are true and correct of my own personal
knowledge and/or based on true records.
3. Thatthe company, The Palms Country Club, inc. will comply with the requirements set

forth in SEC Notice dated 24 June 2020 for a complete and official submission of

reports and/or documents through electronic mail, and
That | am fully aware that documents filed online which requires pre-evaluation
and/or processing fee shall be considered complete and officially received only upon
payment of a filing fee,

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | have hereunto set my hand this _11th _ day of __August
2022,

ffiant

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this 11th day of _August , 2022

NCAYAL YE
" Notary, Pubiic

[torgherly Anmtmrgigg“

alupa City

T o onodtiahed No, V1-0015578
Doc. No. 9/7(02 ‘;:;;;f‘d‘; o‘i‘f 732, Valid untl 4-14-2025
iy Syt
Page No. ._..._:Z'C _ %iﬁ-'.nm o; m-os-g;tiy Until Dre. 31, 2023
NC-22-031; Muntinlups City Untit Dec. 31,
Book No. ‘—M TiN: 137.734-S81

- — Rol No. 33796
Serias of 2022 1\:1 o338 h
pah‘icio,bmaym,lzwulﬁcl@yahoo‘wm.p



ANNEX "D"

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OR PLAN OF OPERATIONS
Discussion of the Results of Operations for 2021 vs. 2020 and 2019

The impact of the Covid-19 pandemic was very evident in the results of operations for the
year 2020 and 2021 comparing to year 2019. Although there was an improvement in year
2021 due to easing of restrictions, the Club operations still resulted to a net loss.

The Club generated total revenue of B199.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2021
compared to B192.9 million in 2020 and B367.6 million in 2019. Food and Beverage
revenues increased by R3.9 million from B83.9 million in 2020 to R87.8 million this year.
The Club allowed the members to order food for delivery and opened some outlets but
with very low patronage. Food and beverage contributed 44.1% to the total revenue.
Membership dues collected for the year was B85.2 million or 42.8% of total revenues.
Despite closure of the Club, membership dues were continually charged to members.
Sports and recreations posted revenues of B7.4 million in 2021, B7.7 million in 2020 and
R27.9 million in 2019. It contributed to the total club revenues of 3.7%, 4.0% and 7.5%
respectively. The decrease in revenues of B.24 million in 2021 is mainly due to
cancellation of major sports events and activities. Club Shop and other miscellaneous
revenues was B18.7 million in 2020, R15.6 million in 2020 and B32.6 million in 2019. It
contributed 20.2% in this year’s total revenues. Club Shop and other revenues include
transfer fees, assignment and re-nomination fees, revenues from party packages,
equipment hires, and sales from merchandise, among others.

Total direct cost amounting to B124.7 million represented 62.7% of the total revenues
compared to 62.4% or B120.3 million in 2020 and 70.2% or B251.3 million in 2019. Total
cost of Sales percentage was 26.7% of the total revenues in 2021 compared to 25.3% in
2020. Direct payroll cost was B34.7 million in 2021 and 238.9 in 2020 or 17.4% and
20.2% respectively. Other major direct costs relate to utilities, laundry and operating
supplies which accounted for B24.7 million or 12.4% of the total revenue for 2021 and B
23.2 million or 12.0% in 2020. Banquets and special events expenses was B5.1 million.
Marketing and other expenses was B4.6 million, and other direct expense of 1.0 million.

The total other operating expenses excluding depreciation amounted to B57.2 million in
December 31, 2021 compared to B63.3 million in 2020 and B73.3 million in 20109.
Excluded in the operating expenses is the B6.6 million lease charges of chilled water
supply for the year 2021. The decrease is attributed to the decrease in general and
administrative expenses as effect of the limited operations of the Club. The management
continues to implement measures to control operating costs.

Total depreciation expense for 2021 was B28.7 million compared to B28.6 million in 2020
or a decrease of B.2 million or .5%. This is because some equipment has fully depreciated
this year.

There were 6 new members from 2,151 in December 31, 2020 to 2,157 in December 31,
2021. The slow growth in the sale of shares can be attributed to the availability of the
secondary market which is competing in the sale of fresh shares. Total membership dues
collected for the year was B85.2 million. Management continues to implement a discount
scheme where members have the option to pay in advance twelve-month’s worth of
membership dues in exchange for B3,300.00 worth of gift voucher which members can
avail in any restaurant outlets in the Club.



Total Current Assets stand at R124.7 million this year compared to R139.3 million in
December 31, 2020 and R169.6 million in 2019. Of the total current assets, 62.8%
represented cash, 26.1% contract receivables, .5% due from related parties, 7.7%
inventories and 2.8% other current assets. Contract receivable as of December 31, 2021
increased by 21.3% due to the increase in members’ usage of facilities. Since the alert
level 1 was implemented, members started coming to the club. Total inventories also
increased by 6.7% in December 31, 2021 mainly due to increased purchases of food and
beverages.

Acquisition of property and equipment for the year ending December 31, 2021 was B22.2
million. Major repairs were done which includes the waterproofing of Multipurpose Hall
(MPH) area, additional computers for offices, the Human Resources Information System
(HRIS) project and some kitchen equipment to name a few. The equipment and repairs
are needed to maintain and improve the quality of facilities and services available to the
members.

Total current assets stood at R124.8 million while current liabilities stood at B67.3 million.
The Club’s current ratio was at 1.84 by December 2021. To improve cash position,
penalty charges of 2% per month or 24% per annum were enforced against members with
overdue accounts. In addition, the use of the Club’s facilities and amenities is suspended
with respect to members whose accounts are overdue for 60 days or more. Quick ratio is
favorable at 1.65 while solvency ratio is at 10.3 with total assets of R938.9 million over
total liabilities of B93.6 million. The Club’s debt ratio is strong at 0.11 with total liabilities
of R93.6 million over total assets of B938.9 million.

PEFORMANCE INDICATORS:

Dec. 31, 2021 Dec. 31, 2020
Current Ratio 1.84 1.88
Current Assets 124.7 139.2
Current Liabilities 67.7 74.0
Quick Ratio 1.65 1.51
Cash + Accts Receivable 111.6 111.6
Total Current Liabilities 6770 74.0
Solvency Ratio 10.03 9.51
Total Assets 938.9 960.0
Total Liabilities 93.6 101.0
Debt-Equity Ratio A1 12
Total Liabilities 93.6 101.0
Total Stockholders’ Equity 845.3 859.0
Profit Margin Ratio (.13) (.13)
Net Income (L0ss) (15.8) (25.6)
Total Revenue 199.1 192.9

Events that will trigger direct or contingent financial obligation

There are no known events that will trigger direct or contingent financial obligation that
is material to the Club, including any default or acceleration of an obligation.




Trends or events that will impact on the company’s liquidity position

There are no major demands, commitments or uncertainties which will likely result to any
cash flow or liquidity problem in the next twelve (12) months.

Trends or events of uncertainties that will impact on net sales or revenues or income

More than a year after the outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic, it continues to dominate the
lives of people all over the world. Despite the successful development of vaccines, the end
of the pandemic is not yet in sight. In April 2021, the number of cases increased in the
Philippines prompting the government to impose the necessary restrictions. The Club will
continue to adapt and adjust its activities to allow members enjoyment of the facilities to
the extent allowed under existing quarantine rules and guidelines. The Club will also abide
and fully cooperate with the national and local government units to help curve the spread
of the virus.

Significant elements of income or loss that did not arise from continuing operations

There were no significant elements of income or loss that did not arise from continuing
operations.

Material changes from January 1, 2021 to December 31, 2020 in one or more line
items in the financial statements

There were no material changes in one or more line items in the financial statements from
January 1, 2021 to December 31, 2021.

Seasonal aspects that had a material effect on the financial condition or results of
operations

There were no seasonal aspect that had a material effect on the financial condition or
results of operations for the year ended December 31, 2021.

Commitment for Capital Expenditure

In April 2016 the Club entered into an “Efficiency Performance Contract with Engie
Services (Philippines) for the latter to operate and maintain installations that supply
chilled water to the Club. This is a comprehensive rehabilitation of the air-conditioning
system of the Club. The terms of the agreement require that the Club make monthly fixed
payments of B246,000 exclusive of VAT from the date of agreement until the date of
completion of testing and commissioning of the chilled water installations. The agreement
further stipulates that Engie will initially shoulder the cost of the installations for the
chilled water supply owned by the Club and Engie to bill the Club for its share of the cost
of installations. Upon completion of testing and commissioning, the Club is required to
make fixed monthly payments of 622,000 exclusive of VAT, for the next ten (10) years
representing the fixed period charges of the Club for the use of the chilled water and after
which, the ownership of the remaining installations will be vested to the Club. As of
December 31, 2017, the Club has paid Engie P22.5 million representing Club’s share in
the cost of installations.



On February 28, 2017, Engie has completed the testing and commissioning of the
installation. On March 18, 2017, full operation commenced and Engie started billing the
Club the fixed charges. As of December 31, 2021, the club has paid a total of B34.8 million
equivalent to fifty six (56) months installment.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition for June 2022

Revenue generated for the second quarter ending June 30, 2022 was B89.1 million
compared to P41.0 million of the same period in 2021 and RB26.6 million in 2020.
Compared to year 2021, Food and Beverage increased by 129.1%, Membership dues
increased by .3%, Sports and Recreation increased by 168.7% while Club Shop and others
increased by 5.5%. Overall increase in revenues for the second quarter compared to year
2021 was 58.4%. For the six months revenue as of June 30, 2022, revenue was R145.7
million compared to B92 million in year 2021 and 105 million in year 2020. The increase
in the performance of Club for the second quarter is due to the easing of restrictions of the
pandemic. The Club was closed on March 17, 2020 when the government declared a total
lockdown in Metro Manila. Since then, the country has undergone various quarantine
classifications depending on the number of positive cases reported. On November 11,
2021, the government approved the nationwide rollout of the Alert Level System and
adopted guidelines to be implemented and enforced in all areas. The government declared
Metro Manila under Alert Level 1, where cases are low and decreasing. Facilities of the
Club gradually were opened but still subject to safety protocols. The Deli remained
available for food delivery. Food and Beverage contributed 52.5% to total revenue,
Membership dues 24.0%, Sports and recreation 6.9% and Club shop and other revenues
6.6%.

Total direct cost was R61.3 million in the second quarter compared to P24.8 million
in the same period of year 2021 and B14.4 million in 2020. In terms of percentage,
total direct cost by the end of the second quarter was 68.8% compared to last year’s
60.4% and 54.4% in 2020. Food and Beverage cost contributed 33.8%, payroll cost at
17.1%, utilities and supplies at 11.4% and the rest at 6.5%. Compared to year 2021,
total direct cost increased by B36.5 million mainly due to increased business and
resulting to increase in operating expenses. Payroll cost increased by 98.6% since most
of the restaurant outlets became operational.

Non-revenue departments such as administrative, depreciation, engineering and
housekeeping showed an increase of 21.2% for the second quarter ending June 30,
2022. From B25.4 million in 2021, it posted an increase of B4.4 million in 2022 mainly
due to an increase in various operating costs such as payroll, contract services,
operating supplies and credit card fees compared to year 2021. Included in the
operating supplies are the various supplies for pandemic like face shields, face masks
and disinfectants.

As of June 30, 2022, revenues over cost and expenses before other income and finance
lease was a loss of B.2 million compared to loss of B 6.1 million last year. Finance
lease decreased by 5.1% while other income increased by 8.8%. Total net income by
the end of the second quarter of 2022 was R1.7 million compared to loss of R7.8
million in 2021, and loss of R13.0 million in 2020.

Total membership revenues for the second quarter remained at B21.3 million
compared to the same period of last year. Total number of members as of June 30,



2022 was 2,166 or an increase of 9 members from 2157 as of December 31, 2021.
The availability of shares from the secondary market and the uncertainty brought
about by the pandemic is resulting to the slow sales of fresh shares.

Total asset as of June 30, 2022 was R926.0 million compared to R938.2 million as of
December 31, 2021 or a decrease of B12.2 million. This is mainly due to the decrease
in receivables and inventories. Net book value of property and equipment also
decreased by B13.8 million. Accounts receivable decreased by B3.8 million and
inventories decreased by B.9 million. Advances to suppliers decreased by 9.6%. Other
current assets increased by 304.2% or B5.1 million due to the prepayments for property
taxes, licenses and permits and association dues. Deferred input Vat decreased by
20.2%. Total current assets stands at 2126.0 million compared to 2124.0 million in
December 31, 2021 or an increase of 1.6% or 2.0 million.

Total current liabilities amounted to B57.2 million on June 30, 2022 and R67.7 million
on December 31, 2021 or a decrease of 15.6%. Accounts and other payables decreased
to R42.7 million from R44.2 million in December 31 2021 or a 3.5% decrease. This is
due to payments made to suppliers and manning agencies. Due to related party
increased by 27.1% from R.3 million in December 2021 to RB.4 million by June 30,
2022. Contract liabilities decreased by 38.9% or B 8.5 million. Included in the Contract
liabilities are events deposits and advance membership dues of members. Advance
monthly dues are applied as they mature.

Total current assets stood at B126.0 million while current liabilities stood at B57.2
million. The Club’s current ratio was at 2.2 as of June 30, 2022. To improve cash
position, penalty charges of 2% per month or 24% per annum were continually
enforced against members with overdue accounts. In addition, the use of the Club’s
facilities is suspended with respect to members whose accounts are overdue for 60
days or more. Quick ratio is favorable at 1.9 while solvency ratio is at 11 with total
assets of R926.0 million over total liabilities of B82.7 million. The Club’s debt equity
ratio is strong at .10 with the total liabilities of R82.7 million over total equity of B
843.3 million.

PERFORMANCE INDICATORS:

June 30, 2022 December 31, 2021

Current Ratio 2.20 1.83
Current Assets 126.0 124.0
Current Liabilities 57.2 67.7

Quick Ratio 1.91 1.64
Cash + Accts Receivable 109.3 111.0
Current Liabilities 57.2 67.7

Solvency Ratio 11 10
Total Assets 926.0 938.2
Total Liabilities 82.7 93.2

Debt-Equity Ratio 10 12
Total Liabilities 82.7 93.2
Total Stockholders’ Equity | 843.3 845.0

Profit Margin Ratio (.01) (.08)
Net Income (Lo0ss) (1.7) (15.3)




| Total Revenue | 145.7 | 195.5 |

There are no events known to the Club that will trigger any material financial
obligation including any default or acceleration of obligation.

There are no known trends, demands, commitments, events or uncertainties that will
have a material impact on its liquidity.

The Club is undergoing minor repairs of the facilities to maintain the upkeep of the
Club but funds for these will be derived solely from operations.

The global pandemic has affected the world economy. It has created an uncertainties
that had material unfavorable impact on revenues from continuing operations. The
Club will continually adapt and adjust its activities to allow members full enjoyment
of the facilities to the extent allowed under existing Alert Level System’s rules and
guidelines.

There are no seasonal aspects that had material effects on the financial condition or
results of operations of the Club.



ANNEX "E"

Draft only and subject to approval of the shareholders.

THE PALMS COUNTRY CLUB, INC.

MINUTES OF THE

ANNUAL SHAREHOLDERS’ MEETING
Held on 27 September 2021
9:00 o’clock in the morning
Conducted virtually via Microsoft Teams

ATTENDANCE:
Number of Shares Percentage of Total
QOutstanding Shares

Present by proxies 2,590 56.30%
Present by remote communication 8 0.18%
and voting in absentia

Total attendance 2,598 56.48%
PRESENT:
Board of Directors

Name Position

Mr. Efren C. Gutierrez Chairman

Mr. Francis Nathaniel C. Gotianun

President and Chief Executive Officer

Ms. Catherine A. Ilagan

Director

Mr. Andrew Gerard D. Gotianun 111

Director

Mr. Manuel Luis C. Gonzales

Independent Director

Mr. Manolito F. Gonzales

Independent Director

Mr. Joaquin P. Roa

Independent Director

Key Officers

Name Position
Hans Rudolf Neukom General Manager
Sharon P. Pagaling-Refuerzo Corporate Secretary
Mitzi Chuidian Financial Controller
External Auditor

Name Position

Michael C. Sabado

SGV & Co.

I CALL TO ORDER

The President of The Palms Country Club, Inc. (the “Club”), MR. FRANCIS
NATHANIEL C. GOTIANUN, acted as Chairman of the meeting and presided over
the same, while the Corporate Secretary, ATTY. SHARON P. PAGALING-
REFUERZO, recorded the minutes thereof.

II. PROOF OF NOTICE OF MEETING

The Corporate Secretary reported that the notice of the meeting, together with
the Quick Response or QR Code for a copy of the Information Statement, and the
Audited and Interim Financial Statements of the Club and the Interim Financial
Statements were sent to each shareholder of record as of 01 September 2021, by
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personal service, or by mail, in compliance with the By-Laws, the Revised Corporation
Code, and the Securities Regulation Code.
CERTIFICATION OF QUORUM

Based on the online registration and report on proxies received by the Office of
the Corporate Secretary, the Corporate Secretary certified that out of the 4,600 total
issued and outstanding shares of the Club as of the record date or on 01 September 2021,
2,598 shares representing 56.48% of the total issued and outstanding shares of the Club
were present at the meeting.

There being a quorum, the Chairman declared the meeting duly convened and
open for business.

Upon request of the Chairman, the Corporate Secretary informed the
shareholders that the rules of conduct and voting procedures are set forth in the
Definitive Information Statement, which forms part of the Notice of the Annual
Shareholders’ meeting The Corporate Secretary highlighted the following points:

1. Shareholders who successfully registered under the shareholder registration
system were provided the instructions to access our digital voting ballot as well as
the virtual meeting.

2. The deadline for voting in absentia and through proxy was on September 20, 2021.

3. After the voting, the Office of the Corporate Secretary, together with the
Membership Relations Office, tabulated all the votes cast in absentia as well as via
proxy.

4.  The results of the voting will be reported after each item is taken up during this
meeting.

5.  The sharcholders were also given up to September 20, 2021, to submit any
questions or comments they may have.

6. The participants were informed that there will be a visual and audio recording of
the entire proceedings.

APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF THE ANNUAL MEETING OF THE
SHAREHOLDERS HELD ON 16 OCTOBER 2020

The Corporate Secretary certified that an electronic copy of the minutes of the
annual meeting of the shareholders held on 16 October 2020 was included in the notice
of this year’s annual shareholders’ meeting and were made available on the Club’s
website. She reported that the resolution below was approved by majority of the
Shareholders based on the following tabulation of votes:

“RESOLVED, That the minutes of the annual meeting of
the shareholders of the Club held on 16 October 2020 is hereby
approved.”

FOR AGAINST ABSTAIN

Number of Shares Voted 2,590 - -

% of Shares of Shareholders 99.69% - -
Present
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PRESENTATION OF MANAGEMENT REPORT

The General Manager of the Club, Mr. Hans Rudolf Neukom, presented his pre-
recorded report on the Club’s operations for the year ended 31 December 2020 based on
the Club’s Audited Financial Statements for the same period, copies of which were
distributed to all shareholders of record as of 01 September 2021, together with the
Information Statement. He also presented the Club’s performance so far for the year
2021 and the impact of COVID-19 on operations.

RATIFICATION OF THE AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020

After the Management Report, the Chairman proceeded to the next item in the
agenda which was the ratification of the 2020 Audited Financial Statements. He asked
the Corporate Secretary if the shareholders were furnished a copy of the 2020 Audited
Financial Statements.

The Corporate Secretary responded that an electronic copy of the 2020 Audited
Financial Statements was made available on the Club’s website as well as attached to
the Information Statement. She reported that the resolution below was approved by
majority of the shareholders based on the following tabulation of votes:

“RESOLVED, That the Club’s Audited Financial
Statements as of and for the year ended 31 December 2020 be
approved, confirmed and ratified.”

FOR AGAINST ABSTAIN
Number of Shares Voted 2,590 - -
% of Shares of Sharcholders 99.69% - -
Present

RATIFICATION OF THE ACTS, RESOLUTIONS AND PROCEEDINGS OF
THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS, BOARD COMMITTEES AND
MANAGEMENT UP TO SEPTEMBER 27, 2021

The next item in the agenda was the ratification of all the acts, resolutions and
proceedings of the Board of Directors, Executive Committee, other Board Committees
and Management from the date of the last annual shareholders’ meeting until 27
September 2021, a summary of which was included as an annex in the Information
Statement sent to all the shareholders of record prior to the annual shareholders’
meeting.

The Corporate Secretary reported that the resolution below was approved by
majority of the shareholders based on the following tabulation of votes:

“RESOLVED, That all the acts, resolutions and proceedings
of the Board of Directors, Board Committees and Management from
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the date of the last annual shareholders’ meeting until 27 September
2021 are hereby approved, confirmed and ratified .”
FOR AGAINST ABSTAIN
Number of Shares Voted 2,590 - -
% of Shares of Shareholders 99.69% - -
Present

VIII. APPROVAL OF THE AMENDMENT OF ARTICLE THIRD OF THE

IX.

ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION TO CHANGE THE PRINCIPAL ADDRESS
FROM “METRO MANILA” TO “1410 LAGUNA HEIGHTS DRIVE,
FILINVEST CITY, ALABANG, MUNTINLUPA CITY”

The next item in the agenda was the approval of the amendment of Article Third
of the Articles of Incorporation to change the principal address of the Club from “Metro
Manila” to “1410 Laguna Heights Drive, Filinvest City, Alabang, Muntinlupa City”.

The Corporate Secretary explained that these amendments were presented at the
shareholders’ meeting held last year. However, the same was not submitted for approval
due to insufficiency of the required quorum which should be the presence of at least
67% of the total outstanding shares of the Club. Therefore, it was being presented again
for shareholders’ approval this year.

The approval requires the vote of at least 2/3 or 67% of the outstanding shares of
the Club. However, considering that less than 67% of the outstanding shares are present
in the meeting, the shareholders were not able to proceed with the approval of this item
in the agenda.

FOR AGAINST ABSTAIN
Number of Shares Voted 2,590 - -
% of Shares of Total 56.48% - -
Outstanding Shares

ELECTION OF THE MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS,
INCLUDING THE INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS TO SERVE FOR THE YEAR
2021-2022

The Chairman explained that the next item in the Agenda was the election of the
seven (7) members of the Board of Directors, including three (3) independent directors,
who shall hold office for a term of one (1) year, or until their successors shall have been
duly elected and qualified.

As requested by the Chairman, the Corporate Secretary announced the names of
the persons nominated for election as directors and/or independent directors of the Club
and who were pre-screened by the Corporate Governance Committee, acting as
Nominations Committee, in accordance with the Club’s Revised Manual on Corporate
Governance and By-Laws, as follows:

1. Mr. Efren C. Gutierrez
2. Mr. Francis Nathaniel C. Gotianun
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Ms. Catherine A. Ilagan

Mr. Andrew Gerard D. Gotianun III
Mr. Manolito F. Gonzales

Mr. Joaquin P. Roa

Ms. Josephine L. Lagdameo

Nk Ww

The Corporate Governance Committee has also identified Mr. Manolito F.
Gonzales, Ms. Josephine L. Lagdameo, and Mr. Joaquin P. Roa as nominees for the
position of Independent Directors. All the nominees have given their consent to their
respective nominations. Other than those named, no other nomination for election as
Director was submitted to the Corporate Governance Committee during the nomination
period.

The Corporate Secretary reported that the resolution below was approved by
majority of the shareholders based on the following tabulation of votes:

“RESOLVED, That the following persons are hereby
declared as duly elected directors of the Club, to serve for a term of
one (1) year or until their successors shall have been elected and
qualified in accordance with the By-Laws of the Club:

Directors:
1. Mr. Efren C. Gutierrez
2. Mr. Francis Nathaniel C. Gotianun
3. Ms. Catherine A. Ilagan
4. Mr. Andrew Gerard D. Gotianun III

Independent Directors:
5. Mr. Manolito F. Gonzales
6. Mr. Joaquin P. Roa
7. Ms. Josephine L. Lagdameo

FOR AGAINST | ABSTAIN | Percentage
Efren C. Gutierrez 2,590 - - 56.48%
Francis Nathaniel C. Gotianun 2,590 - - 56.48%
Catherine A. Ilagan 2,590 - - 56.48%
Andrew Gerard D. Gotianun III 2,590 - - 56.48%
Manolito F. Gonzales 2,590 - - 56.48%
Joaquin P. Roa 2,590 - - 56.48%
Josephine L. Lagdameo 2,590 - - 56.48%

On behalf of the Board and the Management, the Chairman extended the Club’s
heartfelt gratitude to Mr. Manuel Luis Gonzales for his invaluable years of service as
independent director of the Club. Mr. Manuel Luis Gonzales has served the maximum
term limit of nine (9) years for independent directors as mandated by the Securities
and Exchange Commission. During his long tenure as an independent director, he has
guided the Club and has served as a valued member of the Board. He shares the Board’s
commitment to protect the rights and welfare of the Club’s shareholders, members and
stakeholders.
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The Club also welcomed Ms. Josephine Lagdameo as the new independent
director of the Club. The members of the Board of Directors are confident that Ms.
Lagdameo will be able to infuse fresh ideas in the Board as we continue to pursue best
corporate governance practices for the benefit of the Club’s shareholders, members and
stakeholders.

APPOINTMENT OF EXTERNAL AUDITOR

Upon the recommendation of the Club’s Audit and Risk Management Oversight
Committee and confirmed by the Board of Directors, the shareholders approved the
reappointment of the accounting firm of Sycip Gorres Velayo and Co. (“SGV”) as the
Club’s external auditor for the year 2021, as follows:

“RESOLVED, That the accounting firm of Sycip Gorres
Velayo and Co. (SGV) be approved for reappointment as the
Club’s external auditor for the year 2021.”

FOR AGAINST ABSTAIN

Number of Shares Voted 2,590 - -

% of Shares of Shareholders 99.69% - -
Present

OTHER MATTERS

The Chairman then asked the Corporate Secretary to read out the questions from
the shareholders. The Corporate Secretary reported that the shareholders were given an
opportunity to submit their questions via email until 20 September 2021. The Office of
the Corporate Secretary did not receive questions for this shareholders’ meeting.

ADJOURNMENT

There being no questions submitted by the shareholders and no further business
to transact, the Chairman declared the meeting adjourned. He conveyed his gratitude to
the shareholders for attending the meeting and for their continued trust and confidence
in the Club and the Management.

CERTIFIED CORRECT:

SHARON P. PAGALING-REFUERZO
Corporate Secretary

ATTESTED BY:

FRANCIS NATHANIEL C. GOTIANUN

Chairman of the Meeting



ANNEX “F”

2022 ANNUAL SHAREHOLDERS’ MEETING

THE PALMS COUNTRY CLUB, INC.

REQUIREMENTS AND PROCEDURE FOR ELECTRONIC VOTING IN ABSENTIA
AND PARTICIPATION BY REMOTE COMMUNICATION

I. REGISTRATION

The Palms Country Club, Inc. (the “Club”) established a designated website in order
to facilitate the registration of and voting in absentia by the shareholders at the annual
meeting, as provided under Sections 23 and 57 of the Revised Corporation Code.

a. Shareholders of record as of August 29, 2022 may access the shareholder
registration system at the web address: https://bit.ly/palms_reqistration. The
deadline for registration is September 20, 2022.

b. To register, the shareholders are required to provide the following supporting

documents:

i. For Individual Shareholders:

1.

2.
3.

A scanned copy of the shareholder’s membership card or valid
government-issued ID showing photo, signature and personal
details, preferably with residential address (in JPG format).
The file size should be no larger than 2MB;

A valid and active e-mail address; and

A valid and active contact number.

ii. For Corporate Shareholders:

1.

2.

A secretary’s certificate attesting to the authority of the
representative to vote for, and on behalf of the corporation;

A scanned copy of a valid government-issued ID of the
shareholder’s representative showing photo, signature and
personal details, preferably with residential address (in JPG
format). The file size should be no larger than 2MB;

A valid and active e-mail address of the shareholder’s
representative; and

A valid and active contact number of the shareholder’s
representative.

Important Note: Incomplete or inconsistent information may result in an
unsuccessful registration. As a result, shareholders will not be able to access
to vote electronically in absentia, but may still vote through a proxy, by
submitting a duly accomplished proxy form on or before September 20, 2022.


https://apc01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fbit.ly%2Fpalms_registration&data=05%7C01%7Cryan.bautista%40filinvestland.com%7Cbba9f0874bbd4960883708da8417d75f%7Ccdb710b6704140938e6f80ac01d6c65a%7C0%7C0%7C637967535174184672%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=HmDb7q9U1WrSDD%2FbFAX%2Fjak74UzZIi3sUOA2wu8luCU%3D&reserved=0

c. After registration, the Club will conduct the validation process. Upon
validation, the Club will send an email to the shareholder, which shall be sent
to the email address of the shareholder indicated in the registration form,
containing instructions for voting in absentia and remote attendance for the
meeting.

Il. ELECTRONIC VOTING IN ABSENTIA

a. Registered shareholders have until September 20, 2022, 11:59 PM (Philippine
time) to cast their votes in absentia.

b. Shareholders may access the shareholder registration system at the web
address: https://bit.ly/palms_registration.

c. All agenda items indicated in the Notice of Meeting will be set out in the
digital absentee ballot and the registered shareholder may vote as follows:

i. For items other than the election of directors, the registered
shareholder has the option to vote: For, Against, or Abstain. The vote
is considered cast for all the shareholder’s shares.

ii. For the election of directors, the registered shareholder has the option
to:

1. Distribute his votes equally among all the candidates;

2. Abstain; or

3. Cast such number of votes for each nominee as preferred by the
shareholder, provided that the total number of votes cast shall
not exceed the number of shares owned, multiplied by the
number of directors to be elected. Should the votes cast by the
shareholder exceed the number of votes he is entitled to, the
votes for each nominee shall be reduced in equal proportion,
rounded down to the nearest whole number. Any balance shall
be considered abstained.

Once voting on the agenda items is finished, the registered shareholder can
proceed to submit the accomplished ballot by clicking the “Submit” button.

d. The Office of the Corporate Secretary of the Club, together with the Member
Relations Office, will count and tabulate the votes cast in absentia together
with the votes cast by proxy.

e. During the meeting, the Corporate Secretary shall report the votes received
and inform the shareholders if the particular agenda item is carried or
disapproved. The total number of votes cast for each item for approval and/or
ratification under the agenda will be shown on the screen.


https://apc01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fbit.ly%2Fpalms_registration&data=05%7C01%7Cryan.bautista%40filinvestland.com%7Cbba9f0874bbd4960883708da8417d75f%7Ccdb710b6704140938e6f80ac01d6c65a%7C0%7C0%7C637967535174184672%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=HmDb7q9U1WrSDD%2FbFAX%2Fjak74UzZIi3sUOA2wu8luCU%3D&reserved=0

1. PARTICIPATION BY REMOTE COMMUNICATION

a. Prior to the meeting, the Club will send email instructions to those
shareholders who have successfully registered, which shall be sent to the email
address of the shareholder indicated in the registration form, on how they can
attend the meeting through remote communication and have access to the
livestream of the meeting.

b. Only those shareholders who successfully registered in the shareholder
registration system, together with the shareholders who voted in absentia or by
proxy, will be included in determining the existence of a quorum.

c. Shareholders may send any questions and/or comments relating to the agenda
on or before September 20, 2022 to asm.palms@thepalmsclub.com.
Questions or comments received on or before September 20, 2022 may be
responded to during the meeting. Any questions not answered during the
meeting may be answered via email.

d. Shareholders who register and vote on the website for voting in absentia are
hereby deemed to have given their consent to the collection, use, storing,
disclosure, transfer, sharing and general processing of their personal data by
the Club and by any other relevant third party for the purpose of electronic
voting in absentia for the Annual Shareholders’ Meeting and for all other
purposes for which the shareholder can cast his/her/its vote as a shareholder of
the Club.

For any clarifications, please contact us through asm.palms@thepalmsclub.com.
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